EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

24

24

2019 12 30 2021

(Johnson & Johnson)

(Worldwide Vice President, Corporate Governance &

Corporate Secretary)

(Matthew Orlando)

08933

(One Johnson & Johnson Plaza, New Brunswick, New Jersey

08933, U.S.A.)

03-6266-8552

03-6266-8552

1/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

) U.S.$ $
UFJ 2021 109.41

2020 24
)

€Y)

(New Jersey Business Corporation Act)(

)

SEC )

)

2/429



()
Q)

®

()
Q)

(®)

10

60

3/429

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

10 60



©

©)

@

(b)

©

(D

©)

1969

1969

4/429

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



(

®

)

Q)

®

©

®

5/429

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



®

Q)

©

)
QY

®

©

6/429

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



®

Q)
Q)

®

©

®

©

71429

©)

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

@



()
Q)

®

©

®

®

1969

8/429

10

GAAP

60

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

@

@

Q)

®
25

9/429



()
Q)

®)

©

18

10/429

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

@
11

©)

©

(d)

©

60

©)

11/429



()

)
Q)

@
(b)

®

1.00
2,000,000

4,322,000,000

4,320,000,000

12/429

2,000,000

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

@
(b)

©
(d) ( )

©)

Q)

©

®

13/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

€Y)

@

®

€Y)

@

o

14/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
2004 30
2013 24
( 2004
)
@
( )
( )
10 30
10 30

()

( )
©

@ ©)

(D

15/429



@

@ @ © (D

10

~N
A

16/429

€Y

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
2016 2020
( ( )]
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
43,133 42,097 41,884 39,863 37,811
39,451 39,962 39,697 36,587 34,079
82,584 82,059 81,581 76,450 71,890
28,427 27,556 27,091 25,439 21,789
22,084 22,178 22,540 21,520 20,067
12,159 11,355 10,775 10,594 9,143
181 890 1,126 408 29
111) (357) (611) (385) (368)
201 318 1,005 934 726
2,899 2,525 1,405 42) 210
247 266 251 309 491
66,087 64,731 63,582 58,777 52,087
16,497 17,328 17,999 17,673 19,803
1,783 2,209 2,702 16,373 3,263
14,714 15,119 15,297 1,300 16,540
14,714 15,119 15,297 1,300 16,540
17.8 18.4 18.8 1.7 23.0
5.51 5.63 5.61 0.47 5.93
() 24.0 25.4 25.5 2.0 23.4
) )
0.6 0.6 6.7 6.3 2.6
@.1) 0.4 (92.1) 8.2
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( ( ))
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
18,766 17,658 17,035 17,005 15,912
3,347 3,498 3,670 3,279 3,226
174,894 157,728 152,954 157,303 141,208
32,635 26,494 27,684 30,675 22,442
23,536 23,416 22,201 21,056 18,767
3.98 3.75 3.54 3.32 3.15
24.04 22.59 22.44 22.43 26.02
) 157.38 145.75 127.27 139.72 115.21
)
2,632.8 2,645.1 2,681.5 2,692.0 2,737.3
2,670.7 2,684.3 2,728.7 2,745.3 2,788.9
( ) 134.5 132.2 135.1 134.0 126.4
« )
1887
1919 (Johnson & Johnson Canada)
(Ethicon) 1941
1949 1992 (Ethicon Endo-
Surgery, Inc.) (Ethicon, Inc.)

18/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

(McNeil Laboratories, Inc.) 1959
1977 (McNeil Pharmaceutical)
(McNeil Consumer Products)
(Ortho Pharmaceutical)

(Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceutical) 1993

(Janssen Pharmaceutica) 1961
(Ortho-McNei l-Janssen

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Frontier Contact Lenses) 1981 ACUVUE®

(Johnson & Johnson Vision Care,

Inc.)

(Johnson & Johnson - Merck Consumer
Pharmaceuticals Co.) 1989

(Ortho Biotech) 1990

(Centocor Ortho Biotech Products, L.P.)

1993 S.A.(RoC, S.A.) 1994

(Neutrogena Corporation)

1994 (Kodak) (Clinical Diagnostics)
(Ortho
Diagnostic Systems) (Clinical Diagnostic Systems)
1997 (Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc.)
2014
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(Johnson & Johnson Hospital Services)
(Johnson & Johnson
Advanced Behavioral Technologies)

(Johnson & Johnson Health Care Systems Inc.) 1995

(Cordis Corporation) 1996

(DePuy, Inc.) 1998
(Johnson & Johnson Consumer

Products Company) (S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc.)

®

AVEENO 1999

(Centocor, Inc.) 1999
(Centocor Ortho Biotech Inc.)

(BabyCenter, L.L.C.) 2001

(ALZA Corporation) 2001

(Inverness Medical) 2001

VA(Tibotec-Virco Comm. VA) 2002

(OraPharma, Inc.)
2003
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(Scios
Inc.) 2003
(Merck) 50 (
) 2004
DNA
(Gene Writer)
(Egea Biosciences, Inc.) 2004
X
(Artemis Medical, Inc.) 2004
(Biapharm) 2004
(BIAFINE)
(Peninsula Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Closure Medical Corporation) 2005
(TransForm Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Hand

Innovations LLC) 2006

S.A.(Future Medical Systems S.A.) 2006

(Animas Corporation) 2006
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(Group

Vendome) 2006

(Vascular Control Systems Inc.) 2006

(ColBar
LifeScience Ltd.) 2006

(Pfizer Inc.) 2006 12

(Conor Medsystems, Inc.) 2007

(Maya’ s Mom, Inc.) 2007

(Children With Diabetes, Inc.) 2008

( (point-of-care)

(near-patient) ) AB(Amic AB) 2008

(Beijing Dabao Cosmetics Co., Ltd.) 2008

enseaL®

(SurgRx, Inc.) 2008 10

(HealthMedia, Inc.) 2008 10
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LGE (LGE Performance Systems, Inc.) 2008 12

(Human Performance Institute, Inc.)

(Omrix Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2008 12

(Mentor Corporation)

2009

(Cougar Biotechnology, Inc.) 2009

2009 (Elan Corporation, plc)

(Gloster Europe) 2009 11

2009 12
(Finsbury Orthopaedics Limited)

2010
(Acclarent, Inc.)
(RespiVert Ltd.)
(Micrus

Endovascular Corporation)
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2011
N.V.(Crucell N.V.)(

RINZA
J.B.
Pharmaceuticals Limited)

Sharp & Dohme Corp)
(SterilMed, Inc.)

2012

(Guangzhou Bioseal Biotech Co. Ltd) QuillTM
Closure Device)
(Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Corlmmun Inc.)

(Calibra Medical, Inc.)
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DOKTOR MOM®

(J.B. Chemicals &
(Merck

(Synthes Inc.)

(QuillTM Knotless Tissue-

(Spectrum Vision LLC)

(Flexible Stenting Solutions, Inc.)

(Shanghai Elsker Mother & Baby

(Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Alios BioPharma, Inc.)

(Jagdale Industries Ltd.)

7vRTEC®
2013
Co., Ltd)
®
2014 FynomAb
(Covagen AG)
orsL™
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2015
(X01 Limited) B
2016
(NeuWave Medical, Inc.)
(NeoStrata Company, Inc.)
2017 (PAH)
(Actelion Ltd.)
Laboratories)
(AMO)
(Sightbox, Inc.)
(LINXTM Reflux Management System)
(Torax Medical, Inc.)
(Megadyne

2018

(Zarbee’ s, Inc.)

(Medical Enterprises Distribution LLC)
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(Novira Therapeutics, Inc.)

(Vogue International LLC)

RHINOCORT®

(Abbott

(Newuravi Limited)

(TearScience Inc.)

LN

Medical Products, Inc.)

(BeneVir Biopharm, Inc.)(BeneVir)

(Orthotaxy)
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2019
(DR. CI:LABO)
FDA
(Auris Health, Inc.)
(Taris Biomedical LLC)
(JointPoint, 1Inc.)

2020 (bermekimab)

(XBiotech Inc.)
(Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
(Verb

Surgical Inc.)

( )
134,500

1887

(
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17
avEEN®  cLEAN & CLEAR® DR. c1:LABOY NEUTROGENA®
06x® (0TC) TYLENOL®
SuDAFED” BenaDRYLY  zvRTEC®

MoTRIN® 18 NICORETTE® ZARBEE' S NATURALS®

perciD® JOHNSON'S®  AVEENO Baby®

LISTERINE® STAYFREE®
CAREFREE® 0.b.% BAND-AID®

NEOSPORIN®

(e )
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( ) (HIV AIDS ) (
) ( ) (
) ( )
REMICADE®(
)
stmpon1®( )
siPoNI ARIAS( )
STELARAY( )
TREMFYA®( ) (HIV-1)
EDURANT (
y  PREzISTAY( ) PrezcoBIX® REzoLSTAY( )
HIV syTuza®(
) CONCERTA®(
HCI) cl INVEGA
susTENNAY  xepLION®( ) INVEGA SUSTENNA®
InveGA TRINZA®  TREvICTA®(
) I RISPERDAL CONSTAY(
) (CRPC)
2YTI6A%( ) B
IBRUVICAS(
) DARZALEXY( )
ERLEADA®( )
VELCADEY( )
PROCRITY  EPREXY( )
XARELTO®(
) INVOKANA®( )
INVOKAWET®
VOKANAMETS( HCI)
INVOKANETSXR(
) (PAH)
oPsuMITY( ) (PAH) (1P

) upTRAVI®( )
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( )
( ) ( )
ACUVUE®
( )
134,500
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19
®
STELARA™( ) 2020
9.3
(Janssen Biotech, Inc.) STELARA®
2023
2024
DARZALEX®( ) DARZALEX FASPRO™(
) 2020 5.1
(Genmab A/S)
DARZALEX® (Janssen Biotech, Inc.)
2029
2031
(Janssen Biotech, Inc.) DARZALEX FASPRO™
®
IMBRUVICA™( ) 2020
5.0
(Pharmacyclics LLC)( (Abbvie) ) IMBRUVICA®
(Janssen Biotech, Inc.)
( )

(Pharmacyclics LLC) (Janssen Biotech, Inc.)
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FDA
FDA
FDA

FDA

FDA

(2022
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2010 (Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act)( ACA )
ACA
(CMS)
ACA
ACA 2020
11 ACA Texas v. Azar
ACA D
(
) ( )
(
Brexit )
FDA
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2021 2019 12 29
2020 2019
« ) 136,400 133,200
« ) 134,500 132,200
)
)
« )
14.9%
F4.4%
30,2%
20.5%
B 7rrRym He—mm st i TR D
o [ 38 | eSS
( )
[ )
[ )
[ )
(DED)
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78 93 36

2020

5.2

DEI
DEI

DEI

(Our Credo)

(Our Credo)

44.6

(DEI)
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(
)
www . jnj.com SEC SEC
www . investor. jnj.com/sec.cfm
SEC SEC WWW. Sec.gov
www . Factsaboutourprescriptionopioids.com www . Factsabouttalc.com
www . jnj.com SEC
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www . jnj.com www.Factsaboutourprescriptionopioids.com www . Factsabouttalc.com
SEC

@

@
2021
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AorTx

AUB

CSATS
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ECL7

us

JIHC

JINJ
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(SterilMed, Inc.)

(Sterilmed, Inc.)

USA

USA
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3D ApS
GmbH
Pty
S.A. C.V.
C )
UK
« )
«
Pty
ApS
GmbH
B.V.
SRL
S.L.
BV
AS
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Pte.
GmbH
UK
AB
2
6
B.V.
( )
C ApS
GmbH
0TC S.r.l.
B.V.
GmbH
S.L.
CNA GmbH
S.A. C.V.
GmbH
S.A.
(

SA
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S.A. C.V.
SARL
EES R.L. C.V.
EES S.A. C.V.
EIT GmbH
( ) GmbH
Sarl
PR
Sarl
Sarl
( )
S.A.
S.A.
( )
( )
FMS SA
GH
B.V.
GMED BV
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GmbH
UK
«
mbH
B.V.
J
J
J.C. BV
(
( )
B.V.
S.A.
S.p-A.
SPA
C.A.
S. R.L. C.V.
Lda
GmbH
uc
( )
NV
S.A.
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R&D

B.V.

A/S

AG

AS

B.V.

Lda.

Ltda.

GmbH

NV

Kft.

NV

oY

GmbH

S.A.C.I.

Sp. z o.0.

Pty

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

C.V.
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S.L.
J-C
AN S.L.
aac B.V.
JJsv BV
NARY SDN. BHD.
JJsv AB
NARY Ltda.
INJ s.r.0
INJ EMEA B.V.
INJ uLC
( ) Linitada
C )
( ) S.A.E.
(G
( )
( )
( )
( ) Limitada
( ) (
( )
( )
( )
« )
( )
( )
AB
AG

BV
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EOOD

B.V.

NV

EAME

S.A.C.e.l.

Limitada

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A. C.V.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

Ltda.

S.A.S.

GmbH

m.b.H.
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GmbH
S.A.
S.A.
S.A.
GmbH
Ltda.
(
) Pte
Kft
Limitada
Sarl
C )
(
C )
(G
B.V.
GmbH
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C.V.

S.A.

NV

GmbH

Pty

S.A.

S.p-A.

SAS

R.L.

C.V.

S.C.S.

Fz

AB

Pty.

S.A.

Pte.

Pty.

Pty.

S.R.L.

S.E.

SDN.

BHD.

R.L.

C.V.
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UK
« )
S.A.
S.A. C.V.
S.r.o
s.r.o
( )
AB
ApS
( )
(UK)
S.L.U.
AB
MDS
Ltda.
Sarl
Sarl
S.A. C.V.
B.V.
GmbH
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B.V.

UG (haftungsbeschrankt)

S.A. C.V.

Sarl

06X AU Pty

0GX

omMJ GmbH

omJ

NV

Pty.

PMC

S.R.L.

S.A.

PT

PT

Pte.

S.A. C.V.
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ESV
GmbH
GmbH
S.C.R. Limitada
GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
S.M.P. S. R.L. C.V.
GmbH
UAB
2021 490
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( )
134,500

1887
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(Our Credo)
2020
25 122 73
134,500
(Our Credo)
gl R W — M T B e e e S T,
(HAGE @ 84 o) CHE - -4 Fa) CHESE © % Fa)
12.2
1.4 73
58
3.98 3.75
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
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2020 50
2020
75 2020
10 (Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
2020
10
2010 2020 (
)
( CPI )
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12

2016

2020

(EV)

2021

(UK)
31

(UK)
2020 12 30

(UK)

(EV)
(UK)
(TCA)
(EV)
2020
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(EV)

(EV)
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(2018
( Brexit )
(Euratom)
Brexit
EU
115



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

FDA

2021

1995
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( )
FDA(U.S. Food and Drug Administration )(
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EU

PPC
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TCJIA
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(COVID-19)

63/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

SEC
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90
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(COVID-19)
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(INJ-78436735 (ENSEMBLE

68/429



JOHNSONS®
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EU

19
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FDA( )

(Good Manufacturing Practices)( )

19
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2015 (Base Erosion and Profit Shifting BEPS)
(USPTO (IPR
FDA (Abbreviated New Drug
Application ANDA) ANDA
2010 (The Biologics Price Competition

and Innovation Act BPCIA) FDA

(USPTO)
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( ) ¢ at-risk”

launch)

19

5 2020 25

721429



2020

48

18

731429

100
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(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
FCPA)

FCPA FCPA

2010
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2020

2020
19
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134,500
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2019 2018 2019 12 29
2020 2019 0.6 0.6 826
« ) 2020 2019
3.5 3.7
2.3) 0.9)
(0.6) (2.2)
0.6 0.6
2020 0.3 2019
1.7
2020 2.5 431 2019 0.5 421
2020 1.3 395 2019 0.7 400
3.3 3.9 2.8
10 3.0 3.9 2.1
2020 2.0 0.8
2.8 ( ) 0.4
10.6 10.2
3.1 0.4
2.7
2020 53 (

) 2020 1.0

781429
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min]u[minl=[=
2020
16.0 12.0 12.0 2019
15.0 12.0 11.0
2020 ( ) 2020 ( )
8431
8456
S23.0
S15.1
853
$19.0 S14.1
i i AR 5T MR B
ForANm-F7un @ K@ N sumE .t
)
2020 3.0 1.9
2019 1.1 141
9.0 64 1.3 3.3
4.6 77 2020
0.1
«
(@)
2020
) 2020 2019 o
4,824 4,444 8.5
( ) 4,450 4,593 (3.1
1,641 1,528 7.4
1,517 1,675 9.4
901 986 (8.6)
720 671 7.2
( ) 14,053 13,898 1.1
« )
« )

791429



7vRTEC®
e
2020
BabyCenter AVEENO Baby®
2020
2020
neosPorIN®  BanD-AIDY
2020
2019 8.0 456
8.8 0.5
2020

1.0
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8.5 48
TyLENOL®
pepcID®
3.1 45
(SKU) e
7.4 16
LISTERINE®
9.4 15
(SKU)
8.6
7.2
8.2 0.2
7.8 257
8.3 108 2020
0.2
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)
) 2020 2019 2%(1’9
15,055 13,950 7.9
REMICADE” 3,747 4,380 (14.4)
SIMPONI®/SIMPONI ARIA® 2,243 2,188 2.6
STELARA” 7,707 6,361 21.1
TREMFYA” 1,347 1,012 33.2
11 10 6.4
3,574 3,413 4.7
EDURANT® / 964 861 11.9
PREZISTA%PREZCOBI;)(@ 2 184 2110 i e
/REZOLSTA"/SYNTUZA
427 441 G.2)
6,548 6,328 3.5
CONCERTA®/ 622 696 (10.6)
INVEGA® SUSTENgA®/XEPLIOI;® 3,653 5 330 0.7
/INVEGA TRINZA®/TREVICTA
RISPERDAL® CONSTA” 642 688 (6.8)
1,632 1,614 1.1
12,367 10,692 15.7
DARZALEX” 4,190 2,998 39.8
ERLEADA®( ) 760 332 « )
IMBRUVICA® 4,128 3,411 21.0
VELCADE” 408 751 (45.7)
ZYTIGAY/ 2,470 2,795 (11.6)
413 407 1.7
3,148 2,623 20.0
oPSUMIT® 1,639 1,327 23.5
UPTRAVI® 1,003 819 33.5
«C ) 416 476 (12.8)
4,878 5,192 (6.0)
XARELTO” 2,345 2,313 1.4
INVOKANA® / INVOKAVET" 795 735 8.2
PROCRIT /EPREX® 552 790 (30.2)
1,186 1,353 12.4)
45,572 42,198 8.0
« )
( ) 100
« )
« ) TRACLEER”
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® ®
STELARAY( ) TREMFYAS(
)
@
REMICADED( )
0
REMICADED( ) 2015
REMICADE® REMICADE®
REMICADE®
REMICADE® 2016
REMICADE®
2020 4.7 36
sywtuza®  JuLuca®( / )
PREZISTAY( )
0 @ @
PREZISTAD( Y prezcoBIX®/REZOLSTAY( / )
3.5 65
® ® @
INvEGA SUSTENNA®  xepLION( ) INVEGA TRINZA
TREVICTAY( )
RISPERDAL CONSTAZ( )
CONCERTA®( )
2020 15.7 124
(EV) DARZALEX®(
) erRUVICA®(
) ERLEADAY(
) 2YT16A%(
) VELCADEY( )
20.0 31 OPSUMITY( )
@
upTRAVI®( )

TRACLEER®( ) oPSUMITY( )
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2020 11.4 0.2
2019 11.6 230 10.9 110
11.8 0.4 12.2
119 2020
0.9 (ASP)
0.8
« )
)
( ) 2020 2019 202,
(Surgery) 8,232 9,501 (13.4)
3,839 4,095 (6.2)
« ) 4,392 5,406 (18.8)
(Orthopaedics) 7,763 8,839 (12.2)
1,280 1,438 (11.0)
1,170 1,480 (21.0)
2,614 2,720 (3.9)
« ) 2,699 3,201 (15.7)
(Vision) 3,919 4,624 (15.2)
2,994 3,392 (11.7)
925 1,232 (24.9)
(Interventional Solutions) 3,046 2,997 1-6
22,959 25,963 (11.6)
« )
« )
« )
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9,563 21.0 8,834 20.9
2,174 9.5 2,028 7.8
12,159 14.7 11,355 13.8
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« )
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JJbC (Johnson & Johnson Innovation - JJDC, Inc.)(JJDC)
2020 ( )
W ) 2020 2019
« ) 5.1 5.1 -
C ) 1.1 0.3 1.4
« ) (0.5) (0.6) 0.1
(Or. Ci: Labo) 0.0 (0.3) 0.3
« ) 0.2) 2.2) 2.0
0.1 0.2 (0.1)
(0.5) 0.0 (0.5)
‘G 2.9 2.5 0.4
12020 (40 ) 2019
(40 )
)2020 (Auris Health)
11
)2019 ASP
2020 2019 39
90
2020 252
222 (2019 193
195 ) 2020 2019 277
291 353 315 2020
50
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(1,064) 2,061 14,053 13,898  (7.6) 14.8
15,462 8,816 45,572 42,198 33.9 20.9
3,044 7,286 22,959 25,963 13.3 28.1
« ) 17,442 18,163 82,584 82,059 21.1 22.1
945 835
C )
16,497 17,328 82,584 82,059 20.0 21.1
C ) 17
C ) ( ) «C )
2020
2019 14.8 7.6
2019 2020 39 (
)
2019 (DR. CI:LABO)
(SKV)
2020 2019
20.9 33.9
2019 43 2020 ( 2020 10
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2020 2019 10.8 12.7

2021 (IRS)
2019 40

2020 10 21.4
2020

2020 2019 173 140
33

)
17.3 2019

23.5
(20.8)

(6.1)

0.1

14.0 2020

2020 112 2019 20

235

14.7

7.3 )
0.8
5.9

(4-6)
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(Momenta)
(bermekimab)
(7.3) Surgical Inc.)
3-3)
(9.0)
(1.0)
0.3

(0.5) (
(20.8)

(XBiotech Inc.)
(Verb

61

(10.5)
G-2)
7.1
1.1
0-3)
0-3)
(6-1)

2021
2021
2020
2019 277 353

50
2020

2020 10
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(Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
( TCJA )



2021

( (TCIA)
2021 812 1,799 949 3,560
2022 812 2,226 908 3,946
2023 1,522 1,552 880 3,954
2024 2,029 1,598 842 4,469
2025 2,536 1,744 789 5,069
2025 - 25,515 9,503 35,018

7,711 34,434 13,871 56,016

2021 10
121 2021

10 148
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( )

2020

¢ ) 284 793 (788) 289
63 138 (125) 76
487 1,988 (2,047) 428
834 2,919 (2,960) 793
35 7 ®) 39
17 201 (206) 12
886 3,127 (3,169) 844

2019

¢ ) 271 841 (828) 284
57 128 122) 63
497 2,119 (2,129) 487
825 3,088 (3,079) 834
32 21 (18) 35
23 198 (204) 17
880 3,307 (3,301) 886

« ) 2021 2019 12 29

66 54
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( ) 9,013 32,415 (31,591) 9,837
500 233 (273) 460
5 10 ©) 6
9,518 32,658 (31,873) 10,303
36 24 (8) 52
65 1,034 (1,029) 70
9,619 33,716 (32,910) 10,425
2019
( ) 7,510 26,868 (25,365) 9,013
436 354 (290) 500
13 17 (25) 5
7,959 27,239 (25,680) 9,518
47 2 (13) 36
53 936 (924) 65
8,059 28,177 (26,617) 9,619
« ) 2021 2019 12 29
174 93
« >
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¢ ) 1,013 5,144 (4,983) 1,174
118 578 (558) 138
46 118 112) 52
1,177 5,840 (5,653) 1,364
155 95 (48) 202
10 88 (89) 9
1,342 6,023 (5,790) 1,575
2019
¢ ) 1,218 5,487 (5,692) 1,013
114 673 (669) 118
42 106 (102) 46
1,374 6,266 (6,463) 1,177
169 30 (44) 155
106 (96) 10
1,543 6,402 (6,603) 1,342
« ) 2021 2019 12 29
707 499
GAAP
GAAP
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384
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JINJ 2021 16
132,376 2020 2019
2020 2019
154.50 109.16 140.00 125.00
157.00 125.50 14498 128.52
155.47 137.84 142.47 126.34
157.66 133.65 147.84 126.10
$157.38 $145.75
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90 15.2
( )
.............................................................................. 4,684
............................................................................................................... 5,559
............................................................................................................ 4,951
...................................................................................................... 15,194
19 24
14 23
( )
.................................................................................... 29 4,351
........................................................................... 25 5,992
( ) e 10 1,777
......................................................... 26 3,074
........................................................................ 90 15,194
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2,000 0 2,000
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( 1.00 ) C D
0 « )
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« ) 487,331,000
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( 2,000,000 )
(@)



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

109/429

oOoOooodn
®
50,000 3,119,842 50 3,120
2001 12 30 C ) ( (5,470.5 )| (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2012 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2012 12 30 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2013 12 29 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2014 12 28 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2016 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2017 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2017 12 31 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2018 12 30 — ( - (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2019 12 29 ( (341,359.2 )
3,119,843 3,120
2021 ( (341,359.2 )
«c )
«c )
«c )
16
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1934
(Securities Exchange Act of 1934)
¢ )y > ) 2021
2021
2021
19355 227,946,104 8.66
100 « ) « )
10055 188,510,542 7.20
52 55 « ) « )
02111 144,029,634 5.47
« ) « )
( ) 2021 10 SEC 136 2020 12 31
8.66 227,946,104
216,472,293 11,473,811 4,272,484
( ) 2021 29 SEC 136 2020 12 31
7.20 188,510,542
163,863,390 188,510,542
( ) 2021 12 SEC 136 2020 12
31 5.47 144,029,634
126,726,258 143,989,480
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c/o Johnson & Johnson, One

Johnson & Johnson Plaza, Room WH 2133, New Brunswick, NJ 08933 USA

( )
(
)
LeadDirector@its. jnj.com
( ) https://secure-www. jnj.com/wps/wcm/ jsp/contactUs. jsp.

115/429



(

(

)

)

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

18

Office of the Corporate Secretary, Johnson & Johnson, One Johnson & Johnson

Plaza, New Brunswick, NJ 08933 USA
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(SASB) )
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(
)
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(
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2025 100
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2016 60

2030 2016
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https://www_jnj.com/global-environmental-

health/climate-and-energy
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JOHNSONS® « )
factsabouttalc.com

(Janssen Pharmaceutical Companies)

factsaboutourprescriptionopioids.com

2020 2020 10
investor. jnj.com/board-report-on-oversight-of-risk-

related-to-opioids
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2020 10 5

investor. jnj.com/board-report-on-oversight-of-risk-related-to-

opioids
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(McKinsey & Company)
A
(University of California, Berkeley)
7 201 ; i i
5 018 (Li Ka
Shing Chancellor’ s Professor in
Biomedical and Health)
Johnson & Johnson
CH 60 2012 C
A
67 2019 (Lockheed Martin Corporation) | 1a*
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J
(Duke-Rabert J.
57 2013 B} 3 i1 B2
Margolis, MD, Center for Health Policy)
M (Xerox
LD 68 2009 . &l € )
Corporation)
Citigroup Inc.
71 2006 ( group ) i c*
E (Duke University)
70 2012 A i
(Duke University Health System) o
A EY
59 2019 ( ) i c*
Y
59 2020 iz
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71 2011 c (i
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)
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35.7
2021 24

C (Huntsman
Cancer Institute at the University of 0
66 ) Utah) 2006

1986 M

(Jon M. Huntsman Presidential Endowed
Chair) (NIH)
(Advisory Committee
to the Director)
(American Association for
Cancer Research)
(American Society for Cell Biology)

(American Cancer Society
Council for Extramural Grants)

(Howard Hughes Medical Institute)
(Medical Advisory Board)
(National Cancer Institute

(USA)) (Board of Scientific
Advisors)
(Pana Farber/Harvard Cancer
Center) (External Advisory
Board)
(Huntsman
Corporation) (2011 )
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UPS

) 2003
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2009

(Honeywell International, Inc.)(2005
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(2008 2016 )
(EndoChoice, Inc.)(2014
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0 )

(RolIs-Royce Holdings
plc.) 2003 2009

(McKinsey & Company)(
)
2010

30

(Majid Al Futtaim Holding LLC)

(Apax
Parners)
(2013 )
( ) (8P plc.)
(2010 2020 )

4,193
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(University of
California (UC), Berkeley) 2002
uc uc
(UC San Francisco)
(Innovative
Genomics Institute)
(Li Ka Shing
Chancellor’ s Professorship in
Biomedicine and Health) uc
(Chancellor
' s Advisory Committee on Biology)
uc
CRISPR

(Caribou Biosciences, Inc.)

(Intellia
Therapeutics, Inc.)
1997
(Howard Hughes
Medical Institute) 2020
(Pomona

College)
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(60 )

2012 12 2012
1988
(Janssen
Pharmaceutica Inc.)
15
2001
2003
2004
(Novartis  Pharmaceuticals
Corporation)
2008 (Ethicon)
2009
2009
2011
(Travis Manion
Foundation)

(National Academy Foundation)
(Wharton Board of
Advisors)
(Business Roundtable)

(2014 )

476,237
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®7 )

2013 12
(Lockheed

Martin Corporation)( )
2014

2020
2020 2021
2012 2021
(US0)

(President*s Cabinet)
(the Culverhouse

College of Business) (Board of
Visitors)
(Catalyst)
(Chevron
Corporation) (2021 )
(
) ( )
(DuPont; DowDuPont Inc.)(2007 2019
)
(2012 2021 )

3,000
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61 )

2012
(Best Buy
Co., Inc.)( )
2015
2019 2020
2004 2008
(Carlson
Wagonlit Travel)
2008
2012
(Carlson Companies)
1999
(Vivendi Universal Games)
(Vivendi)
(U.S. Assets)
(Vivendi
Universal)
1996
1999
(Electronic

Data Systems France)

1983 1996
(McKinsey &
Company) (
)

(Harvard Business School)

(Sciences Po Foundation)
(Minneapolis Institute of Art)

HEC
(Ralph
Lauren Corporation) (2009 )
(
)
(2012 2020 )

5,000
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67 )

2016 J
(Duke-Robert
J. Margolis, MD, Center for Health
Policy) (Duke
University)
(Margolis Professor of Business,
Medicine and Policy)

(Dell Medical School at The
University of Texas in Austin)
2007 2015
(Brookings Institution)

(Economic Studies)

(Initiatives on Value and Innovation in

Health Care) 2004
2006

2002 2004
(FDA) 2001 2002

(Program on Health Outcomes
Research)
(Reagan-Udall Foundation)

(National Academy of
Medicine)

(Leadership Consortium for
Value and Science-Driven Health Care)

(Health Care Payment
Learning and Action Network)

(Research! America)
(Long Term Quality Alliance)

(Alignment
Healthcare)
(National Alliance for Hispanic Health)
10 (PrognomlQ, Inc.)
(United
States of Care)
(Cigna

Corporation) (2018 )
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68 )

2009
(Xerox Corporation)(
) (
2009
)
(General
Markets Operations) 1976

(Customer Operations)

2010
2017
(Save the Children)
2018
(Graham Holdings Company) (2008 )
LPL
(LPL Financial Holdings Inc.)(2013
)
(Williams-Sonoma, Inc.)(2018 )
( )
(Target Corporation) (1997 2017 )

7,565
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2001 2002
1979

(Commercial Credit Company)

1975 U.S.
(U.S. Steel Corporation)

(Lord Abbett Family of
Funds)

( )
(Xerox Corporation) (2008 2018 )
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0 )

(Duke University)

(Duke University Health System)

(University of California,
Los Angeles)(UCLA)

UCLA
(Pavid Geffen School of Medicine)
UCLA (UCLA Health
System) UCLA
UCLA 2004 2010
(University
of California, San Francisco)(UCSF)
1993 UCSF
(Medical
Effectiveness Research Center for Diverse
Populations) 2005
1996 2004 UCSF

(Department of
Obstetrics, Gynecology, and Reproductive
Sciences) UCSF

(UCSF-Stanford
Evidence-based Practice Center)

1997 2002

UCSF
(Centers  for Disease Control and
Prevention) 1997

(National Academy of
Sciences’ Institute of Medicine)

(Patient-Centered
Outcomes Research Institute)

(NTH)

(Scientific Management Review

Board)
(California HealthCare
Foundation)
(California Wellness Foundation)

(Kaiser
Foundation Hospitals)
(Kaiser Foundation Health
Plan, Inc.)
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2012 EY( )
( )
2013
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W
(U.S. Social

Security Administration Advisory Board)

(Stone Canyon Industries
Holdings Inc.) (Teneo)
G100
50

(FCLTGIobal)

(JUSTCapital) CEO (CEO
Advisory Council)
(NBER)

(Chief Executives for Corporate
Purpose CECP)
(Aspen
Economic Strategy Group)
(Emory University)
(Case
Western Reserve University)
(The Concord Coalition)
(The
Greater Washington Partnership)
(United States
Council for International Business)

(MetLife Inc.)
(2019 ) (Saudi
Aramco) (2020 )
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2019 10
2015 2019 44
(44th Army Surgeon General)
(Commanding
General of the U.S. Army Medical
Command)

2013 2015
(Joint Staff Surgeon)

2012 2013

(Deputy Chief
of Staff for Support) 2010
2012
(Commanding General of the Europe
Regional Medical Command)

(
)
(National Recreation Foundation)
(Mount
St. Mary’ s University)
(Americares)
(Woodruff Foundation)
(Nucor
Corporation) (2019 )
(Tenet
Healthcare Corporation) (2019 )
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@1 )

2006 2010 (Aetna
Inc.)( )
2010
2011 2011
2017
2007 2010
( )
(Council for Affordable
Quality Healthcare) 2008 2010
(The
Business Council) 2019
MIT (MIT Corporation)

(Clayton, Dubilier & Rice, LLC)

(Peterson Institute  for
International Economics) NAF(

)

(President’s Circle
of the National Academies)
(Peterson
Center on Healthcare)

(Board of Trustees of the
Conference Board)

(The Boeing

Company) (2010 )
(American Express
Company) (2007 )
( )
(2011 2017 )
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M 2004

(Cordis Corporation) 107,343

68 )

2007
(Chief Talent Officer)

(Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.)
2010
2011
2016
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(McNeil Consumer 30,156
G0 ) Health)
2012
(Vision Care)
2014
2018
(Ethicon) (DePuy
Synthes)
(Biosense Webster)
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NV(Tibotec Virco

NV) 2002 275,547
68 ) NV(Virco NV)
NV(Tibotec NV)
2005
(Global Virology)
2006
2009
2011
2012
2016
2018
2005
115,126
(7 ) (Johnson &  Johnson

Pharmaceutical Services)
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2015

2018
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2020 ( )

56,495 2,730 56,040 2,587
(6,181,117.95 )| (298,689.3 ) | (6,131,336.4 ) | (283,043.67 )

SEC
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Brossy Consulting Group)
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2021
2020 14 2021
2021
2019
2020
2020
A c D F
(
c s )
M C 140,000 184,871 20,000 344,871
D S 145,000 184,871 0 329,871
Il E L 120,000 184,871 0 304,871
J A 120,000 184,871 20,000 324,871
MoA 120,000 184,871 16,000 320,871
H 120,000 184,871 20,000 324,871
M B 120,000 184,871 0 304,871
A M ( ) 168,825 184,871 20,000 373,696
W D ( ) 43,726 0 20,000 63,726
C 140,000 184,871 20,000 344,871
A E 120,000 184,871 20,000 324,871
M A 120,000 184,871 0 304,871
N Y « ) 9,534 0 2,000 11,534
R A 140,000 184,871 20,000 344,871
( ) 2020
( ) 2020
( ) 2020 12
( c )
2020
2020
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2020 12 31
)
)

M oC 7,827
D S 9,623

E L 14,994
J A 2,736
MoA 2,089
H 1,255
M B 11,695
A M 14,994
WD C ) 26,332
c 21,934
A E 23,078
MA 2,089
N Y «C ) 0
R A 22,761
() 2020

( ) 2020 12
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2020
2019 2020
2018 2019
A B c D E F G H [
( ) ( ) ( ) I ) ( ) ( ) ( )

2020 | 1,650,000 | 13,757,654 | 4,382,995 | 3,148,515| 6,436,000 200,810 | 29,575,974

2019 | 1,650,000 | 9,956,365 | 4,049,997 | 3,690,971| 5,775,000 243,444 | 25,365,777

2018 | 1,642,308 | 10,319,463 | 4,305,594 | 3,570,497 o| 259,710 | 20,097,572

2020 | 885,385 | 4,163,841 | 1,448,997 | 1,044,179 2,607,000 46,636 | 10,196,038

EVP 2019 | 796,538 | 2,379,419 | 1,182,003 | 1,132,914| 1,925,000 81,818 | 7,497,692
2018 | 597,542 670,085 | 216,898 | 749,729 441,000 32,935 | 2,708,189

2020 | 1,222,500 | 6,871,123 | 2,202,001 | 2,056,395| 4,005,000 82,949 | 16,439,968

ve | 2019 | 1,222,500 | 4,824,472 | 2,040,008 | 2,388,631| 3,519,000 73,238 | 14,067,849

€S0 2018 | 1,178,300 | 4,666,961 | 2,010,004 | 2,191,603 154,000 | 390,897 | 10,591,765
2020 | 1,021,538 | 6,798,093 | 2,193,000 | 1,820,403| 3,746,000 45,969 | 15,625,003

2019 | 969,615 | 4,622,787 | 1,974,005 | 2,295,437| 3,469,000 88,458 | 13,419,302

2018 | 934,046 | 4,275,951 | 1,892,999 | 2,010,088 79,000 91,876 | 9,283,960

2020 | 884,615 | 4,468,928 | 1,499,997 | 990,058| 1,642,000 46,871 | 9,532,469

EVP 2019 | 796,154 | 2,625,279 | 1,200,004 | 1,179,065| 1,237,000 59,798 | 7,097,300

() W cso EVP
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C
( D)
D ( PSU ) ( RSU )
2020
PSU 2020 PSU
2020 EPS TSR 2020 PSU 100 2020
2018 2019
2018 2019 2020
2020
2000 2022 2000 2022
PSU e EPS TSR

2020 2022 50 50 100
2019 2021 1/9 1/9
2018 2020 1/9 1/9
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(i) (i) Gii) (200 ) PSU
@) Ol OOl Do >l e
2020 2022 PSU 0 62,595 125,190 0l 10,049,064 20,098,128
2019 2021 PSU 0 7,419 14,838 0 1,066,125 2,132,250
2018 2020 PSU 0 8,011| 16,022 0 1,181,526 2,363,053
2020 2022 PSU 0 20,693| 41,386 0 3,322,075 6,644,150
2019 2021 PSU 0 2,165 4,330 0 311,115 622,230
2018 2020 PSU 0 323 646 0 47,639 95,277
2020 2022 PSU 0 31,447 62,894 0 5,048,533 10,097,066
2019 2021 PSU 0 3,737 7,474 0 537,014 1,074,029
2018 2020 PSU 0 3,740 7,480 0 551,605 1,103,210
2020 2022 PSU 0 31,319 62,638 0 5,027,984 10,055,967
2019 2021 PSU 0 3,616 7,232 0 519,626 1,039,253
2018 2020 PSU 0 3,522 7,044 0 519,453 1,038,905
2020 2022 PSU 0 21,422 42,844 0 3,439,109 6,878,219
2019 2021 PSU 0 2,198 4,396 0 315,857 631,714
2018 2020 PSU 0 1,451 2,902 0 214,005 428,010
( E )
2020
( F)
( cLC )
CLP )
CLC  CLP 2012 CLC  CLP
CLC  CLP
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CLC CLP
CLC
CLP
CLC CLP
10 CLP
F
CLC CLP
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2020 2,610,000 477,600 60,915 3,148,515
2019 3,120,000 450,000 120,971 3,690,971
2018 3,030,000 424,800 115,697 3,570,497
2020 1,020,000 15,920 8,259 1,044,179
2019 1,110,000 15,000 7,914 1,132,914
2018 728,000 14,160 7,569 749,729
2020 1,380,000 636,800 39,595 2,056,395
2019 1,710,000 600,000 78,631 2,388,631
2018 1,550,000 566,400 75,203 2,191,603
2020 1,170,000 616,900 33,503 1,820,403
2019 1,650,000 581,250 64,187 2,295,437
2018 1,400,000 548,700 61,388 2,010,088
2020 815,000 149,250 25,808 990,058
2019 1,000,000 140,625 38,440 1,179,065
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( G )
CLC CLP
CLC CLP
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2020 6,436,000 0 0 6,436,000
2019 5,775,000 0 0 5,775,000
2018 0 0 0 0
2020 2,607,000 0 0 2,607,000
2019 1,925,000 0 0 1,925,000
2018 441,000 0 0 441,000
2020 4,005,000 0 0 4,005,000
2019 3,519,000 0 0 3,519,000
2018 154,000 0 0 154,000
2020 3,746,000 0 0 3,746,000
2019 3,469,000 0 0 3,469,000
2018 79,000 0 0 79,000
2020 1,642,000 0 0 1,642,000
2019 1,237,000 0 0 1,237,000
2020
10

189/429



EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

oOoOooodn

2020 | PRI-2012  MMP-2019 2.55
2019 | PRI-2012  MMP-2019 3.46
2018 | RP-2014  MMP-2018 4.47
2017 | RP-2014 MMP-2016 3.74

2018 2020 (i)
(ii) SEC
( ) (¢ ) (¢ ) )

A 2020 2,236,000 4,200,000 6,436,000 6,436,000

2019 2,274,000 3,501,000 5,775,000 5,775,000

2018 2,619,000 (2,812,000) (193,000) 0

J 2020 1,508,000 1,099,000 2,607,000 2,607,000

2019 1,176,000 749,000 1,925,000 1,925,000

2018 796,000 (355,000) 441,000 441,000

P 2020 1,541,000 2,464,000 4,005,000 4,005,000

2019 1,396,000 2,123,000 3,519,000 3,519,000

2018 1,662,000 (1,508,000) 154,000 154,000

J 2020 1,341,000 2,405,000 3,746,000 3,746,000

2019 1,379,000 2,090,000 3,469,000 3,469,000

2018 1,552,000 (1,473,000) 79,000 79,000

J 2020 814,000 828,000 1,642,000 1,642,000

2019 672,000 565,000 1,237,000 1,237,000
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CLC CLP
CLC CLP
12 ( AFR ) 120
SEC
CLC CLP
CLC CLP
49.66 5.62
50.25 5.65
( ) 0.59 0.03
() 1.19 0.53
1.58 1.58
(0.39) (1.05)
0.00 0.00
( H )
H 2020 401(k)
2018 2019 2019
2020 (2019 13 2020 11 )
)} ( )} ( )] ( ))
117,726 0 74,250 8,834 200,810
« ) 0 39,842 6,794 46,636
18,555 0 55,013 9,381 82,949
« ) 0 45,969 0 45,969
« ) 0 39,808 7,063 46,871
) 10,000
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2020
A 91,641
117,726
J
P 18,555
J
J
(
)
(
)

2013
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2020 2020 PSU
2020 RSU D E
¢ b | E F ¢ | w | 1 K L M N
(¢ ) (¢ )
7
C 21 C 21 C 201 (D (@D) ) ) (@D) D K¢ 21 C )
0| 2,887,500| 5,775,000
2020 2020
2022 PSU 10 o| 62,505| 125,190 10,049,064
2019 2020
2021 PSU 10 o| 7,410 14,838 1,066,125
2018 2020
2020 PSU 10 ol s,011| 16,022 1,181,526
2020
RSU 10 10,432 1,460,939
13,757,654
2020
10 266,849 151.41)  151.86| 4,382,905
0] 1,125,000 2,250,000
2020 2020
2022 PSU 10 o| 20,693| 41,386 3,322,075
2019 2020
2021 PSU 10 ol 2,65| 4,330 311,115
2018 2020
2020 PSU 10 0 323 646 47,639
2020
RSU 10 3,449 483,012
4,163,841
2020
10 88,219 151.41)  151.86| 1,448,997
0| 1,528,125 3,056,250
2020 2020
2022 PSU 10 o| 31,447| 62,894 5,048,533
2019 2020
2021 PSU 10 of s.737| 7,47 537,014
2018
2020 2020
PSU 10 ol 3,740| 7,480 551,605
2020
RSU 10 5,241 733,971
6,871,123
2020
10 134,064 151.41| 151.86| 2,202,001
0| 1,287,500 2,575,000
2020 2020
2022 PSU 10 o| 31,319] 62,638 5,027,984
2019 2020
2021 PSU 10 ol 3,618 7,232 519,626
2018 2020
2020 PSU 10 ol 3,522| 7,044 519,453
2020
RSU 10 5,220 731,030
6,798,003
2020
10 133,516 151.41)  151.86| 2,193,000
o| 900,000 1,800,000
2020 2020
2022 PSU 10 o| 21,422| 42,844 3,439,109
2019 2020
2021 PSU 10 ol 2,9 4,39 315,857
2018 2020
2020 PSU 10 ol 1451 2,00 214,005
2020
RSU 10 3,570 499,957
4,468,928
2020
10 91,324 151.41| 151.86| 1,499,997
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( D

F)

D F 2020
( F )
( G
I)
G 1 2020 PSU
2020
2020 2018 2019 PSU
PSU 2018 2020
( J )
J 2019 2020 RSU
( K M)
K M 2019 2020
0.45
( N)
N 2020 PSU RSU
D E

2020

PSU RSU PSU RSU

2020 2020 2022 EPS RSU  PSU

2020

2020 2022 EPS RSU PSU
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2020 2022 PSU EPS TSR 2020
PSU
PSU
PSU RSU
2020 10
( 151.41
N i
2.60
2020 2020 2022 EPS RSU  PSU ( )
RSU 140.044
2020 2022 EPS 2020 2022 PSU 140.044
2020 PSU
2019 2021 PSU 143.702
2018 2020 PSU 147.488
2020 2022 PSU
( )
2020 2022 EPS 50 140.044
2020 2022 TSR 50 181.037
160.541
2020
151.41
( 1.47
(
) 15.325
C X ) 7.00

16.425
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OooooOodd
2020
2020 RSU PSU
A B C p | E | F [ @ H | I [ J [ K
(@)
( ) () I(C ) (@) (¢ )
2012 2015 2022
17 17 | 231,951 65.37 17
2013 | 2016 2023
16 17 | 547,692 72.54 13
2014 | 2017 2024
10 11 | 495,146 90.44
2015 | 2018 2025
10 | 427,127 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
411,264 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 | 377,673 115.67 13
2018 | 2021 2028
12 12 239,519 129.51 11
2019 2022 2029
11 11 227,464 131.94 11
2020 | 2023 2030
10 10 266,849 151.41 10
RSU
2018 | 2021
12 12 12,017] 1,891,235
2019 2022
11 11 11,129 1,751,482
2020 | 2023
10 10 10,432| 1,641,788
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B C b | E | F | 6 H | [ | J | K
(@)
(¢ )] () I( D) (@) (¢ D)
2018 2020 PSU
2018 2021
12 12 46,345| 7,293,776
2019 2021
11 12 11,688] 1,839,457
2020 2021
10 12 5,039 793,038
2019 2021 PSU
2019 2022
11 11 10,826/ 1,703,796 34,300 5,398,134
2020 2022
10 11 4,667] 734,492
2020 2022 PSU
2020 2023
10 10 0 0 58,558 9,215,858
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B C b | E | F | 6 H | [ | J | K
(@)
( ) () ¢ ) (@) ( )
2013 2016 2023
16 17 1,855 72.54 13
2014 2017 2024
10 11 12,926 90.44
2015 2018 2025
10 13,015 100.06
2016 2019 2026
8 16,820 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 19,241 115.67 13
2018 2021 2028
12 12 12,066] 129.51 11
2019 2022 2029
11 11 66,386] 131.94 11
2020 2023 2030
10 10 88,219 151.41 10
RSU
2018 2021
12 12 2,543] 400,217
2019 2022
11 11 3,248 511,170
2020 2023
10 10 3,449 542,804
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B C b | E | F | 6 H | [ | J | K
(@)
(¢ )] () I( D) (@) (¢ D)
2018 2020 PSU
2018 2021
12 12 1,868] 293,986
2019 2021
11 12 471 74,126
2020 2021
10 12 203| 31,948
2019 2021 PSU
2019 2022
11 11 3,160 497,321 10,010 1,575,374
2020 2022
10 11 1,362| 214,352
2020 2022 PSU
2020 2023
10 10 0 0 19,359 3,046,719
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B c D E F | @6 H 1 J | K
(@)
D) () I(C D) (@) D)
2015 | 2018 2025
10 | 170,668 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
174,787 101.87

2017 2020 2027

13 13 | 138,982 115.67 13
2018 | 2021 2028

12 12 111,816] 129.51 11
2019 2022 2029

11 11 114,575] 131.94 11
2020 | 2023 2030

10 10 134,064] 151.41 10

RSU

2018 | 2021

12 12 5,610 882,902
2019 2022

11 11 5,606| 882,272
2020 | 2023

10 10 5,241| 824,829
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B c b | E | F | @6 H | 1 | J | K
(@)
( D) () I(C D) (@) (¢ D)
2018 2020 PSU
2018 | 2021
12 12 21,635] 3,404,916
2019 2021
11 12 5,457| 858,823
2020 | 2021
10 12 2,352| 370,158
2019 2021 PSU
2019 2022
11 11 5,454 858,351 17,276 2,718,897
2020 | 2022
10 11 2,351] 370,000
2020 2022 PSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 0 0 29,419 4,629,962
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B c D E F | @6 H 1 | J | K
(@)
D) (D IcC D) (@) D)
2012 2015 2022
17 17 84,423 65.37 17
2013 | 2016 2023
16 17 | 148,538 72.54 13
2014 | 2017 2024
10 11 | 130,969 90.44
2015 | 2018 2025
10 | 126,369 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
125,824 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 | 123,201 115.67 13
2018 | 2021 2028
12 12 105,307|  129.51] 11
2019 2022 2029
11 11 110,868| 131.94 11
2020 | 2023 2030
10 10 133,516] 151.41] 10
RSU
2018 | 2021
12 12 5,283| 831,439
2019 2022
11 11 5,424| 853,629
2020 | 2023
10 10 5,220| 821,524
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B c b | E | F | @6 H | 1 | J | K
(@)
( D) () I(C D) (@) (¢ D)
2018 2020 PSU
2018 | 2021
12 12 20,375] 3,206,618
2019 2021
11 12 5,139 808,776
2020 | 2021
10 12 2,215 348,597
2019 2021 PSU
2019 2022
11 11 5,276] 830,337 16,718 2,631,079
2020 | 2022
10 11 2,274] 357,882
2020 2022 PSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 0 0 29,300] 4,611,234
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B c b | E | F | @6 H | 1 | J | K
(@)
( D) () I(C D) (@) (¢ D)
2013 | 2016 2023
16 17 76,923 72.54 13
2014 | 2017 2024
10 11 59,397 90.44
2015 | 2018 2025
10 58,504 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
56,471 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 43,712 115.67 13
2018 | 2021 2028
12 12 43,391 129.51 11
2019 2022 2029
11 11 67,397] 131.94 11
2020 | 2023 2030
10 10 91,324 151.41 10
RSU
2018 | 2021
12 12 2,177| 342,616
2019 2022
11 11 3,297| 518,882
2020 | 2023
10 10 3,570 561,847
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OooooOodd
B c b | E | F | @6 H | 1 | J | K
(@)
( D) (@D N ¢ D) (@) (¢ D)
2018 2020 PSU
2018 | 2021
12 12 8,398 1,321,677
2019 2021
11 12 2,117| 333,173
2020 | 2021
10 12 913| 143,688
2019 2021 PSU
2019 2022
11 11 3,208| 504,875 10,162 1,599,296
2020 | 2022
10 11 1,383] 217,657
2020 2022 PSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 0 0 20,041 3,154,053
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2018 2020 PSU 82.1
TSR 2020 2022 PSU
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ooooooo
2020
2020 2019
PSU  RSU
(@) ( ) (@) ( )
A 0 0 107,016 16,101,627
J 0 0 7,080 1,065,257
P 0 0 39,381 5,925,265
J 0 0 105,668 15,898,807
J 0 0 64,396 9,633,946
2020
2020 2020
(@) (@) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
A 28.42 62 1,920,000 36,208,000 [ 38,128,000 0
J 22.58 62 1,303,000 5,713,000 7,016,000 0
P 27.33 62 1,750,000 18,060,000 | 19,810,000 0
J 31.25 62 2,009,000 17,229,000 | 19,238,000 0
J 15.92 62 978,000 5,006,000 5,984,000 0
2015
2026

2015
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OooooOodd
2020
A B C D E F
( )) )} (¢ )} (¢ )] (¢ )]

0 61,425 232,099 2,396,593 9,335,628

0 27,017 23,422 0 635,562

0 42,188 201,646 1,557,780 10,174,140

0 33,144 181,395 1,228,251 9,592,004

1,398,052 26,983 444,290 524,852 4,929,369
( B )
B
50 100

( c )

C
H
( D)
D D
( cLC ) ( cLP )
CLC cLP
G

CLC CLP G
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/( /C Hlee CLP
(¢ )} (¢ )] (¢ )] (¢ )} (¢ )
0 149,371 70,800 11,928 232,099
0 19,444 2,360 1,618 23,422
0 99,492 94,400 7,754 201,646
0 83,384 91,450 6,561 181,395
369,297 47,814 22,125 5,054 444,290
( E )
E 2010 CLP 10
( F)
F F
CLC  CLP ) CLC
CLP
CLC cLP
(¢ )} (¢ )] (¢ ) (¢ )] ( ))
0 1,059,103 6,030,000 2,246,525 9,335,628
0 129,970 201,000 304,592 635,562
0 673,897 8,040,000 1,460,243 | 10,174,140
0 567,655 7,788,750 1,235,599 9,592,004
1,767,349 325,846 1,884,375 951,799 4,929,369
50
100
401(K)
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OooooOodd
401(K)
4.5
2020 285,000
4.5
17.28
2008 12 15
cLC CLP
cLC CLP
CLC CLP
(¢ ) (¢ )}
49.66 5.62
50.25 5.65
0.59 0.03
2020
2020 2020
2020
2020
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2020
2020

( ) ( ) ) ( ) ( )
0 1,650,000 0 0 0
226,000 228,000 226,000 115,000 274,000
47,485,827 47,485,827 0| 47,485,827 47,485,827
47,711,827 49,363,827 226,000 | 47,600,827 47,759,827
0 900,000 0 0 0
0 92,000 0 9,000 315,000
0 0 0 10,080,550 10,080,550
0 992,000 0 10,089,550 10,395,550
0 1,222,500 0 0 0
194,000 199,000 194,000 100,000 265,000
23,220,701 23,220,701 0| 23,220,701 23,220,701
23,414,701 24,642,201 194,000 | 23,320,701 23,485,701
0 1,228,077 0 0 0
194,000 199,000 194,000 100,000 264,000
22,422,679 | 22,422,679 0] 22,422,679 22,422,679
22,616,679 23,849,756 194,000 | 22,522,679 22,686,679
0 900,000 0 0 0
149,000 158,000 149,000 80,000 278,000
12,512,776 | 12,512,776 0 12,512,776 12,512,776
12,661,776 | 13,570,776 149,000 12,592,776 12,790,776
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( RIF )
( ) 2020
12 31
(qualifying separation)
RIF
RIF
2020
12 31 5,375,116
( )
52
(
( ) ) D) ) ) ( )
1,650,000 12 24 52 52 1,650,000
900,000 22 44 52 52 900,000
1,222,500 23 46 52 52 1,222,500
1,030,000 31 62 52 62 1,228,077
900,000 15 30 52 52 900,000
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365
100
91 23
( )

214/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
O) ( )
(ii)2020 2020
(
) (iti) (
)
2020
50 81,000
2020
29,575,974 14,498
CEO CEO
2019
2019 76,000 2020
81,000
2020

81,000
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@
( )( )
2021 2019 12 29
( ) 13,985 1,530,099 17,305 1,893,340
( ) 11,200 1,225,392 1,982 216,851
293 (32,057 )
13,576 1,485,350 14,481 1,584,366
(2019 226 (24,727 )) ’ e ’ e
( ) 9,344 1,022,327 9,020 986,878
3,132 342,672 2,392 261,709
( 18 — — 94 10,285
51,237 5,605,840 45,274 4,953,428
( ) 18,766 2,053,188 17,658 1,931,962
( ) 53,402 5,842,713 47,643 5,212,621
( ) 36,393 3,981,758 33,639 3,680,443
( ) 8,534 933,705 7,819 855,477
6,562 717,948 5,695 623,090
174,894 19,135,153 157,728 17,257,020
( ) 2,631 287,858 1,202 131,511
9,505 1,039,942 8,544 934,799
13,968 1,528,239 9,715 1,062,918
11,513 1,259,637 10,883 1,190,709
3,484 381,184 3,354 366,961
( ) 1,392 152,299 2,266 247,923
42,493 4,649,159 35,964 3,934,821
( ) 32,635 3,570,595 26,494 2,898,709
( ) 7,214 789,284 5,958 651,865
( 10) 10,771 1,178,455 10,663 1,166,639
( ) 6,559 717,620 7,444 814,448
11,944 1,306,793 11,734 1,283,817
111,616 12,211,907 98,257 10,750,298
( 19
( 2,000,000 ) — — — —
1.00 ( 12
3,120 341,359 3,120 341,359
( 4,320,000,000 3,119,843,000 ) ’ ’ ’ ’
«C ) ( 13) (15,242) (1,667,627) (15,891) (1,738,634)
113,890 12,460,705 110,659 12,107,201
101,768 11,134,437 97,888 10,709,926
¢ 12 38,490 4,211,191 38,417 4,203,204
(487,331,000 487,336,000 )
63,278 6,923,246 59,471 6,506,722
174,894 19,135,153 157,728 17,257,020
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OoooooO
@
( )( )

2020 2019 2018
82,584 | 9,035,515 82,059 8,978,075 81,581 | 8,925,777
28,427 | 3,110,198 27,556 3,014,902 27,001 | 2,964,026
54,157 | 5,925,317 54,503 5,963,173 54,490 | 5,961,751
22,084 | 2,416,210 22,178 2,426,495 22,540 | 2,466,101
12,159 | 1,330,316 11,355 1,242,351 10,775 | 1,178,893
( 181 19,803 890 97,375 1,126 123,196

(111) (12,145) (357) (39,059) (611) (66,850)
) 201 21,991 318 34,792 1,005 109,957
« ) 2,899 317,180 2,525 276,260 1,405 153,721
( 20) 247 27,024 266 29,103 251 27,462
16,497 | 1,804,937 17,328 1,895,856 17,999 | 1,969,271
( 1,783 195,078 2,209 241,687 2,702 295,626
14,714 | 1,609,859 15,119 1,654,170 15,297 | 1,673,645
15)
5.59 612 5.72 626 5.70 624
5.51 603 5.63 616 5.61 614
15)
2,632.8 2,645.1 2,681.5
2,670.7 2,684.3 2,728.7
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©)
( )( )
2020 2019 2018
14,714 1,609,859 15,119 | 1,654,170 15,297 | 1,673,645
C )
(233) (25,493) 164 17,943 @1,518)|  (166,084)
¢ ) 1 109 — — @ (109)
— — — — 1 109
1 109 — — — —
« ) 1,298 142,014 18) (1,969) 44) (4,814)
«C ) (1,135) (124,180) (714) (78,119) (56) (6,127)
(229) (25,055) @ (109) 92 10,066
(66) (7,221) (733) (80,198) ®) (875)
« ) 1,000 109,410 (107) (11,707) 73) (7,987)
(53) (5,799) 7 766 (192) (21,007)
947 103,611 (100) (10,941) (265) (28,994)
« ) 649 71,007 (669) (73,195) @, 79|  (195,953)
15,363 1,680,866 14,450 | 1,580,975 13,506 | 1,477,691
2020 2019 2018 536
(58,644 ) 19 (2,079 ) 236 (25,821 ) 21
(2,298 ) 222 (24,289 ) (438 ) 252
(27,571 )y 27 (2,954 )y 70 (7,659 )
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@
( )( )
C )
2017 12 31 60,160 101,793 (13,199) 3,120 (31,554)
@ (486) (254) (232)
15,297 15,297
( 3.54 ) (9,494) (9,494)
1,949 (1,111) 3,060
(5,868) (5.868)
(15) (15)
« ) 1,791) (1,791)
2018 12 30 59,752 106,216 (15,222) 3,120 (34,362)
15,119 15,119
( 3.75 ) (9,917) (9,917)
1,933 (758) 2,691
(6,746) (6,746)
@ (€]
« D (669) (669)
2019 12 29 59,471 110,659 (15,891) 3,120 (38,417)
14,714 14,714
( 3.98 ) (10,481) (10,481)
2,217 (931) 3,148
(3,221) (3,221)
1) )]
C ) 649 649
2021 63,278 113,890 (15,242) 3,120 (38,490)
@
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*) (
( )( )
«c )
2017 12 31 6,582,106 11,137,172 (1,444,103) 341,359 (3,452,323)
() (53,173) (27,790) (25,383)
1,673,645 1,673,645
387 ) (1,038,739) (1,038,739)
213,240 (121,555) 334,795
(642,018) (642,018)
(1,641) (1,641)
(195,953) (195,953)
2018 12 30 6,537,466 11,621,093 (1,665,439) 341,359 (3,759,546)
1,654,170 1,654,170
410 ) (1,085,019) (1,085,019)
211,490 (82,933) 294,422
(738,080) (738,080)
(109) (109)
(73,195) (73,195)
2019 12 29 6,506,722 12,107,201 (1,738,634) 341,359 (4,203,204)
1,609,859 1,609,859
435 ) (1,146,726) (1,146,726)
242,562 (101,861) 344,423
(352,410) (352,410)
(7,768) (7,768)
71,007 71,007
2021 6,923,246 12,460,705 (1,667,627) 341,359 (4,211,191)
@
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2020 2019 2018
14,714 | 1,609,859 | 15,119 | 1,654,170 | 15,297 | 1,673,645
7,231 791,144 7,009 766,855 6,929 | 758,102
1,005 109,957 977 106,894 978 107,003
233 25,493 1,096 119,913 1,258 137,638
(1,148)| (125,603) — — — —
@] @245 @159 (35,669 @,217)| (@33,152)
(1.141)| (124,837)| (2,476)| (270,899)| (1.016)| (111,161)
63 6,893 (20) (2,188) (31) (3,392)
774 84,683 89| (31.619) (1,185)| (129,651)
65)  (28,994) @m|  (30,307) 644)|  (70,460)
5,141 562,477 4,060 | 444,205 3,051 | 432,279
3.704) (405,255)|  (1,054)| (115,318) @) (30,088)
744 81,401 1,425 155,909 @.840) (201,752)
23,536 | 2,575,074 | 23,416 | 2,561,945 | 22,201 | 2,429,011
3.347)| (366,195)| (3,498)| (382,716)] (3.670)| (401,535)
305 33,370 3,265 | 357,224 3,203 | 350,440
18) 7.323)| (801,209)| (5,810)| (635,672) (899)[  (98,360)
(21,089)](2,307,347)|  (3,920)| (428.887)| (5.626)| (615,541)
12,137 | 1,327,909 3,387 370,572 4,289 | 469,259
©87)| (107,988) 338 36,981 — —
G2 (57,003) 44 4,814 @6a)|  (50,766)
(20,825)[ (2,278,463)|  (6,194)| (677.686)| (3.167)| (346,501)
(10,481)] (1,146,726)|  (9,917)| (1,085,019)|  (9,494)] (1,038,739)
3.221)| (352,410)|  (6,746)| (738,080)| (5.868)| (642,018)
3,301 371,009 39 4,267 80 8,753
(2.663)| (291,359) @ooy| 10,941 (2,479)| (271,227)
7,431 813,026 3 328 5 547
@,089)| (116,412)| (2,823)| (308,864)| (1.555)| (170,133)
1,114 121,883 954 104,377 949 103,830
333)|  (36,439) 100 10,941 25 2,735
|  (32,167) 475 51,970 any| @s,928)
6,120y (669,589)| (18,015)|(1,971,021)| (18,510)|(2,025,179)
89 9,737 ©) (985) )| (26.368)
) (3.320)| (363,241) ©02)| (87,747) 283 30,963
17,305 | 1,893,340 | 18,107 | 1,981,087 | 17,824 | 1,950,124
13,985 | 1,530,099 | 17,305 | 1,893,340 | 18,107 | 1,981,087
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( )( )

2020 2019 2018
904 98,907 995 108,863 1,049 114,771
841 92,014 925 101,204 963 105,362
4,619 505,365 4,191 458,537 4,570 500,004
1,937 211,927 1,736 189,936 2,095 229,214
27 2,954 1 109 6 656
7,755 848,475 7,228 790,815 1,047 114,552
@32)|  (47,265) (1,418)| (155,143) @48)|  (16,193)
( 18) 7,323 801,209 5,810 635,672 899 98,360
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ASU 2018-14
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2018
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2018

2018

ASU  2014-09
ASU 2016-01
ASU 2016-16

2021

2019 12 29
( )

10-K

( RRA
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RRA 102
A ( )
RRA 102
RRA
20 - 30
10 - 20
2-13
( )

30 90
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(

2021
2019 12 29 72 70

GAAP

2020 2019 2018
1.0

3.0

17

2020 2019 2018 10 10 11

0.5
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2020
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@
@ (©)
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2020 2019
2020 2019

100

ASC 730
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( )
(
«
( )
(Bayer HealthCare AG) XARELTO® (AbbVie)
(Pharmacyclics LLC) IMBRUVICA®
(Genmab A/S) DARZALEX”
2020 2019 2018

21 22 26
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GAAP
GAAP
2017
35 21 2018
15.5
8.0
2018 2025 2020 77
69
12
¢ D
2018 FASB
( )
( )
2018
2017 12 31

2018
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GAAP
( COVID-19 )
COVID-19 COVID-19
COVID-19 ( )
2021
COVID-19
2021
COVID-19
12 52

2020 2026 53
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2020 2019
2020
)
2,863 — 2,863 2,863 —
() 690 — 690 — 690
1,937 — 1,937 1,937 —
[€)) 2,674 — 2,674 1,451 1,223
2,102 — 2,102 2,102 —
() 877 — 877 877 —
11,143 — 11,143 9,230 1,913
13,777 1 13,778 4,731 9,047
14 — 14 — 14
250 — 250 24 226
(@) 14,041 1 14,042 4,755 9,287
13,985 11,200
2019
)
2,637 2,637 _
[€)) 439 149 290
6,375 6,375 —
375 375 —
(€] 1,323 889 434
2,864 2,864 —
[€)) 906 906 —
14,919 14,195 724
4,102 3,005 1,007
266 15 251
(@) 4,368 3,110 1,258
17,305 1,982
o
@

233/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

Ogoooood
2019
2021
)
14,026 14,027
15 15
10 — —
14,041 14,042
2020 2019
) 2020 2019
1,410 1,117
2,040 1,832
5,894 6,071
@ 9,344 9,020
(1) 2019 12 29 18
2021
2020 2019
) 2020 2019
882 854
12,502 11,877
29,104 26,964
4,316 3,637
46,804 43,332
28,038 25,674
@ 18,766 17,658
(1) 2019 12 29 18
2021
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2020 2019 2018
63 70 86
2020 2019 2018 26
25 26
2020 2019
( ) 2020 2019

39,990 36,634

17,618 13,154

22,372 23,480

22,898 22,056

10,912 9,462

* 11,986 12,594

7,195 6,922

@ 11,849 4,647

19,044 11,569

53,402 47,643

(1) 2020 (Momenta Pharmaceuticals,
Inc) 60 (bermekimab)
(XBiotech Inc.) (Verb Surgical Inc.)
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2021 2019 12 29
( )
2018 12 30 8,670 9,063 12,720 30,453
1,188 75 2,018 3,281
(122) 31 0 (95)
2019 12 29 9,736 9,169 14,734 33,639
— 1,222 238 1,460
600 618 76 1,294
2021 10,336 11,009 15,048 36,393
12
21 2021 2019 12 29 2018 12 30
47 45 44
« )
( ) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
4,600 4,200 4,100 3,900 3,200
18
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« D
2021
306
453
2022 2035
2021
( )
12

18

2021

2021

2019 12 29
201

2019 12 29
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2021 2019 12 29
2021
« )
)
— — — 153 —
— — — 153 —
)
¢ ) 12 (329) 137) — (16)
44 298 (191) — (52)
¢ ) — — — 370 —
— — — 748 —

238/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
2019 12 29
« D
« )
— — — 159 —
)

; — — — 159 —
(54) (321) (105) — 22
; (20) (606) (94) — 39
— — — 292 —
; — — — 417 —

2021 2019 12 29

« D « )
2021 2019 12 29

« ) 24 (144)
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2021 2019 12 29
€ ( )
2021 2019 2021 2019
12 29 12 29
(473) 121 ( — —
65 488 ( — —
( )
2021 2019 12 29
2019 2021
12 29
@
)

1,148 527 (194) 1,481 1,481
712 (55) 81 738 738

2018 2019

12 30 12 29
@
)
511 533 104 1,148 1,148
681 (38) 69 712 712
)
)
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2021

2019 12 29
76
21

ASC 820
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57

19

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooooooo
2021 2019 12 29
2020 2019
) @
— 849 — 849 209
A6 — 240 — 240 693
— 1,089 — 1,089 902
_ 702 — 702 426
(©)) — 1,569 — 1,569 193
— 2,271 — 2,271 619
_ 49 — 49 23
— 38 — 38 33
) 1,481 — — 1,481 1,148
@) — 14,042 — 14,042 4,368
(6) 633 633 1,715
) 2020 2019
1,138 925
(1,107) (841)
31 84
2,309 652
2,172) (586)
137 66
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( ) 2020 2019 2018
1,715 397 600
0 (1,089) 151 (156)
106 1,246 125
(99) 79) 172)
633 1,715 397
(1) 2019 1,148 1,715
(2) 2019 12 29
©)
O]
®)
(6) 2021 2019 12 29 2018 12 30 594 1,631 (
(Auris Health) )y 397 2021 2019 12 29
39 84
0) 2020
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( ) 2020 () 2019 ()
2020 — — 51 3.00
2.95 2020 — — 549 3.15
1.950 2020 — — 500 1.99
3.55 2021 450 3.67 449 3.67
2.45 2021 350 2.48 349 2.48
1.65 2021 999 1.65 999 1.65
0.250 2022
0 1.2281)(2) 1,227 @ 0.26 1,108 ® 0.26
10 1.1096)(3)
2.25 2022 999 2.31 998 2.31
6.73 2023 250 6.73 250 6.73
3.375 2023 803 3.17 804 3.17
2.05 2023 499 2.09 498 2.09
0.650 2024
(750 1.2281)(2) 919 @ 0.68 829 ® 0.68
(750 1.1096)(3)
5.50 2024
(500 1.3654)(2) 679 @ 6.75 645 6.75
(500 1.2987)(3)
2.625 2025 748 2.63 748 2.63
0.55 2025 (5) 996 0.57 — —
2.45 2026 1,994 2.47 1,993 2.47
2.95 2027 997 2.96 996 2.96
0.95 2027 5) 1,494 0.96 — —
1.150 2028
(750 1.2281)(2) 915 @ 1.21 825 1.21
(750 1.1096)(3)
2.90 2028 1,495 2.91 1,494 2.91
6.95 2029 297 7.14 297 7.14
1.30 2030 ) 1,743 1.30 — —
4.95 2033 498 4.95 498 4.95
4.375 2033 855 4.24 855 4.24
1.650 2035
@5 1.2281)(2) 1,827 @ 1.68 1,649 ® 1.68
(15 1.1096)(3)
3.55 2036 989 3.59 989 3.59
5.95 2037 992 5.99 992 5.99
3.625 2037 1,488 3.64 1,487 3.64
5.85 2038 696 5.85 696 5.85
3.400 2038 991 3.42 991 3.42
4.50 2040 539 4.63 539 4.63
2.10 2040 5) 986 2.14 — —

2441429
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( 2020 () 2019 ()
4.85 2041 297 4.89 297 4.89
4.50 2043 496 4.52 495 4.52
3.70 2046 1,974 3.74 1,973 3.74
3.75 2047 991 3.76 991 3.76
3.500 2048 742 3.52 742 3.52
2.250 2050 ®) 984 2.29 — —
2.450 2060 ®) 1,228 2.49 — —
7 — 18 —
34,434 @ 2.85 ® 27,594 3.19 @
1,799 1,100
32,635 26,494
o
(2) 2021
(3) 2019 12 29
@ 2020 54 2019 30
(5) 2020 75
2020 364
100 2021
LIBOR ) ( SOFR )
2020 2020
26 18
2019 2019
12 11
2021
( 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2025
1,799 2,226 1,552 1,598 1,744 25,515
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) 2020 2019 2018
1,026 1,941 1,284
1,898 2,744 2,434
2,924 4,685 3,718
(76) (814) 1,210 ©
(1,065) (1,662) (2,226)
(1,141) (2,476) (1,016)
1,783 2,209 2,702
@ 14
2020 2019 2018 21
) 2020 2019 2018
4,312 3,543 5,575
12,185 13,785 12,424
16,497 17,328 17,999
21.0 21.0 21.0
(€)) 9-9 5.9 (€))
©)) 2.7 1.8 1.4
1.2) (0.3) @ —
(1.5) (0.5) (1.5)
0.7 (3.9) ® 1.9) ®
(1.0) 0.5 & 0.3)
10.8 12.7 15.0
o
2020 2019
@
(3) 2017
©)
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2020

2020

2020

TRAF

TRAF

2.6
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TRAF

40
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2019 1.9 2019
( TRAF ) 2020
( )
1)
2)
2019
TRAF
( )
2020
( )
450
2020 1.2
2020
23.5
10
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2020
( 18 )
2019 2018 2.3 TRAF
2019
2017 2018
« ) 2.2
40 (
19 ) 23.5
« ) 21
2019 12
2017
« ) 17
IRS
« ) 1.5 (
)
2019 12 29 IRS (NOPA)
2018 ( ) 1.2
2017 2017
2018
2019 «C )
2019 0.6 2019
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2019 12 29
450
2018

2017

2017 12 31
2018
14
2018
2017

28
19
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2020 2019
2020 2019 *
2,434 2,473
627 595
721 1,122
(6,567) (5,835)
1,517 1,189
3,466 2,337
1,705 1,605
990 838
812 (1,435) 765 (1,289)
(3,606) (2,965)
854 (211) 696 (81)
12 411
13,138 (11,819) 12,031 (10,170)
100
2020 2019 2018
3,853 3,326 3,151
265 249 242
668 408 145
(551) (105) (137)
(839) ©) (40)
(23) (16) (35)
3,373 3,853 3,326
2021 34
( IRS ) 2012
2019 12 29
2020
2010 2012
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2006

12

IRS
2020 2019 2018
32 50 53 2020 2019
468 559
2020 2019
) 2020 2019

5,761 5,538

2,229 2,297

3,078 3,004
250 338

11,318 11,177
547 514

10,771 10,663

2020 2019 656 551
10
2015
(
) 2014

251/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

Ogoooood
2021 2026
2026
2021 PBO( ) 18
2020 2019
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 2019 2018
) 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
1,380 1,163 1,283 287 274 269
955 1,096 996 133 185 148
(2,461)  (2,322) (2,212) ©) (6) @
2 4 3 @31 31) @D
« ) 891 579 852 142 129 123
23 73 1 — — —
790 593 923 524 551 502

10
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2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
2.82 3.63 3.20 3.04 4.45 3.85
3.13 4.13 3.60 3.08 4.25 3.62
4.00 3.99 3.98 4.25 4.29 4.29
8.12 8.31 8.46
2.14 2.91 3.76 2.23 3.39 4.40
4.00 4.01 3.97 4.27 4.29 4.29

2020 2019
5.68 5.87
( 4.49 4.50
2040 2040
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2020 2019
) 2020 2019 2020 2019
37,188 31,670 5,076 4,480
1,380 1,163 287 274
955 1,096 133 185
61 63 — —
(€Y) (1,780) — — _
«C ) © 5,716 5,178 (75) 562
(88) (278) — —
(24) 172) — —
(1,111) (1,555) ® (396) (431)
1,003 23 3 6
43,300 37,188 5,028 5,076
32,201 26,818 115 180
5,524 6,185 14 19
870 908 357 347
61 63 — —
(13) (16) — —
(84) (274) — —
(1,111) (1,555) @ (396) (431)
747 72 — —
38,195 32,201 90 115
(5,105) (4,987) (4,938) (4,961)
656 551 — _
(125) (113) (418) (397)
(5,636) (5,425) (4,520) (4,564)
(5,105) (4,987) (4,938) (4,961)
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2020 2019 2020 2019
10,860 8,835 1,463 1,685
(1,797) ®) (44) (75)
9,063 8,827 1,419 1,610
40,356 33,416
790 593 524 551
2,616 1,084 (81) 550
(891) (579) (142) (129)
(1,780) — _ _
) ) 31 31
293 1 1 1
236 502 (191) 453
1,026 1,095 333 1,004
(1) 2021 2026
2026
() 2020 2019
(3) 2019
2019 2019 514
2006 (Pension Protection Act of 2006)
2020 441 429
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
25,554 21,398 — — 12,641 10,803 — —
25,466 22,034 2,748 2,544 14,541 12,132 545 478
24,158 19,831 2,495 2,115 13,210 11,040 493 430
88 (636) (2,748) (2,544) (1,900) (1,329) (545) (478)
1,396 1,567  (2,495) (2,115) (569) (237) (493) (430)
2020
88 98 44 2019 43 52
2026
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2030
1,257 1,292 1,388 1,424 1,494 8,795
427 440 453 465 417 2,273
2026
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2030
110 116 121 130 136 787
)
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2020 2019 2021
2020 2019 2021
66 74 67
34 26 33
100 100 100
NAV
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NAV
NAV
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
€Y
( ) ( ) ( )
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
127 119 763 405 — — — — 890 524
— — 5,023 4,140 — — — — 5,023 4,140
— — 3,931 3,452 — — — — 3,931 3,452
14,375 12,483 2 2 — — — — 14,377 12,485
— — 4,690 3,338 160 181 8,236 7,580 13,086 11,099
— — 11 9 21 19 856 473 888 501
14,502 12,602 14,420 11,346 181 200 9,092 8,053 38,195 32,201
o
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 90 84
( ) 2019 12 31 31
( )
2020 12 31 2019
12 31 946 ( 2.5 ) 984 (

3.1 )
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11
401(K)
2020 2019
243 242
12
( (
2017 12 31 437,318 31,554
(22,082) (3,060)
42,283 5,868
2018 12 30 457,519 34,362
(20,053) (2,691)
49,870 6,746
2019 12 29 487,336 38,417
(21,765) (3,148)
21,760 3,221
2021 487,331 38,490
2020 3,119,843,000
3.75 2018 3.54 2020
2021 2021 23 2021
2018 12 17 50

259/429
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13 « )
C )

( ) C )
2017 12 31 (7,351) 232 (6,150) 70 (13,199)

(232) ® (232)
2018 (1,518) — ®) (265) (1,791)
2018 12 30 (8.,869) — (6,158) (195) (15,222)
2019 164 — (733) (100) (669)
2019 12 29 (8,705) — (6,891) (295) (15,891)
2020 (233) 1 (66) 947 649
2021 (8,938) 1 (6,957) 652 (15,242)
(1) ASU 2016-01

C ) C )
10
«C )
14
( 100
)
( )
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2020 2019 2018 13
« ) 2020 2019 2018
209 267 265
15
2021 2019 12 29 2018 12 30
) 2020 2019 2018
5.59 5.72 5.70
2,632.8 2,645.1 2,681.5
118.3 136.3 139.0
(80.4) (97.8) (92.5)
— 0.7 0.7
2,670.7 2,684.3 2,728.7
5.51 5.63 5.61
2020 18
2021
2019
2019
( )
2018
2018
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16
2021 2005
2012 2005
2012 26
2012 2012
650 2012 26 2005
2012
2020 277
2020 1,005 2019 977
2018 978
2020 210 2019 227 2018 192
2020
2019 2018 248 209 264
2020 804 2019 823
2018 827 2020 2019 2018
1.76 1.71 1.73
10
2020 2019 2018

10
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2020 16.42 2019 17.80 2018
17.98
2020 2019 2018

1.47 2.56 2.77

15.33 16.27 15.77

« ) 7.0 7.0 7.0

2.60 2.80 2.70

2021 2019 12 29 2018 12 30
(G ( ) ( )

2017 12 31 111,306 90.48 5,480
17,115 129.51
(16,228) 75.44
(2,541) 112.90

2018 12 30 109,652 98.29 3,214
19,745 131.94
(14,785) 82.43
(2,975) 125.11

2019 12 29 111,637 105.63 4,478
20,723 151.41
(16,275) 86.05
(1,835) 137.62

2021 114,250 116.22 4,703
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2020 2019 2018 1,021
807 1,028
2021
C )
@
62.20 -72.54 11,111 1.8 70.79 11,111 70.79
90.44 -100.06 22,304 3.6 95.36 22,304 95.36
100.48 -115.67 28,180 5.6 108.64 27,695 108.51
129.51 -131.94 32,553 7.6 130.85 145 130.53
141.06 -151.41 20,102 9.1 151.41 34 151.41
114,250 6.0 116.22 61,289 96.97

o

2019 12 29 2018 12 30 111,637 ( 6.0

) 109,652 ( 6.2 ) 2019 12 29 2018 12 30

60,761 ( 88.88 ) 54,862 ( 82.03 )
(
) 2020
(
)
200
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2021
«c )
2019 12 29 16,769 2,174
5,051 816
(6,042) (702)
(780) (52)
2021 14,998 2,236
2020 2019 2018
139.58 121.31 119.67
2020 2019 2018
650 586 614
2020 2019 2018
160.54 124.67 120.64
2020 2019 2018
91 119 129
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17 *
)
2020 2019
) 2020 2019 2018 2019 2018
o
2,460 2,010 1,850 22.4 8.6
2,364 2,434 2,484 2.9) (2.0)
4,824 4,444 4,334 8.5 2.5
@
2,350 2,392 2,403 a.n 0.4)
2,100 2,201 1,979 (4.6) 11.2
4,450 4,593 4,382 G.1) 4.8
683 621 637 9.9 (2.5)
958 906 918 5.7 1.2)
1,641 1,528 1,555 7.4 a.n
376 362 422 3.7 (14.2)
1,141 1,313 1,436 (13.1) (8.6)
1,517 1,675 1,858 9.4) 9.9)
13 12 13 8.2 (5.5)
888 974 1,036 (8.8) (6.0)
901 986 1,049 (8.6) (6.0)
480 441 436 8.9 1.2
240 230 239 4.1 (3.9)
720 671 675 7.2 (0.6)
6,362 5,839 5,761 9.0 1.4
7,691 8,059 8,092 (4.6) 0.4)
14,053 13,898 13,853 1.1 0.3
o
@
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)
) 2020 2019 2018 22329 Zgéig
10,175 9,641 9,073 5.5 6.3
4,880 4,309 4,047 13.2 6.5
15,055 13,950 13,120 7.9 6.3
REMICADE”
2,508 3,079 3,664 (18.5) (16.0)
346 204 436 18.0 (32.7)
893 1,007 1,226 (11.4) (17.8)
3,747 4,380 5,326 (14.4) (17.8)
SIMPONI _ SIMPONI ARIA®
1,155 1,159 1,051 0.3) 10.2
1,088 1,029 1,033 5.8 0.4)
2,243 2,188 2,084 2.6 5.0
STELARA”
5,240 4,346 3,469 20.6 25.3
2,467 2,015 1,687 22.4 19.4
7,707 6,361 5,156 21.1 23.4
TREMFYA”
926 764 453 21.3 68.5
421 248 01 69.9 o
1,347 1,012 544 33.2 85.9
11 10 10 6.4 4.5
11 10 10 6.4 4.5
1,735 1,507 1,378 8.6 15.9
1,839 1,815 1,926 1.3 (5.7
3,574 3,413 3,304 4.7 3.3
EDURANT®
(rilpivirine)
44 50 58 (11.2) (13.7)
920 812 758 13.3 7.1
964 861 816 11.9 5.6

267/429
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)
) 2020 2019 2018 22329 Zgéig
PREZISTAY PREZCOBIX®
REZOLSTA®  sywTUZA®
1,587 1,422 1,169 11.6 21.6
597 689 786 (13.4) (12.3)
2,184 2,110 1,955 3.5 8.0
104 126 151 (17.6) (16.5)
323 315 382 2.6 (17.6)
427 441 533 (3.2) (17.3)
3,001 2,919 2,574 5.9 13.4
3,457 3,409 3,503 1.4 Q.7
6,548 6,328 6,077 3.5 4.1
CONCERTA®
(methylphenidate)
183 233 229 (21.4) 1.7
439 463 434 (5.1) 6.6
622 696 663 (10.6) 4.9
INVEGA SUSTENNA® XEPLION®
INVEGA TRINZA® TREVICTA®
2,314 2,107 1,791 9.8 17.6
1,339 1,224 1,137 9.4 7.7
3,653 3,330 2,928 9.7 13.7
RISPERDAL CONSTA”
296 314 315 (5.9) 0.3)
346 374 422 (7.5) (11.4)
642 688 737 (6.8) 6.7)
298 266 239 12.4 11.4
1,334 1,349 1,510 1.1) (10.7)
1,632 1,614 1,749 1.1 .7
5,002 4,299 4,331 18.5 .7
7,275 6,393 5,513 13.8 16.0
12,367 10,692 9,844 15.7 8.6
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)
) 2020 2019 2018 22329 Zgéig
DARZALEX”
2,232 1,567 1,203 42.4 30.3
1,958 1,430 822 36.9 73.9
4,190 2,998 2,025 39.8 48.0
ERLEADA®
583 297 124 96.1 o
176 35 — o o
760 332 124 o o
IMBRUVICA
1,821 1,555 1,129 17.1 37.7
2,307 1,856 1,486 24.3 24.9
4,128 3,411 2,615 21.0 30.4
VELCADE”
408 751 1,116 (45.7) (32.7)
408 751 1,116 (45.7) (32.7)
2VTIGA”
373 810 1,771 (54.0) (54.3)
2,007 1,985 1,727 5.6 15.0
2,470 2,795 3,498 (11.6) (20.1)
83 70 104 19.2 (32.7)
330 336 362 (1.9 (7.2)
413 407 466 1.7 12.7
2,133 1,684 1,651 26.6 2.0
1,015 939 922 8.2 1.9
3,148 2,623 2,573 20.0 1.9
OPSUMIT
1,008 766 700 31.7 9.4
631 562 515 12.3 9.0
1,639 1,327 1,215 23.5 9.2
UPTRAVI®
955 714 508 33.8 19.3
138 105 65 30.9 62.4
1,003 819 663 33.5 23.5
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)
2020 2019
) 2020 2019 2018 2010 2015
169 205 353 (17.6) (41.9)
247 272 342 (9.2) (20.5)
416 476 695 (12.8) (31.5)
3,509 3,734 4,279 (6.0) 2.7
1,369 1,458 1,537 6.1) (5.2)
4,878 5,192 5,816 (6.0) (10.7)
XARELTO®
2,345 2,313 2,477 1.4 (6.6)
2,345 2,313 2,477 1.4 (6.6)
INVOKANAZ  INVOKAMET®
564 536 711 5.2 (24.6)
231 199 170 16.3 17.3
795 735 881 8.2 (16.5)
PROCRITC EPREX®
277 505 674 (45.1) (25.1)
274 285 314 (3.8) 9.2)
552 790 988 (30.2) (20.0)
323 380 417 (15.1) 9.1
864 974 1,053 (11.3) (7.6)
1,186 1,353 1,470 (12.4) (8.0)
25,735 23,874 23,286 7.8 2.5
19,837 18,324 17,448 8.3 5.0
45,572 42,198 40,734 8.0 3.6
— — 371 — ok
— — 638 — o
_ —_ 1,009 — e
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2020 2019
2020 2019 2018 2019 2018

1,452 1,443 1,283 0.6 12.5
1,594 1,554 1,363 2.6 14.0
3,046 2,997 2,646 1.6 13.3
4,779 5,319 5,281 (10.2) 0.7
2,984 3,520 3,604 (15.2) (2.3)
7,763 8,839 8,885 12.2) (0.5)

793 863 841 (8.2) 2.6

487 575 577 (15.3) 0.3)
1,280 1,438 1,418 (11.0) 1.4

743 889 911 (16.4) Q.4

427 591 591 (27.8) 0.0
1,170 1,480 1,502 (21.0) 1.4
1,648 1,652 1,599 0.2) 3.3

966 1,068 1,100 (9.6) (2.9)
2,614 2,720 2,699 (3.9) 0.8

Q)

1,595 1,915 1,930 (16.7) 0.8)
1,104 1,286 1,336 14.1) (3.8)
2,699 3,201 3,266 15.7) (2.0)
3,249 3,828 4,125 (15.1) 7.2)
4,983 5,673 5,776 12.2) (1.8)
8,232 9,501 9,901 (13.4) (4.0)
1,535 1,637 1,657 (6.2) 1.2)
2,304 2,458 2,345 (6.2) 4.8
3,839 4,095 4,002 6.2) 2.3
1,714 2,192 2,468 (21.8) 11.2)
2,679 3,215 3,431 (16.7) (6.3)
4,392 5,406 5,899 (18.8) (8.4)
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2020 2019
) 2020 2019 2018 2019 2018
1,557 1,794 1,777 (13.2) 0.9
2,362 2,830 2,776 (16.5) 2.0
3,919 4,624 4,553 (15.2) 1.6
1,213 1,304 1,237 (7.0) 5.4
1,781 2,088 2,065 14.7) 1.1
2,994 3,392 3,302 11.7) 2.7
344 490 540 (29.7) 9.4)
581 742 711 @1.7) 4.4
925 1,232 1,251 (24.9) (1.6)
11,036 12,384 12,837 (10.9) (3.5)
11,923 13,579 14,157 12.2) 4.1)
22,959 25,963 26,994 (11.6) (3.8)
43,133 42,097 41,884 2.5 0.5
39,451 39,962 39,697 1.3) 0.7
82,584 82,059 81,581 0.6 0.6
(©)
*
** 100
C D
2020 2019 2018
) 2020 2019
(€) @ [©)
(1,064) 2,061 2,320 27,355 26,618
15,462 8,816 12,568 66,158 56,292
3,044 7,286 4,397 49,578 49,462
17,442 18,163 19,285 143,091 132,372
® 945 835 1,286
©) 31,803 25,356
16,497 17,328 17,999 174,894 157,728
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( ) 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
248 328 438 785 765 688
863 950 1,012 4,006 3,910 3,802
1,980 1,912 1,843 2,140 2,014 2,103
3,001 3,190 3,293 6,931 6,689 6,593
256 308 377 300 320 336
3,347 3,498 3,670 7,231 7,009 6,929
(©)
( ) 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019
43,133 42,097 41,884 49,951 41,528
18,980 18,466 18,753 49,363 48,015
( ) 5,335 5,941 6,113 2,734 2,862
15,136 15,555 14,831 5,484 5,486
82,584 82,059 81,581 107,532 97,891
1,029 1,049
66,333 58,788
82,584 82,059 81,581 174,894 157,728
2020 16.0 12.0 12.0
2019 15.0 12.0 11.0
2018
14.0 11.0 11.0
@ « ) « )
@
®3)
39
11
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43 ( 40
(Alios)
(argenx)
(Actelion)
APS 20
®)
®
NIZORAL
(X01)
17
AMO
(LifeScan)
(6) 2020 2019
2020 2019

(DR. CI:LABO)
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18
2020 73
75
2020
( )
(
)
2020
( ) (
20 60 )
16
2020
(Verily)
( )
2020 10 61 ( )
( ) 60 12
16

20 77 13

2019 58 14

68
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2019

2019

16
2019

2019

2018

FDA

17

18

12

11

2020

30

109.06

34
23.5

20

2020

10

10

276/429

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooooooo
FDA
(Auris Health, Inc.)
2,300 (2019
21 )
2020
15
15.3
( )
2020
55 95



2020

2020

20 )

2019

Corporation)

2018

2018

2018

20

20

12

GAAP
2021
8.3 11.8
) 337
357
( 2027 )
2021
ASP 28
27
( ) « )
21

N1ZORAL®  Roc®

(Jabil Inc.)
(Ethicon Endo-Surgery)
12
2020
2019 12 29

2771429
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2019 2018

(ldorsia, Ltd.)(

( 28.55
445
38.7 (
243
(Fortive
)
2018
(DePuy Synthes)
2021



19

ASC 450-20-25

2021
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(
)
ASC 450-20
ASR™ XL (DePuy ASR™ XL Acetabular
™ ™ - . ®
System) ASR (DePuy ASR " Hip Resurfacing System) PINNACLE

(PINNACLE® Acetabular Cup System)
( JOHNSONS® ) INVOKANA®
(ETHICON PHYSIOMESH® Flexible Composite Mesh)
ASR™ XL ASR™
® ®
RISPERDAL®  XARELTO

PHYS 1OMESH"
560 7,800 14,900 9,300 12,600 25,000

2791429

RISPERDAL®  XARELTO"
PHYS1OMESH”
2021
PINNACLE®

INVOKANA®

300 4,200
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2010 (DePuy Orthopaedics, Inc.)(
) ASR™ XL ASR™
(
) 2013 11 ASR
2013 31 ASR
ASR (ASR Hip System) (
) 2015 2017
2013 31 2017 15
ASR 10,000
ASR
ASR
ASR™
®
PINNACLE
( )
2019

PINNACLE®
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(Ethicon, Inc.)(
)
(MDL)
(
) 2019 11
2020
2020
2016 PHYSIOMESH"
(MCL)
(C.R. Bard, Inc.)
® ® ®
PROCEED (PROCEED™ Mesh) PROCEED

(PROCEED” Ventral Patch)
2019
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2019 PROLENE"
Hernia System) 107
2020
@ @
PHYS I0OMESH PROCEED
PROLENE "
@
RISPERDAL
(Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( JPI )
2019 10
2020 6.8
@
XARELTO JPI
) XARELTO® JPI
@
JPI XARELTO
2019 12 2020
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(PROLENETM Polypropylene

PROCEED"
80 (
(
(Bayer AG)
2019
2019

XARELTO®
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(  JOHNSON' S° )
(Johnson & Johnson
Consumer 1Inc.)
2020 (
)
2020
(Ingham v. Johnson & Johnson, et al.) ( ED
207476  (Mo. App.)) 2018 47 21
2021 25
( )
( )

283/429



(Imerys Talc Canada, Inc.)

2019
Inc.)
)
(
2020
)
)
2020
)
2021
11
2018
)
2019
2020
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(Imerys Talc America,

(Imerys Talc Vermont, Inc.)

2019

)
11
( )
(
(
)
(Cyprus Mines Corporation)(
2021
(  JoHNson' s°
2019 12
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2019
2019
2019
2019 10 2019 12 2020 (
JOHNSON' §° )
2020
(In re Johnson &
Johnson Talc Stockholder Derivative Litigation)
2020
2020 10 2021
2019 (  JOHNSON' S° )
(ERISA)
2019 2020
2020 2020

2020 10
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JOHNSON' S°
(Consumer Legal Remedies Act)
65
2019
2019 10
2019 12
2020 2020
2020
2021
2020 (Abtahi Law Group)
65
2021
2021
(Senator Murray)
2020 11
®
INVOKANA
JPI

2016 12
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ELMIRON®
JPI
ELMIRON®
2020 12
ELMIRON®
2016 11 (Medldea, L.L.C.)( ) ATTUNE
(ATTUNE® Knee Systerm)
2017
(DePuy Synthes Products, Inc.)
(DePuy Synthes Sales, Inc.)( )
(posterior stabilized knee systems)
6,558,426 ( 426 )y 8,273,132 ( 132
)y 8,721,730 ( 730 ) 9,492,280 ( 280
) ATTUNE” sorcAM™

(soFcAan™ contact)
2017
2019 11 2020
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2016 12 (Dr. Ford Albritton) (Acclarent,
Inc.)( ) RELIEVA® Spin  RELIEVEA SpinPlus’
9,011,412
8,414,473 2021 10
2017 11 (Board of Regents, The

(TissueGen, Inc.)(

(Ethicon US, LLC)(

University of Texas System)

vIcryL® (VICRYL® Plus Antibacterial Sutures)

(MONOCRYL® Plus Antibacterial Sutures) PDS®
STRATAFIX® PDS® (STRATAFIX® PDS® Antibacterial Sutures)

(STRATAFIX® MONOCRYL® Plus Antibacterial Sutures)

6,596,296 (
) 7,033,603 ( 603 )
uT
(IPR) (
2020 USPTO 296
uT 603

STRATAFIX® pDS®

288/429

uT )

MONOCRYL®
(PDS® Plus Antibacterial Sutures)

STRATAFIX® MONOCRYL®

296
2018 12
USPTO )
603
pps”



2018

) 6,491,701 (
) 6,800,056 (
) 8,620,473 (

) 9,452,276 (
200 056
906
200 473
USPTO 200
276
2021
2019
ZERO-P-VA™

(ZERO-P NATURAL™ Plate)

(SYNFIX® Evolution System)

(ZERO-P-VA™ Spacer) ZERO-P”

sYNEIX® LR

RSB

RSB

(Life Spine, Inc.)

(Precision Spine, Inc.)

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooo0000
(Intuitive Surgical, Inc.)
(Intuitive Surgical Operations, Inc.)(
(
MonarchTM Platform 6,246,200 ( 200
701 ) 6,522,906 ( 906
056 ) 8,142,447 ( 447
473 ) 8,801,601 ( 601
276 )
601 701 447 276
USPTO
701 2019 12 USPTO 601
056 2020
447 701 906
2020 12 USPTO 601
(RSB Spine LLC)( RSB )
(DePuy Synthes, Inc.)
2019 10 RSB

RSB
® ™

(ZERO-P® Spacer) ZERO-P NATURAL

GYNFIX® LR Spacer)  SYNFIX® Evolution

6,984,234 9,713,537

2019 11

(Medacta USA, Inc.)
2020
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2020

(Synthes, Inc.)(

Planning Services)
Solutions)
9,672,302

ANDA

FDA

Invents Act)
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ooooooo
(Osteoplastics, LLC)
(Medical Device Business Services, Inc.)
)
PROPLAN CMF® (PROPLAN CMF® Virtual Surgical
TruMatch® CMF (TruMatch® CMF Personalize
8,781,557 9,929,920 9,330,206 9,626,756 9,672,617
9,275,191 2020
9,292,920 9,929,920
2020
2020 10
2022 10
ANDA )
FDA  ANDA
ANDA
2011 (2011 America
USPTO ANDA
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2YTIGA"
2017 11 (Janssen Inc.)
Inc.)( )
2YTIGA"
) (Apotex Inc.)(
( )
2019 10 422
2019 11
2019 422
ANDS
)
Laboratories Ltd.)
DRL ) ( )
2020 11 2021
2021
2020 422
ANDS
Corporation)( JAMP ) (
2022
XARELTO"
2020 JPI1
Intellectual Property GmbH) (
9,539,218 ( 218 )
ANDA
( DRL
JPI1

2020 11
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(Janssen Oncology

2,661,422 ( 422 )
( ANDS
)
2019
ANDS
2YTIGA”
(Pharmascience Inc.)(
(Or. Reddy’ s

(Dr. Reddy’ s Laboratories, Inc.)(

422
7yT16A"
(JAMP Pharma
)
®
422 ZYTIGA
(Bayer
)
XARELTO®
®
DRL XARELTO
JPI DRL
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INVOKANA®/ INVOKAMET®/ INVOKAMET XR®

2017 JP1
Development, LLC)

( MTPC
7,943,582 (
)

ANDA

Private Ltd.)

)
Inc.)(
)

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)(

)
2021

2017
7,943,788 (

8,785,403(

(Janssen Research &

(Cilag GmbH International)

(Janssen Pharmaceutica NV)( )
) INVOKANA®  INVOKAWET® INVOKAMET XR® MTPC
582 ) 8,513,202 ( 202
INVOKANA®  INVOKAWET® INVOKAMET XR®
(MSN Laboratories
(MSN Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( MSN
(Zydus Pharmaceuticals (USA)
) (Sandoz, Inc.)(
(Lupin Ltd.) (Lupin
) (
2021 MTPC 2020 12
MTPC  INVOKANA®  INVOKAMET® INVOKAMET XR® MTPC
788 ) 8,222,219 ( 219 )
403 ) INVOKANA®  INVOKAMET®
ANDA
( )

2020 10
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2019 MTPC  INVOKAMET XR® 582 202
INVOKAMET XR® ANDA MSN
2019 10 MTPC 788
INVOKANA®  INVOKAMET XR® ANDA
MSN 2019
10 MTPC 788 INVOKAMET®
ANDA
( DRL )
2021 MTPC  INVOKAVET XR® 582
202 INVOKAMET XR® ANDA
(Macleods Pharmaceuticals Ltd.)
(Macleods Pharma USA, Inc.)( )
2021 INVOKANA®
10,617,668 INVOKANA®
ANDA
( )
®
MTPC INVOKANA
INVOKAMET® INVOKAMET XR®
2020 10 MTPC
2,534,024 2,671,357 INVOKANA®
ANDS (Sandoz Canada Inc.)( )
( ) 2022
MTPC
®
INVOKANA
OPSUMIT®
2020 10 (Actelion Pharmaceuticals Ltd)(
) 7,004,781 ( 781 )
oPSUMIT® ANDA
(Laurus Labs Limited) (PharmaQ, Inc.)( )
781 oPSUMIT® 2021
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2020 ( )
2,659,770 ( 770 ) OPSUMIT® 10 mg
ANDS ( )
2022
2020 770 OPSUMIT® 10 mg
ANDS (
) 2022
2020 770 2,621,273
( 273 ) OPSUMIT® 10 mg
ANDS ( )
2022
OPSUMIT®
INVEGA SUSTENNA®
2018 JPI( )
9,439,906 ( 906 ) INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDA (Teva
Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.)( )
2020 10
2019 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDA (Mylan Laboratories Limited)(
)
2020 906 USPTO
USPTO 2020
2019 12 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDA (Mallinckrodt
PLC) (Specgx LLC)( )

294/429
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2018 (
) 2,309,629 ( 629 ) 2,655,335 (
335 ) INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDS (Teva Canada Limited)( )
( ) 629
2020 INVEGA SUSTENNA
335 335
(Public Judgment and Reasons)
2020 11 335 INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDS ( )
2022
2021 335 INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDS ( )
2022
INVEGA
®
SUSTENNA
IMBRUVICA®
2018 (Pharmacyclics LLC)(
) (Janssen Biotech, Inc.)( JBI ) 1mBRUVICA®
8,008,309 7,514,444 8,697,711 8,735,403
8,957,079 9,181,257 8,754,091 8,497,277 8,925,015 8,476,284 8,754,090
8,999,999 9,125,889 9,801,881 9,801,883 9,814,721 9,795,604
9,296,753 9,540,382 9,713,617 9,725,455 IMBRUVICA®
140mg ANDA
JBI
(Cipla
Limited) (Cipla USA Inc.)( )
(Lek Pharmaceuticals d.d.)( )
2019 JBI 10,125,140
10,106,548
2019 JBI 10,106,548

10,125,140
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2019 JBI 7,514,444 8,003,309 8,476,284
8,497,277 8,697,711 8,753,403 8,754,090 8,754,091 8,952,015
8,957,079 9,181,257 9,296,753 9,655,857 9,725,455 10,010,507
10,106,548 10,125,140 IMBRUVICA®
ANDA (Alvogen Pine Brook LLC)
(Natco Pharma Ltd.)( )
2019 JBI 10,016,435
2019 JBI
10,213,386
2019 JBI
10,294,231 10,294,232 2019
2020 10
2019 9,795,604 USPTO
2020 USPTO 604
2020 JBI 10,478,439
2020
JBI 10,463,668 2020 10
JBI 10,752,634
10,695,350 10,653,696
2020 12
2020 JBI 7,514,444 8,008,309 8,476,284
8,497,277 8,697,711 8,753,403 8,754,090 8,754,001 8,952,015
8,957,079 9,181,257 9,296,753 9,655,857 9,725,455 10,010,507
10,106,548 10,125,140 10,213,386 10,478,439 IMBRUVICA®
ANDA (Zydus
Worldwide DMCC) (Cadila Healthcare Limited)(
)
2022

JBI IMBRUVICA®
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uPTRAVI®

2020 ( )

( y  upTRAVI® 7,205,302
8,791,122 9,284,280 UPTRAVI® ANDA
(Alembic Pharmaceuticals Limited)
(Alembic Pharmaceuticals Inc.)( )
(
MSN ) VGYAAN (VGYAAN Pharmaceuticals LLC)(
VGYAAN )
( ) 2021
VGYAAN MSN
uPTRAVI®
®

INVEGA TRINZA

2020 JPI1

( )
(Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
(Mylan Institutional LLC)( )
INVEGA TRINZA®

10,143,693 INVEGA TRINZA® ANDA

INVEGA TRINZA®
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( AWP )

( AWP )

AWP

AWP AWP
AWP

AWP
AWP
AWP
(Centocor, Inc.)
(Ortho Biotech Inc.)( )
(ALZA Corporation) AWP
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2014

DURAGESIC®

Inc.)(

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooooooo
JPI
® ®
NUCYNTA NUCYNTA™ ER 3,100
(Tasmanian Alkaloids Pty, Ltd.) (Noramco,
2016 )
JPI
370
2,800
( 2804 )
2019 10
572
JPI
465 JPI
2019 10

JPI
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JPI
2017
JPI 38
2019 10 40
2020 10 40 10
50
2019
(Controlled Substances Act)
2019
2020
2017 2019 12
2020
2019 11
2020
2020
2020 12
2020

2020 10
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2019 12
2020
(In re Johnson & Johnson
Opioid Stockholder Derivative Litigation) 2020
2020 2020
12 2021
2020
2021
2021
2012 (DePuy, Inc.)(
) (Johnson & Johnson Services,
Inc.)( ) ASR™ XL
( )
2014
(False Claims Act) 2016
2017
2020 2020

2020
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2012 10
( )
2019 2019
2019
2020
344
2020 10
2012 12

2020

2020

2020

(Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc.)(

(Therakos, Inc.)(
2000

Uvar th® Cellex®
0CD
2013
(Gores Capital Partners , L.P.)

0CD
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2016
2019
2019 10
41
2020
344
11
0CD )
)
®
Uvadex ( )
0CD 2014 0CD

2020 11
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2014
(Johnson & Johnson Consumer Companies, Inc.)(
JJCl )
(Mississippi Consumer Protection Act) JOHNSON' S° JOHNSON' S°
(2012 )
2018 12
JJCI
2019
JJCI 2021

2020

2020

2020 12
41
2016 JPI JPI 2006 JPI
2016 (Janssen Products LP)
HIV PREZISTA®  INTELENCE®
2012 12
2021

® ®

2017 JBI REMICADE SIMPONI ARIA
2019 JBI

2019
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2017

DARZALEX® oLys10® REMICADE sIMPONI® STELARA®  zyTica®

2017
(DePuy Synthes, Inc. spinal
implants)
2018 (CADE)
(Johnson & Johnson do Brasil IndlUstria e Comércio de Produtos
para Salde Ltda) 30
(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act)
)
2018 JOHNSON' S
( JJCI )

2020 10 JJCI
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2014 (United States Customs and Boarder Protection)( Us CcBpP
) (Janssen Ortho LLC)( )
(PREZISTA® )
(Penalty Notice) 2020 US CBP
2020 10 US CBP
2013 12
2020
2020
2020 (Genmab A/S) 2012
(daratumumab)
2015

(Johnson & Johnson Vision Care,

Inc.) 30

2015
2015 11

2015
JPI

(Ortho-McNeil-Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
( )

XARELTO®
2020 11

2017 (Pfizer, Inc.)( )

REMICADE®
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2017 REMICADE”

REMICADE”

REMICADE® (In re REMICADE®
Antitrust Litigation)

2018 (Walgreen Co.) (Kroger Co.)
REMICADE”
2019
2020
®
2019 REMICADE
2017 10

(United States Anti-Terrorism Act)

2020 2021
2018 10
(Actelion Clinical Research, Inc.)( )
®
TRACLEER
TRACLEER”
2019

2019 10
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2017

2019

(Blue Cross & Blue Shield of

7yT16A"

(BTG International

(Sherman Act)

2018 12
) 28
12
ZYTIGA”
2019
Louisiana)
Limited)
2YTIGA°
2020
2YTIGA”
2019
R&D (Janssen R&D Ireland)(
(Gilead)
(Bristol-Myers Squibb)
2020

2020
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2019 10

2006

2020

2020 10
)

Act)

BWI

2020

BWI
2019 11

2016
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(Innovative Health, LLC)
(Biosense Webster, Inc.)( BWI

BWI 2020

2019 11

(Sanofi Consumer Health, Inc.)

(Boehringer Ingelheim Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

2006

N- (NDVA)

2020 12

(Fortis Advisors LLC)(
)

2019

(Superfund)

(Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
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20
2018
18 (
« )
( )
19 23 (
2020
( ) @
2018 12 30 194 — 48 242
2019 30) — (32) (62)
2019 12 29 164 — 16 180
— 43 405 448
(29 24 (399) (404)
— (67) 13)® (80)
2021 [€)) 135 — 9 144
)
@
(©)
*
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2002 404

2021
— (2013 ) (C0S0)

2021

2021
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
At Jamaary 3, 3021 and December 249, 200149
(Dodlars in Millions Excepl Share and Per Share Amounts] (Sote 1)

220 2019

Assris
Current asseis
Cash o cash equivilents (Notes | and 2) 5 13,985 17,305
Markecalede securitles {Notes 1 aml 2) 11,200 1,982
Accounts receivable trade, less allowances for doubtlul accounts 5293 (2019, §226) 13,576 14,401
Inventodkes {Notes 1 and 1) 9344 £, 020
Prepaid expenses and other recelvables A3 2,382
Axsets hold for wale (Note 1R) — 44
Total current assets 51,237 45,274
Propeny, plant and cquipment, net (Notes Tand 4§ I8, TEE 17,658
Intangible ssuets, med (Notes 1 amd 5) 53,402 A7 543
Cionchwill [Moirs 1 and 5) h 200 nhaia
[heferred mxes on income (Mote B) H534 7819
Uther amsits h5h3 5,695
Toital assers $ 174,804 157,728
Liabilivies and Sharehoblers” Equiry
Current Habilities
Loans and motes. payahle (Note T) 1 2031 1,202
Accounis payahle A505 8,544
Aol Nahilliles 1,968 9715
Acoraed pebates, petuims and promotions 11.513 10,843
Accrusd compensation and erplsver relsted obligations 1404 3,058
Accrued taxes an Incomie (Mobe H) 1,292 2,266
Total curvent liabilities 42,453 15,964
Lagelenm diln (Mot 7) 2,635 06,4
Deferred faxes an Income {Moie ) 7204 5,950
Employee related ohligations (Mowes 9 and 10) 10,771 10,663
Long-termn taxes payable (Noge 1) 6,550 7444
Chher liabilinkes 11548 11,734
Total lFabilities 111,616 58,257
Commbiments ars Contngencies (Mo 15)
Sharchelders” equity
Profermed stack — withont par vahae (mithenized and amdssied 2,000,000 shares) — —
Caosmmon stock — par vilue 5100 per share (Note 12) (authorized 4, 420,000,000 shares; ssued
18R AN shares) A1d0 120
Accumiilated other comprehensive income (los) (Moee 17) {15.243) {15851}
Retained ramings 112450 110,659

101,768 57 fna
l=aac commamon siock hehd im ireasury, at cosd [Moe 12) (87200 000 shanes and 7, 0860000 shans) Kl 450 AT
Total shareholders® equity e A7
Total llabilities and sharehabders” equity $ 174,804 157,728

S Notes te Corsolidied Flnolold Simtemenis

L]
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JOHMNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSDLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(Dallars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Amounts) (Mote 1)

2020 2015 i

Sales to customiers ] 12 584 12,0559 L
Caet of prochicts solid 2047 27,556 27,1
Ciross profit 54,157 54,504 S 4
Selling. marketing and siministrative experies X204 F20TH 22,540
Hesearch and development expense (FRE.] 11,855 1,775
Ii-process research and developement { Note 5] 181 &0 1,126
Interest incoms (111} (357) {h11)
Enberest expense, net of portion capitabiced {Mote 4) 20 318 1,805
Clther jincome ) expemse, net 2 B 25215 § 405
Hestrucmuring (Mooe 20) 247 ThE 251
Earmings el prowision (or texes oo ncome L6 57 17,028 17,0
Provision for taxes on Income {Mote ) 1,783 2,04 &,
Net carnings 5 14,714 15,118 15,2497
Med earnings per share (Notes 1 and 15)

Basie 5 559 5.72 5.70

Diluted 1 G551 i | A.61
Average shares outstanding (Motes 1 amd 15)

Basic 26328 2,645.1 EERLS

Diluted 24707 24840 2,728.7

Sew Notes to Corsoltdried Finenciol Stmtements

40
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JOHMNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Dallars in Millians) (Note 1)
2020 2015 2018
Mot eamibngs 5 14714 15,119 15247
Oither comprebensive Income (loss), net of tax
Fureign cumency ramskation {233) 164 {1,518)
Securilies:
Ulnrealized hedding galn loss ) arsing during period i e {n
Keclassificatlons o earmings — - |
Meet change 1 — -
FEmplayee hemeill plans:
Prior service credil (oost), net of amontizatig 1,296 (1) (34)
Gadn (loss), net of amonization {1.135) (714} {56)
E et of exchange raies (229) {1} 92
et change (65) (7 L]
Drexivatlves & hedyes:
Unrealized gain (boss) arising during period 1,000 {107 [EE)]
Reclassifications o earmings {53) 7 {192)
Met change w7 {11XH (265)
Other comprebensive income (Toss) (L] {6 {1,781)
Comprehensive Income ] 15,3463 14,450 1.5

Tha tax effects in other comprehensive Income Tor the fecal years 2020, 2009 al 2000 respectlvely: Forckga Currency Translaton; $536 million, $19
rnIIIJunIimd 5256 million; Employee Benedil Plans: 521 million, $222 million ol S millioo, Derivatees & Hedges: 3252 miltion, 327 million aml
S70 million

Sew Motes to Corsoltdivied Financial Sdmemenis

41
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Deollars in Millions) (Mate 1)
ther Treasury
Hetaimed Comprelensi = Siock Sinck
Tastall Earmimgs Tncamee {Ioss) ls=ped Amoumi Amoumi
Balance, December 30, 2017 -] G, 160 101,793 (13,189} A120 [31.554)
Cuamilative sdhrdment™ [ ] {2543 202y
Pt eamings 15297 152497
Cash divibends pasd (5354 per shase) {5450 (1451
E-mployes compensaibon and stock sption plans. 1, b4th {110 R¥ ]
Repurchase of common sinck [LF 2] (5.86H)
CEht {15} (15)
Cxher comprohensive eonme (loss), petof L1790} 11.7531)
Balance, December 33, 2008 % 106216 {15.222) 3120 %ﬂl
Pt earmudin g 1A L RL ]
Cash dividends pakd {5175 per share) {9917} (95171
Fmployes cmpensativan and wnck optlon plans 1933 (T P
Hepuichse af coifimon sk {6, Tl |6, 7Eh)
xhwt m (L]
U xher comprehenadve inoome [lnss), nel ol tax [[52]] [hit)
Balance, Decenmber 19, 2019 P— i — T — L — | I —"...".| 1 |
et pamings 14,714 14,714
Cash dlividends pakd (5158 per shase) [LLE ] (RLETN
Emyoyer compenvsabon and siock opgion plans 2217 [Eall] 1148
Riepurchase of commmon siock [ ri |1 {x21)
xher {71} kil
Cnher comprehenshee income (lossl, petof i ikl
Ralanes, Tanivery 3, 2021 5 63,278 113,800 [15.242) L1120 [ 8. 430)

"t Nt 1 b0 Uneratlldioted] Firmancial Statements for addtonal details on the ellect of cumulative adiusimests i petaised camlngs.

Sew Motes to Corsoltdivied Finenciol Simtemenrs

a2
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JOHMNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{Dollars in Millions) (Note 1)
01 018 plAL]

(Cansh o Trom eperating soivities
Pt eamings ] 14,714 15014 15297
Adjustenenis 1o reconcile net camings 1o cash Mows bom operating asciivitdes

Dhipre Laitbon and armortieation of propenty aned issingiblis T3 L] A

Soock based compersatbon 1005 T 578

Aussel witie-doama Xy 1 4#6 ]

Costingesi. oorskleration reversal {1,103 —_ —

et gabn on sabe of assets usineses. iy {2.154) {1217

Dieletred tax prosdslon (1.141) (AT LRRES]

Crodit lesses and aconunts recefyshle allowanges 3] {20} (E1Y]
Changes in ausets and llahilixies, netof effects from scquisitions and divestones

DPecreasey Increasc) In accounis recelvahle T [F.:21] 11.185)

Ircresss |n irvenionies {2h5) 277 ()

rcrease I acoiuns payahle and socroed lsbdlices 140 A L]

bicruaas | oder canrt ssd ron-cunment assots [,704) {1,054 (275)

Ircreased Dvcrease) im ocher carent and non-current Lahilides Tdd 1,425 [150144)
Toet cah flovs from sperating activities 2153 23416 1330
Cash Miovws from investing activities.
Additiem i prapirty, plant and egudpment [EETH] [T [T
Perscpeils From the disposal of asseeshusingses, et K i 4,205 133
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (Note 15) [7azn (A0} (i)
Prurchanss of |nvesimenis (2104 [ F [T
Sales of investments [FA KT Aany A
el stppewt agreemaenis activicy, nt [T 3R —
Cxher (primarily scemas ansd milesiones) 15213 44 (4h41)
réed canh msed by imvesting activities (2OHL5) {6, 154) [3.167)
Cash flonws fromm tinancing activiises
Diiwlenis 1o sharchsaliins [RLIEY] {RI1T) 191,481
Fopunchane of common siock Rz {R746) [5AGE)
Pencowids {rom shori-torm dehi 3741 A [ ]
Repaymens of shorberm dehi (2860 {1 (2Am)
Proveeds. [nom Jongs lerm debt, et af Bsiance ooy TN 3 5
Repagrmd of kog-tenm debi [1.064) (LALE) {1,555
Pencovihi Fom the exercise of smck opionyemplosee withholding tas on siock swarnds, ne 1114 154 M
Crodit supgport agreements activiry, net JEER]] Lo =
txher {294) 475 (174
Net cash used acthities O (seisi _ gasio)
EMect of exchange rale changes on casd and cash equivalents 5] [E]] [241)
{Decrvase Jncrvane I cash and cash equivalents (EE ] (L] 28
Cash amil cash equivalents, beginning of year (Note 1) 17 NG 107 17,
Canly arnd cash equitval enil ol year {Noie 1} 5 13,985 17,305 18187
Sapplensenial cash low data
Cash pabd during the year for:

Imderesl 3 £ WG 1,048

Irgrrest, niel of amount capilsllsed (21 b7 L]

TF uiset vy 4519 4,181 4570

43
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Treissty stock v (o emploges compensation amd stock opkon plans, nel of sl poocesds

wenployre withholding ras oo stock awanls

1T 1,736 LOAG
Convension of deis ) | ]
Agquisitinns
Falr value of assets scqubd & 7.5 T30 (Mt
Falrhhrd'mlrl-\m—dandmmllkqlmnm (402 {1418} [14H)
Pt i bl Tor goguislitions [Nege 18) 3 7323 SAI0 o]

See Notes fe Corsnlidmied Flnvncia! Simtemenis
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolideted financial statements include the scoounts of Johnsen & Johnson and s subeidiaries (e Company). Intercompany scoounts and
tramsactions are eliminated. Columas and mows within ables may oot add due 1o roanding. Peroentages have been coboulated using scial, non-roeuamded
frgumes.

Descriprion of the Company and Business Segments

The Company has approximately 124,500 employees worldwide engaged in the research and developmens, manufaciure and sale of a broad range of
mrislucts kn thes health care fleld. The Compamy conchicts huslness in virually all courtebes af the world and 1t primary (ocus 15 o products related g
haman health and well-being.

The Company is organioed ineo theee business sepmens: Corsumer Healih {proviously referred 1o as Consumer), Pharmaceutical and Medical
Mevices, The Consumer Healih segment includes a heosed range of products wsed In the haby care, oral care, skin health'heauty, aver-the-counier
pharmaceutical, women's healih and wound care markets, These prodecis are markeied o the genenl public and solzd onlline (eCommence ) and o retil
outiets and distribitor throsghou the wordil The Phamasceutical segment is fooused on six therapeutic areas, including immunelogy, infectious diseases,
tenirscience, oncology, pulmonary hy perteimsion, and cordiovisoulie snd mdabolic diseases. Products in this segment sre distrbuted directly o retailen,
whilesaliers, hosplials and bealth case professionals Tor prescription wse. The Medical Dievlees segmaent inclades a besad snge of prodocis sl s the
oahopaedic, surgery, inerventional solutbom (cardiovascubar and peurovasoular) and eye heakih felds, which are distributed eo whalesalors, hospatals and
retailers, and usedd principally in ibe professional lields by physiclans, nanes, bosplia®h, eve care professionals amd clinles.

Mew Accounting Standards
Recenily Adopted Accounting Standards

ASLU 2008-10: Collaboratlve Amangements

The Company adopied this standard as of the beginning of the lscal vear 2020 This update clarilies the interaction between ASC D00, Collaborative
Armongements asd ASC 06, Revenue [rom Contracts with Customers. The update darifies thal cemain renssctions between participants in a collaborative
arrangement shisild be accounded Tor ander ASC BOG when the counterpany s a cistomer. In addlition, the update preclodes an entliy Trom presenting
corshleratian from a transaciion in a collabortive amangement as mevenae IF the courserpany s ot a customer for that iransaction, The adopden of this
stangdard did not have a material imipact on H]:I‘.nmru.n_l,r'-:. womsslidaved financlal sdaiemenis,

ASL 2= 1: Financlal Instroments - Credip Losses

The Company aclopled this stamdard as of the begioming of the Nocal year 20300 This opadate intmodoces the curmenl expected omedin less (CECL) maodel,
whibch reguines an emizy o measare credit losses Tor cenaln Dnancial ismuments and [nancial assets, nchuding rade recelvables. Under this updaie, on
Imitiad pecognition aml a1 each reponing period, an entity is requined w recognire an allowance that refleces the entty*s carent estimaie of credin losses
expected bo be Incuned over the lile of the financial irsmument, The adoption of this stalard did not have 2 material impagt on the Company's
corsalidised Mnancial statements,

ASLU 2008-14: Compensation - Delined Benelin Plans

The Company adopied this stisdard in the fiscal yesr ended 2020, This standard revised the Ginancial statement mse disclosure requilrements of ASC 715-
20 fowr deTined benefin plan sponsors, The adoptlon of this standand had no impact on the Company’s consolldaied financial sistements. See Note 10 to the
Cnmsabidated Financial Staiements bor defined benelin plan dischosures,
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Accounting Stanilards adapred in the lscal 2008 with & connlative effect to the 2008 opening balande of Retained Earnings
The folboswing talde summarizes the comulative effect adjusimonts maide io the 2018 apening balance of retalncd camings spon adopilon of these
acouanting standards in X 18-

Conmulative Effecl Adjustinemi ncrease

[Tellaars 30 MIRIns) (Decrease]) b Retakned Famings
ASL A48 - Hevenue from Contmacts with Coslomers 5 (47}
ASL 2016-01 - Firancial Inserumesis 232
ASLI 28186 = Income Taxes: Inira-Entlty Transfers (439
Tueal 5 (254

Recenily Issued Accounting Standards

Mat Adopied as of Tanuary 3, 2021

The Company assesers the adoptbon Impacts ol moently lsssed acommting stamlards by tbe Financlal Accouming Standards Raand an the Company's
lMnancial siatements & well as materlal updabes b previous sssessmenis, i1 any, (om the Company s Anaual Report on Foam 10-K for the fiscal year ended
Dewemnber 29, 2019, There wene no new material accounting standands isaoed in lscal 2020 that impaceed the Company.

Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies all highly liguad invesiments with stated maguritics of three mombs or less frnom date of purchase as cash equivadents and all highly
liguild bnwestmsents with stxied matarites of geeater than three months from the date of purchase as current marketable securities, The Comgary has 2 policy
ol making investments only with commercial instiiutions that have &t least an investment grade credit rating, The Company invests its cash primarily in
wosermraent securithes amd obligations, oorpomte debt secudtles, money market funds and nevere: repiurchise agreements (R A,

IteAs are collateralized by deposits in the [orm of Governmient Securities and Ohbligations for an emount nol less than 102% of their value. The
Company dives nif recond an asset or [abiliy as the Company ks nol pesmied o sell or repledige the sssoclated collateral. The Company has 4 palicy thal
the collaieral has at least an A (or eguivaleni) credit mting. The Company uillizes a third panty custodion o manage the exchange of hunds aad ensure thal
collateral recelved Is malmiained ot 102% of the valoe of the RRAs oma dally basis. RIEAs with staied moturiles of greasder than three manths from the daic
of purchase are clasified as marketable securities.

Investments

Irvesamients dlissilivd as bheld e masturity Brosiments ane meposied al amonised cos anl realieed galm o lossis ame fepored in sammlags, nvesimenis
classified as mvallahle-for-sale debi securities are carrled ot estimated Tair value with unrealized galns and losses reconded as 0 component of acounmilated
ndher mmprl:'hl.ml.'un Income. Availahledorsale securiiles avallahle for currend nrlcnﬂnm. are classilled as cormeni assets otherwise, ihq.- are classlibed as
longg term, Maragemend celermines the appropriste classificatbon of its investiment in debt ancd equiny secarities at the ime of parchase and re-pvaliasics
such determiration al each halance sheet date. The Company reviews (15 investeents o impairment and adjusts these Investments oo falr value throagh
carnings, as requilred,

Praperty, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Propeny. plant and equipmert are siated at cost, The Company utilizes the siradghi-lee method of depreclation over the estimated uselul lives of the assels:

Bullding and ballding cquipment 20 - M) years
Land and leasehald Improvements 10 - J years
Machinery and equipment 2= 13 years

The Company capltalizes conaln computer sofiwane and development costs, included in machinery and cquipment, when Incurred In connection with
develaping wr obiaining compuier software (or Intermal use, Caplealined sofiware costs are amonired over the estimaied welisl Hves of the sofiware, which
generally range From 3 o 8 years.

The Company reviews lnng-lived assets i assess recaverabiling using undiscounsed cash Nows, Wihes certain evenss or changes in operating o
coonmmic conditions occur, an Impaimem assessment may be perlormod onothe recoverability of the carrying valoe of these assets. 17 the assen is
determined 1o be Impalred, the boss bs measuned based on the differeace hetween
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i asset’s fair vabue amid s corrying, valoe. 1 quotid market prives ane sot available, e Company will estimube Gaie valoe using o discoanted value of
cstlmated uture cash Mows.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when obligations under the tlerms of a contract with the costomer ane satisfied; generally, this occurs

with the transler ol comiral ol the goods o ossomers, The Company's ghobal payment terms are typically between 5 o 90 days. Provisions lor certain
rebeates, sabes ipoentives, trade promsotons, coupons, product reoams and discounts 1o customers ane sconanied for as varfabde considerabon and reconded o
a reduction in sakes, The labdlity Is recognlzed within Aconed Rebates, Retums, and Promotions on the consolidated balanoe sheed,

Product discounts granted are based on the lerms of arrangements with direci, indireot and other market participants, as well as market conditlons,

I hualing; consideration of competitns priving. Hehates ane estimated bused on contractual seme, historical experience, patient outeomes, trened analysis and
perojectied ket condiGms i ibe varfous markets servid, A sigaiGeam poetion af e Habiliny reloved oo rehates b from te e of g Compay’s
phirmaceutical prodacts within the LS., primarily the Managed Care, Modicane and Medicald programs, which amounted o 57.2 hillion ard 372 billion
as ool Jamaary 3, 2021 and Decembaer 29, 2009, respecively, The Company evaluates markel comlitions for prodacts or grougs of produces priimarily
throagh the unnlphn‘. wholesaler and other lhlrll-party :dt-lhmunh and market rescarch data, &5 well as Iniemally geneorated Information.

Sales returms are estimated and reconded hased on historical sales and retarns information. Products that exhibit unesual salbes or retum patierns doe 1o
dating, competition of other markeling maviers ame specilically investigatod and snalyeed & pant of the sooounting for sales petum accnaals.

Sales retwrms allowances represent a reserve Tor produces tat may be resimed due o explmnion, destractiae n che Gield, or i specilic anees, prosduc
recall, The sales returns reserve |s based an historical retem trends By product asd by market as a pereent 1o gross sales, In acoordance with the Company's
accoanting policies, the Company generally Baues credil to customers for returmed goods, The Company s sales returms reenves are scoounted for in
avcordance with the U5, GAAP guidance Tor revenue recogiition whes fght of retam exists, Sales neiams meserves ane recorded af full sabes value, Sales
retwms in the Consumes Heahh and Mhammaceutical segments are almost exclusively not resalahle. Sales retums {or cerain franchises in the Medical
Devices segment are typlcally resalahle but are nit materlal. The Company infrequenily exchanges products from inventory for returned peoducs. The
sales melums neserve for ibe ot Compasy has bccnapp'm:l;lmnlr'l}' 1.10% of anmual net rade sales during esch al the Tscal years 2020, 20019 and 208,

Pronsatiomal programs, sich as prolul Fisting allowances aml conperalive slverising amangemaents, ane rocorded initbe same pedod as oclabed sales.
Continalng promotional programs include coupans and volume-hased sales Incentive programs. The redemplion cost ol consumer coupons B based on
histogical redempiion expetience by product and valie. Wolumse-hased incentive peogeams are based on the estbmated sabes volumes for the ncentve pedod
angl are recorded as products are sabd, These armangemenis are evaluated 1o determine the appropriate amounts 60 be defemed or recosded as a reduolkon of
revenies. The Company aba cams profi<share pavmenis thrggh collshomtive amangements e cedain prodocts, which are include in sales b cosnmers.
Fsr alll years presemed, prolit-share payments were less than 3000 of the oud revenie anid sre |peluded i wles o cistomen.

S Mote 17 to the Consnlidated Finandlal Stasements for funber disagpregation ol evemue.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and hanifling costs incureed were S5O, $10 hillion ard 510 hillion in Bseal years J0, 2009 and X8, respectively, and are inchuded in
selling, markeiing and adminisirative expense. The amaunt of revenae recelbved for shipping and handling (s less than 0.5% ol sales (o cusiomers Tor all
peerinls presenbed.

Invemtories
Invemtomes ane staied at the lower of cost or net realizable valoe determined ‘:yﬂ'm Hirst-in, Tirst-out method.

Intamgible Assets and Goodwill
The ambarbtatlve lieramuee on LS GAAP requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefliniie lives be assessod anmually for Impalrmes, The
Cormpany completed I anmial impairment test T 2020 In the fiscal four guarter. Fusire impairment sests will be performed anmually in the fscal foirth
yuarier, or sooner i wamanted. Purchased [n-process research and development s accounted for a5 an indeliniie lived intangible asset uniil the usderlying
mroject b complited, ab which point the intangible asset will be accounted Tor as a delinite lived intangible asset, or abandaned, at which poing the
Tmtangitslie asset will be wriiten off or pardally impaired,

Imangihle asseis that have finlie wseful lves cominue 1 be anenetieed over thels useful lives, anid are reviewed for Impaimmem when wamanied by
coonomic conditions, See Note 5 Tor furiber details on intangible Assets and Gomdwill

a7
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Financial Instrunvents.
As required by ULS. GAAR all derivatlve instruments are recorded on the halance sheet at falr valboe, Fair valee is the exin price that would be recelved o
sell am anset or pakbd 1o transier a lishility, Falr value s 0 market-hased measurement determined using assumpalons that market panticipanis would use in
mricing an asset or liahility. The authoritative lileratee sdablishes a three:level bierarchy o priodtice the inpots esed in measuring Lair value, with Lesel §
vl il highest pricrity asd Level 3 having the lowest Changies in the lair valioe of derivatives are recanled each period In current camings or other
comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative is designated as pan of a hedge transaction, and §f so, (be type of hedge mansacion

The Company decuments all relationships between hedged lems and dedvatives, The overall rlsk management sirategy Includes reasons for
undertaking hedge tramsactions and entering Into derivatives. The ehjeaives of this strategy ane; (1) minlmize foneign carmency exposue's impact on the
Csmpany ™ Tinarcial performance; (2) protect the Company™s cosh Dew Teom adverss mosements in loreign exchange rates; (3] eesane the appropriaeness
ol Nmancial instrumenis: and (4] manage the enterprise sk msocised with inancial instloutions. See Note 6 for additional information on Fiaencid
Instmimenes.

Leases

The Company deievmines whether an arrangement | a lease st contract inceptinn by estahlishing If the contract comveys the rght in contral the wse of
IcentiTied property, plant, or equipment for a perod of tme in exchange for consideration. Right of Use (ROUT) Assets and Lease Liabilitbes Tor operating
leases are Included in (iber assets, Aocrued Habilides, and Ciber Rabilities on the consolidsted halance sheet, The ROU Assets tepreseni the dight o wsee an
underlying asset for the lease term and lease Habilitics repeesent an obligation so make ease payments arising from the lease, Commiments under finange
leases are not skgniflcant, and are included in Property, plant and equipment, Loans and notes payahle, and Long-term debt on the consel idated halapoe
sheel.

RO Asses anad Lease Liabillies are recapnized at b lease commsncement date based on the presont vabue of all minimum leass paynsens oves ibe
leuse term The Company uses ity incremental bormowing rate basced on the infermation available a& commencement date in determining the present value of
lease payrments, when tbe implicin rate is soreslily determinalide, Lease wems may include options o extes) or eeminate e lease. These optians arne
I ludied in che lease term when |1 is reasonably cenain that the Company will exercise that opton, Uperating lease expense is recognized on a simighi-line
basls over the lease tevm. The Company b elecied the Tolbwing plicy elections on sdepion; use of porifolio appmach on leases of assets andis master
srvice agreements, exclsion of shor term leases on the balance sheet, anad pot separating bease and men- lease comiponents.

The Company primarily his operating lease bor space. vehicles, manalacisring equipment and data processing equipment. The ROLT st pefaining 1o
operating leases was S1.0 hillion and $1.0 billlon is 2020 and 20094, respeciively. The bease Nabiliny was $1.1 billion and $1.0 billion in 2020 and 2014,
respeciively, The operding lease cosis wene $0.3 hillion, $0.3 hillion and $0.3 Billon n 2020, 3019 amd 2008, respeciively, Cash pald for smaounis included
In the measurement of lease liahilities were 50,3 billlon and $0.3 billion in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Product Liability
Acornaals for product liabiliey cakms are mecorded, on an undiscounted basis, when it is probable that a llahiliy has been incurred and the amourt of the
liability can be reasomahly estimabed based on existing infomation and sctsarially delermined estimates whene applicable. The accruals ane adjusied
periodically os sdditonal infermation beconses avallable. The Company acomics an estimobe of the legal delense costs peeded 1o defend each mastter when
thasier consis are probable aml cen be reasomably estbmated. To tse extent adverse verdicts have been iondered agalast the Company, the Company dics mist
recordd an accrel untll a loss ks determined to be probable and can be reascasbly estimaied,

The Company has sell insarance thmugth a wholly-owned captive insurance company. In addition o aconaals in the sell Insrance program, claims that
exceed the Insurance coverage ane accried when |osses are prohable and amounis can be reascnably estlmatid.

Research and Developasent

Research and developmient expenses are expensed as Incunmed (i socordance with ASC 70, Research and Deselopment, Uplrong and milestone paymenis
maie to thind pastles in conmectlon with research and development collaborations are expensed as incurred wp to tbe paint of regulabory approval, Payments
male 1o ihind paries subsequent i regulatory approval are capitalized and amontized over the remaining oseful life of the related product. Amaanis,
capitalized for such paymenis are inclisded in other intangibles, net of sccumnulated amonization.

Tl Company wnbers inte collaborative amangoments, iypically with oiber pharmaceuticsl or eechmdogy companies, wedevelog omd commercialiee
g camlidaies or Inellecual propery. These armngements typlcally Involve two (o nore} partbes who are actlve panicipants in the collabortion amd se
expoaed io significant risks and rewands |l|.1wndnnd on the commercial succes of the sctlvitles. These collsd | umally invedve varkoms activites 'h:y
e ar miee parties, including research asd development, maketing and selling and distribution. Ciiten, these collshoratioms requine uplront, milestone and
ruyalty oF prodil shune payiments, comtingent vpun the oocurresoe Gf comabn laiane events Haked © e sucoess of the ssel in development.

48
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Anous due lom collaboraive pansers ndated w devclopient activities ane geoerally nellecied as a reduction of research and developient expem:s
becanse the performance of contract development services B nit central o the Company's aperations. In general, the income stalement presentathon for
these collabarations is as [ollows;

Mature/Type of Collabaration Statement of Earnings Presentation
Third-party sale of product & prodit share payments received Sales tn cusiomers

Hnyi]de[l;-'l'rlum pasind i collabosative parter (post-regulaory Comp oof prishacts sald

Approva

Royalties recelved from collabarative parner Oiber income {expense), net

Upfront paymenis & milestones pald io collahorative pariner { pre- esoarch and dovelopment expense

repalasy approval)

Heseanch and development payments (o collaborative pertner Research and development expense
wmemmdfmdﬂnnmmw Reductinn of Rescarch and development expemse

* Milestones are coplialioed as Intangible aseets and amortized (o oot of products sold over the esefol lile

Fosr all years presenied, there was s individiee] project that represemed greater than 5% of the ol annual consolidated research aned developmient capense,
The Company has a number of products and compounds. developed in oollaboration with strategic panpers including XARFLTO®, co-developed with
Fayer Heabihd “are AC: and IMITRL IVICAY, dievielopel in collaboration and co-markelied wilh Pharmacyclics LLE, am AbhVie company.
Separaely, the Company has & namber of lcersing arangemints lor products amd compaunds Including DAREALEX®, loensed from Genmaly AS,
Advertising
Cosin assoclated with advenising are expensid I ibe year Incurred and are included In selling, markeding and admindsirative expenses. Advertising
expenses worldwide, which comprised television, radin, print media and Intemet advenilsing, were 2.0 hillinn, £2.2 hillinn ard 526 hillion In liscal years
2020, 201% and 2018, respectively.

Income Taxes

Ircome taxes are peommded based on amounts refundabde or payahle For the cument year amd inclinde the resulis of any difference between U5, GAAP
accounting and ax reporting, recoried as deferred L assets or Habdlites, The Compary estimates delernod tax assets and liahililes based on enacted tax
regpulations arad rates. Future changes in tax baws and rates may aflecl reconbed delemed tx assets and liabilites inibe fwlme.

The Company has unrecognined tax bepelis for sncertain s posiions. The Company lollows LS GAAP which prescribes o recognition theeshald
anel measurement attrilvste for dwe lirancia staoensent recegnitbon aid measurement of a tax pesition aked orespected s be aken D0 s rdem.
Management believes that changes im these estimates would pat have o material effecn an the Company™ resalis of operations, cash fiews or financial
meslin,

I 2017, chir Unibed States enaceed imio liw new ULS, ax legisltion, the U5, Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCIAL This aw included provisions for a
comiprehensdve overhaul of the corporate incame Lax code, including o reduction ol the stabitory corporate Lax rate Trom 35% to 20%, ellective on Lanuaary
1, 2008, The TCIA included a provision Fora tax an all previously umlistributel somings of U5, companies bocated in foreipn jurisdictions, Undistribwed
carnings I the form of cash and cash equivabenis were xed sl a rate of 15.5% and all sther camings were taxed ol s rate of BO%, This ox is payvable over
W years and will nof accrue imlerest, These payments beglan in 008 amd will continee throwgh J025. The remaining balance at the end of the 2020 wis
approximately $7.7 hillion, of which $6.9 billion is classified as noncurrent and reflecied as *Long-term taxes payable™ on thee Company 's halance sheet
Thee balamsee of this account s related o recefvahles from g suthorities not expected (o be received nthe nest 12 moniths

e TCAA alse Inclhsdes provisions Tor a tax on global miangible low-taxed income (GILTT) CILTD is desoribed as the exoess ol a LS, shaseboldder's
testa] et foreign Income over a deemed retam on tangible assets, s provided by the TEIAC In January 2008, the FAST issued guidance that allows
companics 1o elet s an i:mlmun;i pidicy wheiher o recond the tax effects of GILTT inthe perbos] the tax labilit s generated (Le,, “period oos™) or
prowvide for deferred tax assets and liohilities related o basis dilferences that exise and are expecied 1o elfect the amount of GLUTT inclusion in (utire years
upin reversal (e, “defermed meshad™) In 2008, the Compary elected w account for GIETT under the defemed method, The defermed G amoums reconded
are hased on the evalustion of lemporary differences that are expedied W reverse as GILTT IS incured i fumre periods,

The Company has recordid deferred wx Rabiliies on all undistribuced eamings prion (o Decensber 31, 2017 from it insernationad subsidisries. The
Company has nid provided defiermel wxes on the undismriboved eamings sabsequen o Kangary 1, 2008 Trom cenain memaional subsidiares where the
earnings are consllered W be Indefinitely relnvested, The Conpany
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Tntwands by contimie G reieyest haese wamings o s Bisermational operations, 1 e Company decides 80 a laver date w0 repatriaie e carmings o iy
LL5., the Company woubd be required (o peovide for the aet s offects on these amoenis, The Company estimates that the total tax effect of this
repatriation would be approximately 81007 hillion under current enscied tax laws and regulations and at cument currency exchange rates,

S Mote B 1o the Consolidated Financial Stavements Bor lurther informatéon regaending inoome taxes.

Met Earnings Per Share

Basic carmirgs per share is compueed by dividing net camings available 1o common shaseholders by the webghied averge number of common shares
oatstanding, for the period, Diluged earnings per share reflects the potential dlubon that could soour 1T securities wene exercised ve comverted Ingo commaon
sk wsing the treasury sioch method,

Use of Estimates

Thie preparation of consalidsted linancial statements in conlormity with aceounting peinciples generally accepted in the VLS. requines management 1o make
eetimmates and assumption thet wifect the amounts, reporied, Estimotes ane used when scooanting for sales discounts, rebaies, allowanoes and incentivis,
sy Tk linkes, imcome taxes, withbwlling s, depreciaion, amastization, employee benelic, comingencies aml intargibhe asseyaml lailiny
valuatians, Actaal results may or may i differ from those eslimaics,

The Company follows the provisions of VS, GAAP when recording litkgation related contingendes. A liahility s reconded when a loss s probahle and
i be ressonably etimated. The best estimate of a loss within o range is sconued; bowever, i o estimate in (e range B better than any ofher, the
minimain amii i acomivl.

Thee extent 1o which COVID-19 impaots the Company s business and financial resulis will depend on sumersus eval ving factoes bnchading, o s
limited 1o; the magnimde and duration of COVID-1%, the extend to which it will impact worldwide macrocconnmic conditions including Imerest rates,
emplovment rabes and healih insorance coverage, the speed ol the anticipsied reoovery, anad govemmenlal and bisines reactions (o ibe pandemic. The
Cmpany assessed cerain sccoining maners that gererally requine consbderation of fomecasted Dancls Information (b contex with ibe infomastion
reascnably available 1o the Company and the unksown [unire impacts of COVID-19 as of anaery 3, 2021 end ihrough the date of this repon, The
accoanting matiers assessed incladed, but were noi limiied v, the Company®s allowance for dowheful accoumis and credit losses, laveniory aod nelated
reserves, peenied rebaies and pssociaied reserves, and the carmying, valae of the goodwill and other bnp-lived assets, While there was nod a material impact
10 the Company s cormalidated financlal statements as of and for the Tiscal year ended Januacy 1, 20210, the Company's fulune ssussment of the magndiode
and duration of COVID-149, as well as vther Lactors, coald resalt in material fpacts to the Company s comsalidased lnencial statements in futire reporting

perinads.

Annual Closing Date

The Company (ollows the comcept of a flscal year, which ends on the Sunday nearest to the end of the month of December. Nomally each fiacal year
corsists of 52 weeks, but every live oF six years the liscal year consists of 53 weeks, and iherelore includes sdditgonal shipping days, as was the case in
[iscal year 2020, and will be e case agaiin i (iscal year 2006,

Reclassificatlan
Cenain prior period amounts have been reclassified 1o conform i current year presemation,

i}
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2. Cash, E-uJIEq'uhdleuh and Current Marketable Securities
An the end of the Tiscal voar 2000 apsd 200%, cash, cash equivalents and currest marketable securitics wene comprised al:

{Mkallars i Milliss) 2020
Cusrent
Camying Unrecogmized  Eaimated Fair  Cash & Cash Marketable
Amount Gain Vil Fruivalents Srcurilis

Cash 5 FR. — 2863 2EhY e
Mond L5, Savervign Secoritios!! e . 0 - [
LI%, Hewerse repurchise agroements 1,547 — 14547 1,507 —
Comporate debt securiest 2,674 — 2674 1,451 1223
Muney ke [ursls 2,102 - 2,102 2,102 -
Time deposies'! H77 — o7 B7T —

Subtotal £ 11,143 - 1,143 230 1513
LIS, Govt Securities 5 13,777 1 12,778 4,71 047
Cither Soverelgn Securities 14 - T - 4
Compaorate debl securitles 50 - P H v 13

Sulstotal available for sale'® 5 1404 1 14042 4,755 9,267
mtﬂf cash eqquivalents and current marketable s e .
Alhllars i Adill o) 2015

Curreni
Carrying Cash & Cah Marketable
Aot Eguivalents Securilies

Cash £ 2R37 2637 -
Mon-1L5, Sovercign Securities' 435 145 290
L%, Boverse I.'I‘FNII'I:hM agrovmienis BA75 675 —_
Cither Reverse nepachase agreemesnis 1] s —
Coepawrate debl securities™ 1.42% ik 414
Muney market fumds 2 hhd £ Bt —
Thne deposin! ' Wl Wi -

Sulitoral 5 14,4814 (ERE T4
Ciov Securities 5 4,10 {5 [ELin
Cosporate debl securities 2k 15 251

Subtotal available for sale® 5 4,368 ERAL 1254
Total cash, cash equivalents and current marketable securities 5 17,305 1962

" Held 10 manrity isvestments are reporiod o0 amentized cost and realized pains or losses are reponed in camings.
1 Awadlabile For sale debit securities sre reponed at fair valos with unrealized gains aml bosses reparted net of txes I by comprehensive Incame,

At the end oF fiscall year 2019, the camyimg amount was the seme as the cstimazed Tair valoe,
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Fair value of govenmiment seouritics sod obligations amd corporate deli securities wone estimatia] wsiing iguoted broker prices and signilicant other

ohservable nputs.

Thi contraoiual maturitbes of the avallable for sale dobi securities at lanuary 3, 2021 are as follows:

(sllars in Millioss) st Masis Fair Value

e wiihin one yoar s 4.0 14,027
Fae alber one year throagh five years i5 15
[ae after five years through wen years — —
‘Toal det securibes 5 14,041 1, (k82

The Company invests jis excess cash in both deposios with major banks dheoughout the world aml ather high-guality money market nstnsments, The
Comgany has a policy of making inwesmeents only with commerchal instiuiioes that have 2t beast an lnvestment grade oredin rating.

1. Inwventorirs

Al the eod of liscal vewrs D03 asd 2019, nventories wene comprised of:

A Whnlbars i Milliasirs] 2019

Baw materials and sapplies 5 1,410 LT
Ciondhs in process 2,040 1432
Finlsled goods 5. E04 BOT1
Total invensories " ] 9,544 9,020

¥ Spp Kot 10 o the Conaclidated Financiad Statements Bor detalls on st held Tor wle 2 the pelabed diveatiures for the Mscal wear endvd Devember 24, 200%. Thene

wierr na aets held Tor sale at Rassary 3, 2001,

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

AL the eod of Tscal yoears J020 and 2014, propeny, plant and equlpment ot cost and sccumulated depreclatbon wene;

{hallirs b Millioms) 2020 FEE]

Lamll amd land fmprovements B2 054
Bisdldings ad building equipaient 12,502 11877
Machinery and equipment 29,104 26,054
Caastriction i pragress 4316 1637
Watal property, plans and equipment, gross 45,804 FTEES
ILess arcumulated deprecistion 0038 LETA
atal property, plant and ecuipment, net! 18,766 17,658

1 S0 Mot 18 e ihe Consolidaied Flnancial Staiemens for details an s held Tor sale and the rolatod divestiuees Tor the fscal year endod Dieotmber 29, 2009, Thene

were n0 ssets hild Tor sale at Lanssary 3, HK21,

The Conspainy capitalizes inerest expeise as part of the cost ol comstiction of facilities and equipment. Interest expense capitalized in lscal yvears 2020,

2005 anal 2018 was SEL million, S50 millnm and S46 milllkem, respectively.

I'Iq'l'ﬂ;h‘lhu expensr, inchuding the amanization of l;.ipdl.ﬂht:d interest in fiscal yrars 020, HK1% and 2018 was 3206 hillion, $2.5 hillion and $2.6

illigmn, respectiveldy.

U metiventient or otber disposal of progeny, plant and eguipment, e costs and resied

wf act

I depret latiod or amonieation and

eliminated from the asset and accumailased depreciotion accoums, respectively, The difference, il ony, betwoen the pet asset value and the proceeds ane

recorded in camings.
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5. Intangible Assets amld Goodwill
An the end of fiscal years 2020 aend 2014, the gross and net amoungs of intangible mssets wene:

A Thsllars i Millisws) 2020 2019
Intangible assets with definie Hves:

Patenis anel trademarkes R £ I, 0o 5514
Less socumulaied amonizalon 17,618 13,154
Panents aiiel trademarks — nel 5 113n 13,480
Customer relationships amd other intang blis — gros 5 22,050 L2056
Less acoumuslaied amoribstion a2 4,402
Custamer relationships amd other intangibles — per™ 5 11,9886 12,504
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:

Trademarks g 7195 G922
Puschased |n-process resvanch and developmentd 11,848 4,647
‘Total intangible ssus with indelinile lives 5 19,044 11,569
‘Tacal imangihle asses = et 5 33,402 AT G

*The majudiy ks comprised of cestomes nela onsbips

il flscal year 20240, the Compuany completed mukiple scquisitioes and recosded insprocess nesearch and deselopment intangihle sssets of 9650 billlon from Momests
Pharmaccuticals, Pnc., S000 billion or bermekbmab and cortaln relsbed assets from XDkeech, boc, and S04 Bl Do the aoqubsiibon af all cutsiaming share in Verb
hergleal, Imc,

Giodwill as-of Jamiary 3, 2021 and Decomber 249, 2019, os allocated by segmens of business, was as follows:

iWhsllars b Wil £ Health P ical Sedical Devices Total
Coodwill ot December 30, 2004 5 G0 063 12,720 30,453
Goodwill, relaled o scquisitions 1108 ™ 2oim 3,201
Cusrency transkalon‘ogher (1dd} a1 (4) (45)
Condwill ot December 19, 2001% 5 0,736 1R 14,734 A3,6349
Coodwill, relaed o acquisithones —_ 124 38 1,460
Chrrency transkeilon'other 1A Rif T 1,294
Cioodwill au Jasuary 3, 2021 ] 10,336 11,009 15,048 36,303

Thie welghtid average amartization pericd for patents and rademarks ks 12 years. The welghted average amartization perisd for customer relatboships and
other imtangihle assets s 21 years. The amonization expense ol amortizable assets included in cost of products sold was $4.7 hillion, $4.5 hillion and 54.4
il bien beire wax, for the (iscol years ended January 3, 2021, December 29, 2009 and December 30, 1018, respectively. Intangible ssset write-dowmes ane
imeluded in Dnher (ncime ) expense, el

The estimuted amortization expense for approved products, belone tax, for the Give succeeding years is approximately:

{Thallars im Millis]
angl 20zt 2003 2034 035
F4,5600 4,200 4,100 S E2iH

See Mote 10 b the Consolldaied Financial Swsements for addiibonal detalls relaed io acguisitions amd divestimres.

aa
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G, Fair Value Memurements

The Company uses forwand fonsdgn exchange coninscs (o manage is exposune (o the varabiliy of cash flows, primarily relsied 1o dhe forelgn exchange
rate changies of fubure interoompany products and chind-party parchases of materlals depominated kn a forelgn oorency, The Campay nses cross cumency
imterest rale swaps o manage csmency sk primarily related 1o bormaings. Both types ol derivatives are designated os cash Mow hediges.

Adlditionally, the Company uses imenst rate swaps as an inst bis meanage | rate risk relabed us laed rate browings, These derivatives ane
designated &s lair valoe hedpes, The Company uses cross curmency imerest rate swaps ool forwand foreign exchange conracis designated as net imvesiment
heddpes. Additionally, ihe Company uses forwanl foreign exchange coatracts to offet is exposure (o cenain foeekan currency assess and labilies. Thise
Terwanl Torebgn exchange oontracts are nol designated as hedges andd gherefore, changes imibe Fair values of these derivatives are recognized in carings,
Ilmn.'h:r ullseiting the curmeal emnings effvect of the relaed Toreign CUITETY daiis wnil liaghl e,

Thie Conspany dises ot enter inta derivative financial instruments for rading or speculative porposes, or thal contain aredit risk relabed contingont feannes.
The Company mainuaing credin suppon agreements (054 ) with cenaln derivative counterpantios establishing colloveral dresholds based on respective coedin
ratings and netiing agroements. As of Lanuary 4, 2021, the wtal amount of cash collaberal pald by the Company umler the C5A amousted 0 51.1 hilllon
et melated v meet Toovesamiend aml cash Miow Bediges. On an ongaieg basis, the Company manbors counier-pany credil ralngs, The Company consbibers
credit noneperformance sk 1o he low, becawe the Company primarily enters into agr » with ¢ fal institutions that have o least an investiment
prade credit rating. Refer o the able an significant financial essets and labilities meesared 20 fakr value comtained in this footnote far receivables and
pavables with ihese commerclal instbtstbons. As of Janmary 3, 2021, the Company had notional amounis sutstanding for lorwand loreign exchange
ciminices, and cross currency Ingeres mie swaps of $57.8 il and 530,65 bilbion, respectively. As ol December 29, 2004, the Company had notional
amaaints ineistanding for forwand forelgn exchange comtracts amd cross cumrency Inlerest mte swaps of 5450 hillicn and 520,1 billion, respectively,

Al derivative Insruments are recorded on the balance sheet al lair valoe. Changes in tbe Fair value of derivatives are recorded esch period in aurrent
arnings of ather comprehemsive income, depending on whether ibe derivative B disd gaatied as part of & hedpe ransaciion, and i7 so, the ivpe of hedge
transaction.

The designation as a cash hw hedge {s made at the entrance date of the dervallve contraci. At nception, all dervatives ame expecied o be highly
effective. Foreign exchange contracts designated as cash fkw hedges are accourted for under the forwand method and all gainsosses assoclated with these
cominicts will e recognizsd in the income statement when the hedged dem impaces eamings. Changes in the e valoe of these derivatives aee ieoorded in
accumulated other comprebensive income undil tee underlying irapsaction alfects eamings, and ane then reclassified to carnings in e same sccount as the
hedged wamsaion.

Cealns anl lossess associabed with Imerest rate swaps and changoes in falr value of hedged debi aitributabie 1o changes in Iserest rates are recorded o
Imterest expense in the period in which they ocour. The effect of which are immaterial Tor the liscal vears ended Lamuary 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019,
Giring aml losses on el investment bedge ane accounted throwgh the curmency translation acoount within accamulaied olher comprehemsive inconse, The
prortivn excluded froom elfectiveness tesaing is reconded tiougls inieest (ligoime) experse asing e spotmetbod, O om ogolng beds, e Conpany
asssses whether cach dedhvative contlnees w be Bighly effective in offsening chamges of hedged bems 1T and when g derivanbve b oo longer expected w be
highly effective, hedge accounting s discontinaed

Thee Company designated fs Eum desominated sotes issued in May 2006 with doe dabes ranging from 2022 g HEES a5 0 nel investment bedge of (he
Cungiany’s Bnvescments in certain of s intemmational subsidiaries an ase te Euro as thdr Tonciona cemency nonder w neduce the volaility caosed by
changes in exchange raes,

A of Jamary 3, 2001, the balance of deferred net gabn on derbvatives included in scoumulated other comprehensive incamee was 3552 milllon aflo-
lax, For additional infc bnm, see the Consndidsted Statements ol Comprebensive Income and Note 13, The Company expocts thal substargially all of the
amoungs related w forwand larelgn exchange comracis will be reclessifbed into eamings over the next 12 months as a resull of ranssctboss that are expected
1o socur aver thal period. The maximim length of Gme over which tbe Company is hodglng tramsaction eaposdre is 1 manths, excluding [nlerest e
coniraces, net investment hedges, The amount ultbmately realized In sumings may differ o forelgn exchange mies change. Realized gains sl losses ae
ullimately devermingd by actual exchange rabes at maturity of ibe devivative,
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T Folbowing talde s o sunmiary of te activity ndated o derivatives and lodges for the Tscal years eoded Jamiary 3, 2027 aml December 29, 2009, net of
fan

Jamuary 1, 2021 December 29, 200%
Caost ol Imierest Oailer st w Interest Oither
Froducts R&n {Income)  (Incomc) Prroducts Tesaln [Income)  {Income)
{DadLars i Millions Sales Sald Experse Expense Expense Sales Sold Expemse  Expense  Fxpense
The eibects of dair value, no
mersiment and cash, |l hesding:

£ roes purTEnCy [nbepesi raie
g Cnlrac i
Amsunt ol
ey

mmﬂumm
el g

A mestind il gaim o floss |
recegained in AR

Galn [Loss) om cash Now
heibging i
wrwaril
Fi Inreign exehange
Auvsiin il gals o {lisa)
rechasiied droes ALXT bain incoese 12 {12) (137) — (16} i) £V (105} = 22
-'\n'-oumlllnn:l“lu.r__ll (i a4 24 {141 _ (52} () (R} {5 — £
pves curvency lmberest raie
S LT

rieg e ) e = = = w0 =5 = = =5 242 =

Amisding o gais o i)
in AR 5 — —_ —_ Tan —_ —_ —_ —_ 417 —_

The folkrwing tabde |5 thee elfect of derivatives nog desigmaged as hedging imstrumeni [or the liscal years ended January &, 2021 and Diecember 25, J015;

(R o g o— Rocogeised
n " L]
{ Dl b in MAilliema 1-;-:-ai::fudw Imamme on Derivatne
Liegr il [ B as | Berl g Jamury 1, 7021 Uecember 2, H14
Farrign Fxchange Coniracs Uhher (ncome) expaense 5 24 [144)
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The Inlbowing tabde (s the elfec of net invesiment hedpes for the Tseal vears ended Janoary 1, 202 1 and December 79, 2009:

CoadnLaess) Laxation of Gain or (Less) Recdasified fom GaingLoss) Reclassified From
In Accumiilaied Oiher C listoime Accurnislated OCT
Arcimndated OC] Inta Inteme Into Incame

December 24, December
il ks i MAiRlioss Lammuary 3. MK M9 Jamsiry 3, Mi21 LI
Iehi 5 [473) V21 Interest (Inoime) expense — -
Cross Cumrency interest rale
Awaps 5 488 Interest {income) expense — —

The Company hilis sty imvestmests with readily determinable fair valoes ool sguity invesmments without readily determinable Gair valises. The
Lempany measures cquity investiments thal do not have readily determinahle Falr valoes i cost minus impairment, iF any, pus or mimns changes resuliing
T admierwablbe peioe changes bn onderly tramsactons for e identicall or 2 similar nsestneni of the same bsuer,

The folbowing table [+ a summary of the activity nelated (o egquity Investments for the fiscal years ended Jamiary 3, 2020 and December 29, 2019:

December 249, 2015 January 3, 2021
Changis in Fair Value
et I Mt Sale’ Man Current Other
Mol i Muliies) amyleg Valee Ingxme ! Purchaset ks d! Carrying Value Asats
Equity Invesiments with readily F
determinable valuo s (AL w7 (184) 1441 1,481
qquity Investmenis without neadily
determinable value Tz 155) al iR 738
December 30, 2010 Db 29, 2019
Chamges in Falr Valoe
Belhcus] in Mt Sale! M Current (bt
[Dullars i Millirs) Carrying Value B xame 1 Purchumas e Carwyhingg Yalue Assaty
Equity lnvestments with readily
delerminable valos 5 5l ai3 104 1148 1,148
Fapuity Investments withoul reasdily
eterminahle value 5 L () a5 T2 Ti2

' Hegurded in Oiber IncomeEapense
1 Cthr inchodes Empact of cumency

For ihse fiscal years ended January 3, 2000 and December 29, 20149 for equity investments without seadily determinable market values, 376 million and 557
million, respectively, of the chamges In falr value neflecied in net income were the resuli of impalimments, Thene were 521 million and $19 million,
respectively, ol chamges in falr wvalee reflected In net Income doe (o changes In observable prices,

Fair value is the exil price that would be received o sell an asset or paid totransfer a liabilivy. Fair value |5 o market-hased meassrement determined using
assumplions that market participants would wse in pricing an assetor liability, In accondamoe with ASC B20, a three-|evel hieranchy 1o prioritize the inpus
used In measuring fair value, The levels within ihie hicrarchy are described below with Lesel 1 having the highess priority and Level 5 having the lowest.

The fabr value of a dervative fimancial Insirument (Le., lorwasd forelgn exchange contracts, Ingerest rate cortracts) b the apgregation by currency of all
Tuture cash Mows discounted vo dis preset valoe at the prevalling market inierest rates and subsequently convened 1o the 105, Dillar ot the current spat
fereign exchange rate, The Company dues not believe that fair values of these dervative instaments materially differ from the amounis that could be
rialized wpon setiiement or nudoarity, or
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it il clwmpes i falr vallue will have a material effeoron the Compainy s oesilts ol operstioms, cash Dows o leancial position. The Comipaigy afso holds
oty Imvestments which are cdlassiibed as Level 1 and det secusfities which ane classifed as Level 2. The Company haolds scquisition relaied contingend
labilities hased wpan cerain regulatory and commerclal events, which are classified as Level 3, whose values are determined using discounied cash flow

mtthodologlios or similar technigues Tor which the determinstbon of fair valoe reguines significan judgmenl or estimations.

The fulbvwing e levels of ingnes are waed to measane falr value:

Level 1 — Quaoted prices in octive markets foe ideriical assets and liabilies.

Liewel 2 — Signilicant olbher shservable i.npllls.
Lewel 3 = Significand unohservahle inguis

The Company s signilicanl linancial assets sod liabilities measured al Tzir value as of the Tiscal vear ended Jasuary 3, 2021 amd December 249, 2009 were as

Tuslliows:
2020 2019

(Thalliars b Millisain) Lewved 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tetal Total "
Devivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Asseia:
Forwand lorign exchange contracts i — 49 —_ Bag 209
Ingerest mbe coalraces '© " — 20 — 240 i
Total 5 — 1,084 — 1,089 02
Liabilities:
Fosrwand Torcign exchange coniracts — T2 — TR 426
Intorest raie contracts ™ —_— .=Jiré‘|qﬂ _— .=J&"L ==Lﬂ;
Tutal = 1 — 2,271 G149
Derivatives nor designated as hedging Instrumenis:
Assein:
Frawarnd foeelgn exchange coniracts % - 49 —_ 44 23
Liabilivies:
Frerwand foeelgn exchange coniracts —_ ™ —_ an el
Available For Sale Other Tnvesiments:
Equity nvestmentst 1411 - — 1,440 1,14
Debt securies™ — 14,042 _ 14,042 460
Oiher Liabilities
Contingent Considermion™ k- (o] [N 1,715

Girows Lo Net Derdvative Heconcilialion D 019

(Ml in SAillionay

Total Groes Assels -1 1150 925

Crodii Suppon Agreememt (C5A) (1,107) (a1

Tutal Nel Asset k1l 134

‘Total Groes | iahilbies A A hf'!i_

Credil Suppon Agreement (C5A) {2,172) (586)

Total Met Lishilitles -1 187 i

57
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Susiamatized information abual changis in labilites for contingen) consideration is as follows:

2020
[Wallers by Ml e
Beginning Halanoe 5 1,715
Changes in estimated fair vahie ™ 1,00
Addihivines ik
Fayments (39)
Eenbing Balance $ RS

contingend considerstbon of $8,715% million, clessified as Level 3.
Ineludes 51 million of non-current assets as ol December B, 2014,
Int ludes cross cummency imerest rate swaps and inierest mie swaps,
Classified s non-curreni other assets.

W Classified as cash equivalents and cusneni marketshle securliies.
2]

@
m
1)

019

151
1245

1,715
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018

Kl
(156}
15
(172}
aa?

201% aszets anel Habilitles are afl classificd as Level 2 with the exception ol ﬂ;ult:f investmends of 1,181 millian, which are classificd o Level | and

Inc ludes 3594 million, $1,631 milloa {primarily related o Aurls Healith) and $397 million, classilied as non-current other lishilities as of Jamuary 3,

21, December 29, 20019 and December 30, 2008, respeciively. Includes $5% million and $84 milllon classified as current labilides as of lanoary 3,

2021 and December 29, 009, respectively.

Cingingg fakr value sdjustment amounis ane reconled |'rr.|r:|.'|r|l_l,l in Rescarch and Ikwlq'lnmu.'npqnw. The fmpnymﬂthd i canimgeni

consideratlon roversal of 51,148 million in 2020 related 8o the lming of certain developmental milestones sssociated with the Aurds Healih acquisition.

Tht reversal of ihe conilngent consideratbon was recosded In Deher income and expense

Sew Moves 2 awl 7 for [nancial assecs and liahelities held ob carrying amoumt on the Corsalidatd Balance Sheet
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7. Berrowings
The componerts of long-derm debe are as follows:
Effective Rate Effective Rate

{Mhallars b Millioes] 2020 % 20149 %
% Lo Coupon Convenible Subordisaed Debonmres due
2020 3 — — 5 Ao
2 95% Dohemures. dise 2020 - - Sl a5
19509 Moles doe KM —_— _— i 1.93
2.55% MNotes due 2021 450 367 a4 AB7
2,455 Notes dise 2021 A5 244 349 Z4a
165%: Motes due 2021 b ] 165 a5 165
(L2500 Motes due 2027 {18 Eurs 122805 1B Ewm
L1mEeEy

1227 @ 026 1,10 1 .26
2.25% Nows due 2022 o] 231 45 23
6.75% Debemures. dise 2023 50 673 250 673
AATH%% Moles due 2021 Ve 117 ans 1i7
205% Nobes due 2023 A% 208 A5 208
(LGP Noles due 2024
(730MM Euro 1226177 750MM Euro 1.00596) 919 1.6 4% OL6A
S50% Notes due 2024
(SOOMM 13654 GEP PYSHBAM GHEEP 129877 L B BT5 B45 B35
2625% Notes due 2025 Tt 163 7 263
155% Mobes elue 2025 94 asy — o
2. 45% Notes dut 2026 1,954 247 1,493 247
2058 Nobis die 2027 997 29K L 206
(L55% Nobes due 2027 o454 1.4 — —
1.150% ROMM 12081
Eiifs 1.|r‘zul"l'rmsui-]n'f"ﬂw;lm;”ll BN S 215N 915 @ L. 415 m 1.21
2500 Motes due 2028 bA55 2491 140 2491
555 Mot due 2029 7 7.14 27 714
1 307%, Bobes elue 20305 1,743 1.8 —_ _
& 595% Dhemtores. die 20008 Al L a5 LR
44759 Moles due N3 #55 4.4 55 404
1650 Motes due 2035 (155 Euro 12281 (158 Euro
1amEy 1LBI7 @ LB S 1648 .68
1 55% Nobes. due T35 El 4508 i 58
SA5% Notes due 2047 L ] 5ig 452 99
FH25% Moles due KIX7 146 364 (W A6
S5% Dehentures. due 2008 (- 1] G LC ] Al
AP Motes due HIGE 941 342 a4] 342
450 Debemures. dise 2040 ] L 5% 463
210% Notes due 204077 e 214 - -
40155 Nobes die 2041 7 e o7 409
& 50% Moves due 20475 At 457 495 452
LTI Mot dise 2045 14974 AT74 1973 LA
A75% Notes due 2047 w1 2,76 4491 aTe
A50PE Nows due 2048 T2 352 Ta2 a5z
2% Moles due HHEH EIE 2.3 -= -

54
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25096 Notes due 20607 1 248 - —
Clther 7 —_ [ —
Subiatal MW 2.85 % m 27,594 an g m
L cuerii puriiion 1,759 1,100

Total lsag-term debl 5 32635 26,494

" Weiphted average elfective rae

@ Pranslarion ke of Jamuary 23, 2021,

M Franslation mee at December 29, 200%,

B The excess of the falr valee over ihe carrying valoe ol debl was $5.4 hillion ot the el of fiscal year 2020 and 83,0 hillion 2 the end of fscal vear
kg,

S I the fiscal thind quarter of 2020, the Company issued senior unsecuned sotes for o tetal of $7.5 billion.

Falr valie ol the lng-term debi was estimated usiing market prices, which were cormoborated by guaoted broker prices and significant iher observable

Impats,

The Company has acoess 10 substantal sources of funds ai numeroes banks worldwide, In Seplember 2020, the Company secuned o new 364-day
Crait Facibity. Togal credin avallahle io the Company approaimaies 510 blllon, which expires on September 3, 2021, Interest charged on bomrowings under
thaer ceedit line agreement s hased on either bids provided by banks, London Tntechank Ciliered Rates (LIBOR), Secured Crvemight Financing Rate (SOFH)
Swap Curve or oiher applicable market rate a5 allowed plus anplicable margins. Commimest fees ander the agroements ane i macerlal,

Througheut {iscal year 2000, the Company contimmed (o have access o liquidicy through the commercial paper market. Short-term borrowings and the
currenl partbon aof long-term dily amounted 10 approcdmately S26 billion a1 the end of acal year 2020, of which $1.8 hillion & the carent portion of the
longserm deb, and the remainder §s commercial paper and [ocal bormowings by Entermational subsidiaries.

Throughoa fiscal year 209, the Company contimed 1o have access o liguidity through the commercial paper markel. Shan-term barowings amid the
cuwrrent portbon of long-aeem debi amouonged 1o approcimately $1.2 hillion s the end of sl year 2009, of which 11 hillion s the coment portion af he
loieg term debi, and the rematnder principally represents local bormawing by intermational subsidisries.

Aggrrgate maiurities of long-4erm debt ohligation commencing in 2021 ane

[Tl b Millbores)
a0zl FLEH 0 2034 025 After 2025
$1.7 1206 1,552 1,598 1,744 23,515

B Income Taxes
The provision lor axes on ncome consksts of;

Aksllars o A0l oms i 2020 2019 2018
Currently payable:

LLS. Laxps £ 1026 1,041 1,254
Intermational faxes 14180 4,744 24
‘Tatal currently payahle 2824 4,635 ATIE
Dederred:

LIS, tanes (] [H14) 1,210
International taxes { 1,065) {1,662) {2.23%6)
Toeal deferred (1,141} {2ATE) {1.016)
Provision for taces on income ] 1,703 2289 2,702

0 g e 574 Billbon of deforrod g expormse for the asbopgion of the defermed mithod 1w acomnt for GRCTL
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A comparison of income tax expense ol the LS statulory rate of 21% in fiscal years 2000, 2009 and 2018, © the Company's el lective Lax rate s o
Forlbovws:

iThallars b Millisses] fL ] 2019 2018

159 3 4414 Al nOTh

Inernational 13,185 13,785 12424

Famings belone e on ncome: 5 16497 17,328 17,5958

Ty raess

LIS, stamiory rale Z1Ay 218 210

Internathonal sperathsns [9.9) (540 (2.7

L%, paxes an intemational income & 27 14 L4

Tax bonefiis on Capital Loss (12 {oLaye o,

Tax beneliis on share-hased compensation [ L5} (.50 (1.5

TEIA and relited impacts a7 (raym (1.3

All other [ 5 =i (L} ]

Effective Rate 1Ll % 127 150

AU g ] pereiinds prosiied e Conmpay’ hos, ssteddiaries operating i Poesio Bl ander varioes us Imivema arnal reflvets the dimpacis ol operadorns ba jisadiciom with
siatutory Lax radis. Ciffereni ihan ihe LS. Mmmhﬂﬂmm-hkﬁndrm&mmhcﬂnﬂwul raad o compuerd wid the 115, sabuery raie, The
PO and J010 arseniy inciude th impuc of e mew s legial, n Srwitserkond, which is bertbor descritad below.

A Boss Pl thve bmpact ol thee CRILTT B, lhluMlhﬂMlWH&lmﬁMﬂlm—dlﬂm Foovwign s vorme chiad |8 Ranafele unsder the L4, sy cisde,

[T impaci of #4 o halarsoes bead ars part ol e 2007 TCIA prosvicional tas charge, Panker information provided Belos

(4 e i pear amaing have hevn reclaafied i oonfonm i ummes yes preemiacin

The flscal year 2020 jax rate decreasad by 1,9% companad o the scal vear 2009 wax e, which was primarly driven by ibe Tollowleg biems, 1n lscal year
2018, Switterland enacied the Federal Acton Tax Belorm and AHVY Financing (TRAF) which became effective on Januwary 1, 2000, The Federal
iramsitional provisions of TRAF allew conmipamles, under cerlain contlitons, 1o ﬂlnlh.'l thee tax hasis in certaln asssis i lalr valoe flLe., “slep=up”) 1o b
depreciated and amortized resulting v an incremanial Swiss tax deduction over the rarsilional period

TRAF abo prervides for parameters which enable the Swiss cantoms. i establish bocalized tax mves aml regulations for companles. The new cangonal tax
parameters include favorable s beselits Tor patents and additonal research asd development s dedeciors. The cantonal iranshilonsl provisions of THAF
allowed companies  elect either 1) by basis step-up similar uo the Federal transitien benefin or 2) altermative satutory W rate for 2 period nol i cxceed 5
years. The Com) }' currenily has operations bocated in varous Swiss cantons. Dring the Fiscal year 2019, as described (n fusther detail below, the
Company recomded the impacts ol the THAF that wene enacted in tha period.

[aring the fiscal year 2020, ibe final canion where the: i.nrru:n_v madntales skigniflcant operaions enacied TRAF legislation, Additonally, the Company
received milivgts from the Swiss Federal aml cantonal tax aothorities in the remaining jurisdistions where it has significant operations. These millings
resailied i the Company peelsing s estbmate on the tax basls adjustment (e, “stiep-up”) For I assets and as & resulz, the Company secorded addaional
deferred tax henefits in 2020 The Company recognleed a met benefil in the fscal year X620 lor Swiss Tux Belorm of approximately $0.4 billion or 26%
beeneefin o fhee Company s anmial elleciive tax e, comprised of the Tolkwlog ems;

+  approsimately $0.3 billion tax benefi relating io the remeasurement of Swiss deferred tax assets and labilices Tor the charpe in the Foderal aml
caninnal bk mies, whene enactment oourmed inthe flscal year 2000 this benedit has heen reflecied s “Inlemational Operations" on the
Company ‘s effective tax rate reconciliation.

= a 5450 million deferred tax asset related o the estimated value of a Federal tax hasis stepeap ol the Company's Swins subsidiories” st o
described abave; this benelin has been rellecied as “ Inlernational Operations™ en the Company s eflective ax rate reconciliation.

+  approximately $0.3 billlon of LS deferred iax expense relaiing o che GIUT] defermad tax liabilitg resaliing from che remeasusement of the Swiss
deferred tax assets and Habilities in the fscal year 2020, This benefit has been reflected as *ULS, wx on inemational income” on the Company®s
ellective lax rale recirscillation,

The Company does not expect to receive future milings regarding the tramsibonal provisions of TRAF,
Also, inthe fiscal founh quarer of 2020, e Company recognd 2ed a capital boss on cenaln U5, affilisies relaced 1o the previously impaired book valae al
certaln imargibbes, which reduced the 2000 1ax pate by approcimately 1.2% which b

Gl
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rellecied & o *Tax Demelits on Capital Loss™ on the effective lax rate reconciliaton. In addition in the lscal year 2020, the Company had lower imcome in
higher tax jurisdicelons, primarily deiven hy:

.

the impact of e sccrual of likgadon costs relawed w Talc for $4.0 billion which reduced e U5, camings before wxes a2 an effectve wax rae of
Z1.5%;

the acormal of additbonal begal costs, including an addifional 1.0 hilllon associated with a nevieed agreement In principle o seitle opicid likgation
af an el fetive tax rade of 20.4%

The Company also generated oddinbonal tx benelis from stock-hased compensation that were either exercised or vested; reduced the contingent
corsideration lishility related 1o the Auris Health acquisition (see Note 1) and reveral of some of s unsecognized Lo benefits due o the completion al
srveral years of fax exambnations in corialn jorisdiciboms dhring the liecal sear 2020,

Thee flscal year 2009 tax rabe decreasaad by 2.9% companed o tee Tscal year 2008 s e, T addidon o dhe impact of TRAF dbscussed (o mose detall
below, ihe |'l'|rnury drivers of the net decrease weie as follows:

&

The Campany meorganized the owiership structure of certain wholly-swned international subsidiaries in e Hscal lourth quaner of 2009, which
resiited in a reduction of certain withhalding and lacal wxes tha it bad presioasly recognioed as pam of the provisional Tax Cuis and JoBs Act
(TEA) tax charge in the Mscal year 2007 and linalized in the Nscal vear 2018, Fallowing the completion of this restructaring and apprval by the
applicable local autboritbes, the Company reversed a defemed Lax lability of $0.6 hillion and a relaied defermed i asset of $0.2 hallion for U5,
fTorvign tax credits, fora et defermed ta beneli ol $04 billion decresing ihe amnul ellective wx rate by 2.2%, This benelit has beea nefleceml
as “TCIA and relatod impacts™ on the Company s ellective wax rate reconcilioton.

The kmpact of the agreement in principle to settde opiotd litgatdon for 2 billlon (see Mote 19 10 the Consal ilated Financial Staemenis) which
redhuced the U5, camings helore taxes at an elfective lax mibe of 20.5% and deorcased the Company s annual effective tix mibe by approximately
21%,

I Dhecember of fscal year 2009, the LLS. Treasury issoed Tinal foreign tax credi regulations, which resalted in the Company revising the amount
al forcign tay oredin that were initially recorded [n the liscal year 2007 a5 part of the provisional TCIA wx charge. As a resuli, the Company
reconded an Increased deferred tax asset related to these forekgn iax credits of approximately 50,3 hilllan or 1,7% w the ansual cifeotive sax rate,
This benefii has been reflecied 2 “TCIA and related impacis® on the Company ‘s effecibve tax raie reconciliation,

The Company reassesaed its uncerlaln tax positions related o the current 1S audit and Increased s unrecognioed tax benefit by 30,73 billion
liability which incroesed the annual effective tax rave by approximately 1.5% (see section on Usrecognized Tax Benefits [or sdditional
Information). As these positions were felated (o uncenaln oy reganding intemational trrsfer pricing, tis experse has heen clissifled as
“Imiermatiomal Operations™ wn the Company's effeaive @y s reconcillabon, Subsegquent us December 249, 2004, the Company recedved and
agresd in Nolioes of Proposed Adjusiments (NOPAs) From ke TRS, The ('.nrnpqnf helieves b is .l:q-l.uu'l}' reserved for potential exposunes.
Theere wene several one-dime lax impacts that nsalied (v o comulative net tas benelit o the 2008 anmial elfective L rage of 12%. These ibems.
ncludid the L ileScan divessinine, ibe odjistement do e 2007 provislomal TEIA ax change and thie acceleratiom ol cenaln tax deductions as part
af the 2017 ax rewm,

Mowe Imcome in higher tax Jurisdictions relatlve o bower tax jurisdictons as compased o 200100

As descrihed above (or the Swiss tax legislation, in the fiscal year 2019, the Company mecorded o net lax expense of 30,1 billion which increased the
elfective tax rate far the Dacal yesr 2019 by approsimately 008%, This net e experse related 1o federa] and cemaln camonal enscements In the flscal year
2088 consisting of the Following provisions:

approsimately S006 billion lax expense relating o the remeasuremenl of Swiss deferred ax assets and Habilites for the change inibe Federal and
canonsl G poves, where enacit coourmad by December 29, 2008, this experse has been elleoiad s = loermaibonal Operations™ on e
Company’s ellective tax rate reconciliation.

a 509 billhon defesred ix asset related 1o the estimsted value of o Federal tax basis stepeup of the Company's Swiss subsidisries’ assets; this
Benedin has bheen rellecied & Inlernatbonal Operations” on te Company's ellective tas re reconciliation.

approsimately $450 million of 1,5, deferred tax expense relating o the GILTT delerned wax lability resulieg from the remeasurement o the Swiss
deferred tax assets and Hahilities and the new defermed tax mset Tor the Federal stepoup, This benelit has been rellecied as <115, ax on
intermational Inceme™ on the Companys elfective ax mbe moooncilation.

335/429



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E05943)
ooOooood

Tin e fiscal year 2008, ihe Comgany completed is Tull assessiet and Nanslioed e aooounting For e imgact of te TCIAL The Company reoosded e
aljusiments to the shove components of itbe provisional charge of appeodmately $10.2 Billion, These revisions were based on updaied estimates and
adelitlanal anzlysis by management o well as applying inerpretative guldance ksued by the 1,8, Depariment of Treasury 1o the facts and ciroamstances
that exiatid as of (he TEIA enoctment dase. This change was primarily nelatesd oo additional deferred tx liabiliies Tor lareign Tocal and withholding laxes
[ ibse remaining balance ol undisaribused Toeekgn carings s of December 31, 2007 thal were not provided Tor 1a the 2007 provisional change,

As described In Mote 1, In the fscal year 2018, the Company elected to treat GILT] 0% a period expense under the deferred method and reconded & delemmod
lax ol of approximately $1.4 billion in the fscal year 2008 related w faces and circumstances that existed on the date of TCIA enactiment. Dearing 2006,
the Company reorganized the owmershdp strucoure of certain foactga subsidiarios which resulied in a reduction of cenaln foreign withholding axes that it
hadl recognized as part of the provisbonal TEIA tax charge in the lourh guarter of 2007, Following the completion of this restructuring and as a result of
clarilication by Swiss tax asihorithes reganling the applicability of withholding tax w0 repairiatbon of cortain eamings, the Company reversed a deferred lax
liakility of $2.8 hillion end a related deferred 1ax asset of $009 billion for U5, foreign tax oredits, for a net deliermed tax benelit of $1.9 hillion. This benefit
has been nelbecied as “TCIA and relabed impacis™ on tbe Company s effective tax mate recondiliation,

Temporary diflesences sl carryforwanks at the ead of liscal years 2000 and 20049 were as follws:

2020 Deferred Tax 2009 Delerred Tax* _

{hallars i Millioes) Assel Liahiliry Assel Liahiiry
Employes related ohligaions 5 2404 2473

Stk hased compensation [ i 595

Depreciation & amartization ™ 1122

Mon-deductible mlangibles {6,567) [5AEI5)
International R&D capiabized for tax 1517 1,188

Heserves & liabilities 3 4bk 2,337

Income reported for fax purpsoses 1,705 1,605

Mt epuerating loss carryforwand intermations a4 BiB

Undistributed farelgn esmbngs iz (1,415) T (1.2m1)
Cilohal imargible how-taxed Inoome {,606) [2.4965)
Miscelloneous international 54 {211 G iy
Miscellaneos LS, Id 411

Tatal deferred income taxes 5 13,138 {11,818) 12,031 {18,170)

“Certain prior year amsunts have been reclassilied o conform o cament year presentatbong

The Company has whally-owned Inereatbonal suhchdiaries that have comulative mei brsses, The Company belleves that 1tk maore Hikely than not that thise
sibsidiaries will generale fobare taxable income safficient o oilize these deferred lax assets.

The folbrwing table summarizes the activity related o unrecognized tax benefils;

{halliars i il 20 015 2008
Beeginning of year ] 24853 a6 3,151
Iincreases related o carrent yesr lax positions 265 249 242
Increases relates] b prior period e posiiions L Ak 145
Decreases pelated bo prior period @y posithons. {551} () {147}
Settlements (B} E1] (41)
Lagrsiz of statute of linsitationms [23) (16} [35)
Fnd of year 5 3,373 3,853 3,326

The snrecogrized 1ax bencfits of 304 billion at January &, 2027, if recognized, would affect the Company®s ansual effeaive taxs e, The Company
comiucts basiness and Fles 1ax retarns in numerous couniries and carrently s s sadis in progress with o number of ax asborities, With respect tothe
Unitied Staves, the Internal Resenue Servioe (TRS) bas completed s audit For ibe s years through 20020 As of December 29, 2009, the Company classified
unrecognized tax bemefits sl related Interest

336/429



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E05943)
ooOooood

of approaimately $0.9 billion a5 a carrent Lohility on the = Aceroed tases on Income” line of the Consolidated Balance Sheeet. Tn the Giscal year 2020, the
Cmpany made ks final paymenis for approcimately 30,7 hillion ioihe LS, Teeasury reladed ooibe final setilemsent of 2000-2002 iax ol Habiliy,

I other majoe jurisdictions where the Company comducts business, the years that remain open (o tax audii go back 1w the year 2006, The Company believes
It ks possible that ax awdiss may be compbeted over the pext twelve monihs by faxing authorities in some jusisdictions patside of the Unbied Saees
Heowever, the Conpany is ma abile us provide o reasonably reliabie saimate of the dming of any other lumne L paymenis relsting o meerisn

ekt nere.

The Company classifies labilites for unrecognized tax bemelis and related incerest and penaliies as long-vem [Babilsbes, excepl as previowsly poted on
amaines relaved o the curment Uindiedd States TRS awdin, Intevest expense and penalties related o anrecogaized fax bencfles ae classified as income s
eapense. The Company recognieed after @x interest expense of £32 million, 550 million and 553 million in fiscal years 20050, 2019 and 2014, respoaively.
Thie total amount of acerued inferes was S468 million and $558 million in sl years 2020 and 2019, respectively.

% Employee Related Obligations
Al the end of fiscal 2020 aral fiscal 200%, employee relobed obligations reconded on the Comolidabed Balance Sheets were:

bl liars b Al s} 2020 201%

Pension berefils 5 5761 5,538
Prstretiremem henelis 2,20 2,047
Postemplayment bencfis 3078 R
Neferred compensation 4] K]
Total employee abligations 11,318 1177
Less cnrrend benefits payahle 547 S1d
Emplayee related obllgations — non-cummt 5 10,771 10,663

Prepaid employee relaved obligations of $656 million and $551 million for 2050 and 2009, respectively, are included in Other sssets on the Consolidated
alance Shects.
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10, Pensions and Other Benelit Plamns

The Company sponsoes various retirensent and pension plars, including delined benefit, defined contribstion and emination inlemnity plans, which cover
miwit empboyees worlibwlde, The Compasy also provides post-retlremaent hepelits, primarily health care, io all eligible U5, retieed eenployees and their
tlependents.

I'n'lurl.:qI Intermat ol t'mTllll]w\ are covened by govermament=sponsoeed programs and the onsd toibe Ii‘.|l11;:|.'.|.r|.3|I = mod sdgnificant,

In the LS, pon-union pcn:ilnq bl for mplrl_ﬂw;"i hired belome linuary 1, 2015 ary primarily hascd an ik cmpinvee's compensation during ihe last Fwe
years bielore netirement and ibe number of years of service (the Final Average Pay Tormula). U5, persion benefiss lor employees hired after 2014, are
caloulated using o different Tormils based on employee compensation over total years of service (the Retiement Vabie formula),

Iy Jamuary 2021, the Company ansounced that, effective on lanuary 1, 2026, all eligibile LLS, non-unbon employees,

regardlcss of hire date, will cam henefles under the Retlement Vabue formula, This amendment dees nog affect the benelis

accrued under the Final Average Pay formisda (o service before Jamuary 1, 2026 The impact of this change decreasis the

PR s of Ranuary 1, 2021 by approximately 1.8 billion snd is included i the = Amendments™ line inthe Change in Benelit Obligation.

Tiderniat el submilisies luve plae wider which fends ane deposiied wit etees, aanoities ane purchased under group amiracts, or reerves ane previdel.
Thie Company dises nat furdd retinee heabth care benefits in advance and has the right 1o modily these plans ia the fulore.

I 2020 and M09 the Company used December 31, 2000 amd December 31, 2009, respectively, as the messamemsent idase for all U5, aml internstionad
retirement and aiher benelis plans.

et periodbc bewelincosis for the Company *s defined benedit reibrement plans aml other benclin plans for 2000, 2009 and 2018 inchude the following
COmpaenis

Retirement Plans Diher Benefit Flans

(Whallars o Millisms) 0 2019 2018 2020 219 2018

Service cost $ 1,360 1,063 1,243 287 a7 269
linterisk cosl q955 1.0 R 133 s laa
Fxpected meium an plan assets (2481 [y (2213 (&} (8 i
Amonieation of prior service ome 2 [ a (RN A1) [y
Recognized actuarial Jowses (gains) L] 574 B2 142 129 123
Curallments anid sealemenis 2 7a 1 — — —
Pt periodic bemefit cost 5 79 505 923 524 551 502

Unrecognized golie and losses for the U5 pension plais ane amorieed over the average remakning litune service lor each plan. For plans with no active
empliyees, they are amoetized over the averapge life expectancy. The amonieation of gains and kosses For the other L5, bemefit plans (s determined by ising
a 1% corrldar of the greater of the market value of sssels or the accumulated posiretinement benelit obligation. Total unamoriized galns and losses in

eacrss o the cormidor sre ammatized over the average remaising oo srvice.

Priar servioe cosisthenefis for the U5, pension plars ane amartized over the average remaining future service off plan pantidipanis at the time of the plan
amenglment, Prior service cosbbenelB Tor the oiber ULS, benedii |1L1.|1.|. Is ammmtized over the average renaining service (o l'ullvl.'li|g;i|'l'lil::|.I age ol plan
participants at the time of the plan amendmiens,
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Retirerment Plans Oiher Benelin Plams
‘Worldwide Benelit Plans 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
Mt Periodic Benefit Cost
Service st dbscoum raly 2 ET % AEY 1M .04 445 1.85
Interest cost diseourm mte 1% 4173 A aod 15 ALz
Haie of increase in compemsation levels o, 00} 199 h.5d &35 4.9 4.8
Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets B2 % a3 B,
mm
[Hecaunm fxie 214 % 251 176 .1 8 4.40
Rate of increase In compensation levels A.00 % 4m 197 4K 4.9 41

The Company s discoant rates are deiermined by considering current yield curves representing high guality, long-term lised income Instruments, The

resalaing discour rates are copskstent with the duratlon of pl.m liabilities. The l:furn.panfa mhmhluﬂ' In determinkng service and iniernesi cost uses

duraiion specilic spol rates along thal yield curve to the plane lability cosh Aows,

The expectitl rates of returm on plan sl ssampiians nepresest the Company™s asesment ol lnng-emn metemns on idiversified invesament poetlobios.

ooOooood

glohally, The assessment is desermined using projectiegs. from extermal financlal sources, long-term hisiorical averages, acoiss] retums by assel cliss and the

varioas asset class allocatlons by market.

Thie folbowing table displays ihe assumed health care cost erond rates, for all individuals:

Health Care Mans 2020 2019

Healih care cost irend rate assamed lor next year 568 587N
Rate 1o which the cost fend rate is sssumnd 1o decline (ultimate remd ) .49 4,50 %
Year the rate reschees the witimate tred rate 2040

i
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The inlbowing tabde sets farth inlormaiins relaed i the benedl obligaion amd the (aie valoe of |1hn ansets @ fiscal :.ra-rml 200 and Ji1 9 fow 1w

Coompany s delined benedit retinement plans and other posd-retirement plans:

Retirement Plans Other Benelit Flans
iThnlliars i Al 2020 2019 2020 X019
Change in Benefit Obligation
Projecied benefii chligation — beginning of year 5 AT, 160 ALETH 5,076 4480
Service cosl 1,36y L 163 267 74
Interest cost 955 10496 133 185
Plan panticipent contribution. 6l L] — —
Amenimenis ! {1,700} — — =
Acniarial (galns) losses™ 5716 5176 (75) 562
IMivestitomrs & anquisitions i)y 2TR) - —
Curtallments, setilemenis % restrucuring {24) n7 — —
Bt pabd [roem plan {111} {1,555) 3 [46) {431}
Eilleer of exchange nales 1003 23 3 B
Projecied benefit ohligation — emd of year 5 43,300 a7, 188 028 3076
Change In Plan Asseis
Plam assets an falr value — hegianing of year 5 a.2o1 26418 15 160
Actual retarm o plan sseis 5524 G,185% 14 19
Camnpany conbribitions finl) W 17 347
Plan participant contributions &1 &1 - -
Seulermerils {15} {1} — —
Divestiures K aciquisitions (nd) (274) - —_
Beenedits pakd from plam assets (11113 (155655 () (431}
Effect of exchange rales 74T 7z — —
Plan assets af Falr vabme — end of year -] 38,195 ax2a1 0 15
Fusdhed status — endd af year 5 {5.105) {4.587) {4.938) [4.061)
Amounis Recognized in the Company's Balance Sheet consist of
the [ollowing:
Mon-cument assels L] 656 551 — —
Ciuement liahilines (125 {113 {416 {17y
Mot-current Habilitices {6305} {5,425) {45200 {4,564)
Total recognized in the comselidated balance sheet = end of year (5,105) (4,587} {4,938) {4,561 )
Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Intome consist of the following:
et acmamel boss 5 1 HERR B 3% 1463 1665
Priar service cost {orediy"! {1,797} () (24) (75
Unrecoznized net tramsition ehligation — — — —
Toea) before tax effecs 5 8,063 827 1419 1610
Accumulated Benefil Obligations — end of year 5 40356 33416

Min Saraary 2021, the Conpany annaunced that, elfective on Ransary 1, 2026, all eligible 1.5, nen-unlon employes, regardless of hire dete, will cam
hemelits under the Retirement Value lopmulba, This amemlment does not alTect the henefits soomed under the Final Average Fay Tormala for service balore

Jarmuary |, 2026,

iy aoarial losses for retirement plins in 2020 and 200% was peimarily reloted po decreases in discouns rates.
i 20005, ihe C DIy offered a w:qunl..l?' th L paiymsent opilon for cortain eligihbe forme rmrln:.rm whio ame vesied p;mklparlulf thi L1.5,
LY

Claaliled Delined l'u.nrfll Pension Plan, T
approaimately 5514 milkion.

dhl:lhl,.lhll:l ] b Ium|mun|\ s conmpbeied Il.:.' thie el
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Hetirement Mans Other Benefit Plans

(Wallars i Millism) 2020 018 2020 2018
Amounts Recognized bn Net Perfodic Beneflt Cost and Other
Camprehensive Income
et periodle henefit cost 5 750 543 504 551
Met acmiaral (gain) loss 1hl6 1084 (A1) S50
Amartieation of net actuarkal loss (1) 574) 142y {129
Prior servioe cost {oredin) {1, 780) — = =
Amoritzatbon of pelor service foos ) croadic 12} [4) 2 il
Effect of exchnge mies 293 ] | 1
‘Total lsss/{income) recognized bn other comprehensive Income,
hefone tax. 5 236 502 {191} 453

i i 1 [sliaiy
P R St RSl cost A e s 1026 1095 1 1004

The Company plans i continue to fund jts LLS. Cualified Plans io comply with the Pension Protecton Aot od 2006, Insermational Plans are fusided in
acenrdance with local regulations. Additienal discretonary comrfbutbons are made when deemed appropriaie to meet the long-term ohligatlons. of the plars,
Fur ceriain plans, fumding s mot a comman |'II'.1II.'I|CE. as funding provides no economic benedii. Comeguemtly, the Company has several pension plans that
are not fumded.

I 2020, thee Company contribited S240 million and 5429 millian 1o s U5 and intemational persbon plans, e pectively.

The folbwing able displays the fumibed stamus of the Companys LS, Qualified & Non-Cualified pension plans and intemational lunded and unfunded
permsion plais al December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively:

LS, 1Mams Iniernational Plans
Cialifbed Mans Ma-Cualilied Plans Frmided] Plans Unbusded Phans

ballars b il po ] Fill] 2020 Pl e aia 2020 pill]
Plan Assets 5 25,554 20,3568 —_ —_ 12,641 DB —_ —_
Frojecied Benefin Ohligation 25 46k 22004 2,748 254 14,541 12132 ah 47H
Accumulated Benelit Ohbligation 24158 15,481 2485 2115 13,210 11,040 k] 430
Orver (Under) Funded Status

Profecied Benefit OBl gatlan ] L (6363 2.748) (2,524 {1,504 1,329) (545) 14783
Accumubaled Benelil Obligation 1,56 1,567 {2,4495) {2015} {3659) {237 (53] {430}

I'Lans with accumalbated henelit obligations in excess of plan asscts have an sccamulated benefll obligatbon, profeoied beneflt obligation and plan assets
ol SELE hillion, $9.0 hillion amd 344 billicn, respectively, 2 the ond of 2020, and $4.3 hillion, $5.2 billion and $0.9 billlon, respeciively, at the erd of X609,

Thie Il bswing table ilsplays the prajectoal lumre benslil payments from the Company s retirement and ather Benelil plans

{illars i Millinw) azi JorE 22 redd 1023 2026-20%0
Prajected future benefit payments

Retirement plans 5 1,257 1292 1,464 1424 1,444 #7595
Cther hemelil plans 5 47 A} 451 465 417 2373

The following table displays the projecied Future minkmum contributions to the uniunded retirement plans, These amoants do not inchede any discretionary
conirbations that the Company may elect 10 make in e ftune

{Tallars b Millinm) 221 ] 003 LT 005 20262080
Prajected future contributions 5 (4 11] 116 121 &1 136 THT

il
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Eah pension plan b overscen by a local commitiee or bodrd iat is responsible for die overall adminisiration and invesument of e peision plans. In
determining Invesimend pollckes, straiegles and goals, each commiliice or board coasbders Factors including, local pessbon rules and regulations; local tax
reggalations; avablahility of investment vehlches (separate accounts, commingled accounts, Insurance funds, ete §; Tunded statis of the plams; mtio of actives
I retirees; duration of Habilities; and other pelevan Gectors includiog: diversilication, liguidity of local markets amd Siquidity of bate cummency. A majority
ul the Company™s pension lunds are open w new entrants and ane cxpected w be on-going plans, Fermitoed invesoiments ane primsarly Gguid andfor liseed,
with lnke reliance on illigald and pon-troditonal investments such as hedge funds,

The Comnspany ‘s petlrement plan asset allocation @ the end of 2020 and 2009 and warget allocations foe 2020 are as follows:

Plan Aaes Allscaon
Lot 2019 Loxl
Warldwide Retivensent Mans
Exjuiry securitles LR Td W 67 W
Tieht securitics 4 26 1
Total plan assets 100 4% i %% 180 %

Determination of Fair Value of Plan Assets
The Plan has an established snd well-documented process Taor determining fair values, Fair vabie i based apon guoted market prices, shene availabde, 11
lisaed prices ar guodes are el available, falr valae is hased wpon models tha primarily use, as inputs, market-hised of independently sourced marke
parameters, Including yield curves, nberest rates, volaliliies, cquity or debit prices. forelpn exchange rabes and oredin carves,

While the Plan bellevis fis valustion methods are appropriate and consisten with other market participants, the v of different metbodelogles or
assumplioas o determine the fair value of ceetain financial instruments could rewult in o different estimate of Tair valoe attbe reporting date.

Valuation Hierarchy
The aubucitative [ieratire establishes & three-level hierarchy (o priosiize the inputs used I messiring file value, The levels within the hierarchy ame
described in the @hie below with Leved 1 having the highest prioeity and Level 3 having the lowess,
The Ned Assel Vilue (NAV) s beed on the value of the undedyving asseis owned by ibe fumd, mimes lis [Labllbbes, and ihen divided by the numbser of shans
oautstanding,

A financial instments categorization within the valuation hieraschy is based upon the leowest lesel of inpatthet ts significant 1o the lir value
AT

Folbvwing bs a desoription of the valuation methadologies used Tor the Invesements measured ai fale value,

= Short-termn fvestment furcds — Cash and quesied shist-tenm Instruments are valied ab the closing price or the enount held on deposit by (e
custodion bank. Okhet investments are through ivestment vehiches valuel using s NAY provided by ibe sdministrator of the fund. The NAY sa
quaied price n & market that bs not sctlve and dassifiod & Level 2

*  Lovernment avd ooy seeurities — A limited member of these investments are valued at the closing price reported on the major market on
wliich vl imdividus) securities e raded. Wihene gl prives are availlulsle inan actve marke, the investinents are classilicd within Level 1ol
the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not availoble far the specific security, then lair valoes are estimabed by using pricing models,
iquented prices of securiies. with similar characeristios or discoanted cash Tows, When gqaoted markes prices Tor g secusily are st availabile iman
active marked, they are classified as Level &

+ Dby fastruments — A limiged number of these Invesiments ane valued o the chising price reponed on the magor marked on which e individual
securiibes are irnded. W'hﬂr;.;untn] prices are avallable In an active market, the investmienis are dassilied o Level 1. 1 quoied marked prices are
it avallable o the speciiic security, then lair values are estimased by using pricing models, quoted prices of secorities with similar
characteristics or discounted cash lows and sne classilied as Level 2, Level 3 deb instruments are priced based on anobservable inputs.

+  Eaquiry seeurities — Fguity securities are valoed at the dlosing price reporied on the major market on which the individual securitkes are tradied,
Substatbally all equity securiife ane classiled within Level 1 of the valuation hierarcky.

= Conmdreg el funsfs — These Investment vehicles are valued using the NAV prosided by the lind adminlsiraton Assels in the Level 2 category
have o quoted market price.
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= e msels — Oiler esseis ane pepresenied primarily by limieed parmeshigs. These investment vehicles are valued esing e NAY provided by
the Tund adminisirator, (aber assets that are exchange Hsied and sctively trded are classiliod as Level 1, while inactively raded sssets ane
classifbed as Level 1

The folbowing table weis forth the Retiremeni Plans’ investments measured atb fale valoe as of Decembser 30, 30550 and Decembser 10, 200%

unted Prios Significan
in Active Other w
Markets lor Cilmrrvalibe Ui aldr Tivvestrarits Mrasinrd
Idderitical Asiets. ligpiats Inpaars™! ol el Assel Vale
{Level 1) [Lavel 2} {Level 3) Tatal Assris
(hallaars i Millissses] a0 o9 2020 2018 2020 2019 2000 2019 2000 2019
Shari-term inveitmonl
[umls 127 1% 764 405 — — — — gl 524
Cievermment anel agency
securities — - 5,023 ERE o = -_— - 5,023 4,140
et instrumienss — — A831 2452 — — — — 2801 3452
Equity seturities 14,975 12,4408 2 2 — — — — 14,577 12,415
Commingled fumids — — 46590 2338 160 181 8236 7580 13,086 11,19
Chther sssets — — 1 L] 21 19 56 473 fi k|

Iveumentsatlair o 4502 1oz 1440 11346 181 200 909 B3 38095 32201

1B The activity Tor the Lewel 3 ssets s md significan for all yvars presenbed.

The Company's Other Benelit Plans aoc unfunded except for 1.5, commingled fusbs (Level 2) of $90 million and S84 million ai Decembier 31, 2020 and
December 31, 201%, respectively and LS, shon-term Investmend Tunds {Level 2] of £31 milllon & Decomber 31, 2009,

The fair walie of Johnson & Johnson Comman Siock direcily beld in plan awels wis 8945 million (25% of total plan assets) o December 31, 2020
anel $984 million (3.0% of toeal plan assets) st December 31, 2019,

11. Savings Plan
The Company has volintary $00(k) savings plans designed w enhance the existing retirement programs covering cligible employees. The Company

matches a perceniage of cach employes's contrifusbans eonsisient with the provisinas of the plan for which hefshe s eligihle. Toeal Campany maiching
cotributions o ihe plaps were $243 million, $215 million and $242 million in fiscal years 2020, 20049 and 2018, respectively,

m
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12. Capital and Treasury Stech
Chanpes in treasary siock were:

Treasury Sinck

LAmaunis in Mlllinns Exorgt Troassry Steck Share i Thowsanidsj Shares Amouni
Balance at December 31, 2007 4370180 § 1,554
Employes compensation amd stock option plies i 22.082) [ERL N
Heparchase of commen stock 42208 5 b
Balamee at December 20, 20048 457518 i B
Employee compersation amld stock mpiien plins [ 20,053) [2651)
R purchase of common siock 498070 6,745
Balane ai December 29, 2009 ELEE £
Employee compensation smd stock opiion plans (2 1,765) (3148
Repurchase of common siock 21,7e0 a5
Bralomce at Jamuary 3, 2021 a7 % 450

Agpregate shares ol comman stock lssaed were approximately 3,1098400,000 shares a the end of lscal years 2020, 2019 aml 2008

Cash dividends pald were $2.450 per share n Tiscal year 2020, compared with dividends of £3,75 per share in fiscal vear 2009, and $3.54 pe-fd‘::m' I fiscal
year 2001,

O Janwary 4, 2021, the Boand al Directors declared & regular cash dividend of $1.01 per share, payable on March 9, 2021 1o shareholders of recand o
of Felwaary 23, 2021,

On December 17, X008, the Company annsunced that iis Boand of Direceors approved a share repurchase program, aubarizing the Company 1o
marchase wp w850 hillion ol the Company's shanes ol comman stock. This share repurchise program was completed as of September 249, 20159,

13, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {Loss)
Comgponents of olber comprehensive income (loss) cansist of the following:

Tatal
Galn Aconmalabed
Fareign {Loss) Om ther
Currency G {Loss) O Emplover Benefit  Derivatnors & Comaperbrmive
{ikallars i Millioms) Transkation Securities Flans Hedlges Incomme (Loss)
Decermbier 31, 2017 5 {7351) 232 {6,150) T0 (12, 195)
Cumalative adjusiment (o retained earcings {202y m [FAFY]
MNet 2018 changes (1,518} — () (65} (1,791}
December 10, 2<I.I!Ill_ (1, Ry i {6, 158} (195) {15222)
Net 2019 changes 164 - 1733} 100y {h&E5)
Decembaer 29, 2004 (&, T05) - {6, E41 ) [245) {15,891
e 2020 changes (235) 1 (i) 947 (4]
Jarmuary %, 3021 3 (8,5 1 16,5957 652 {15,242)

1 per the sdoplion ol ASL JH6-01- Finasclal Istrutsents
Armummls b latiead v boer comprehiembve incone are presested e of de nelated e npacs Peodgn camency rambation 1s st adjusted foe i
taes where 10 rebyies o permancig Envcstmsents in imernations] subsalisrics, For additional desails on comprehemsive income see the Consolidwed
Statements of Campeehenslve Incame,

Dretails on reclassilications ool of Accumalaoed Cther Comprebensise Income;
Gasinf Lama) Oin Securithes - reclesifications releaed w Otler (income) expense, ma.
Emplayoe Benefit lans - reclisai lications ane incloded in net periodic beaclil cost, See Node 10 lor additianal detakbls,
Cealnf Lass} On Derlvatives & Hedges - reclassifications o camings are recorded I the same acoount as ibse hedged rransacibon. See Note 6 for
additional details,

n
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14, Internatiomal Currency Translation
For iransLatkon of i1s subsidiaries operating in non-LL%, Dallar currencies, tbe Company ks determined that the local aurrendics of its insemational
subsldiaries are the functienal currencles except those |n highly inflstbonary economies, which ane defined as those which have kad compousd cumulative
rates of inflation of 1P or mone daring ihe past thaee years, or where o substantial portion of & cash Nows ane o i the loca) cumency, For the majoriy
sl e Cosnpany’s sutsidiaries the local cusrency s the Tuscional currency.

T consalidating intermational subsidiaries, balapoe shoel carreney cllects are recorded as a component of acaumulated ather comprehensive income.
T utbsier ctirrenl sd nean current assets Diae within the Statement of Cash Tows ioclodes the dmspact ol Toreign comency translation. This ciuigy sceoeng
Ine ludes the residis of tramslating certain balence sheet assets amd labilites ab current exclunge retes and some accourts at hisodcal rates, excepl Tor ose
located in highly inflatienary coonomices, {Argenting and Veneeueba). The translation of halance sheet scoounts for kighly inflaionary cconomies are
rellecied inoibe operating resulis.

Aorlllorwand ol ihe changes during Mscal years 2020, 309 sl 2008 for forcign ourency wanslation sdjgsaments §s inclodead in Nose 13,

Mt curmency transaction gains and koesses incloded in Qiber {income ) expense were losses of $209 million, $267 million and 5265 million in fiscal
years NN, 20119 and 2088, respectively.

15. Earnings Per Share
The Tolbwing is a reconcillagion of baskc me iarmings per shane o diluted oo earmings per shane for the Dscal years ended Taaary 3, 2021, December 29,
2009 and December 30, 2018;

{In Mlliwns Foscoel Fer Share Amours| 2024 2018 2018
Basic met carmings per share ] 559 572 5.70
Average shares outstanding — basic ERALH AN | A6H]LS
Fosentlal shares exercisable under sick option plans 1ned 136.3 1390
Liesa shares repurchased under trexsury stock methad {04} {97 H) {915}
Comvertihle debd shares — 07 0r
Adjusted sverage shanes outstanding — diluled 2677 BT .77
Diluied et carmings per shane 5 5.5 SR 11|

The dibuted net camings per share caloulstion Tor Giscal year 2020 excluded 18 million shans related o swck oplions, as the exencise prive of these options
was grealer Lhas their average market value: As of January 3, 2021, b Company did not have convertible debo

The dibuted net camings por share caboulatbon for flecal wear 2009 excluded an insignificant nemher of shares related o stock optioes, as the exencise price
ol ihese nptions was greater than the average market value of the Company's stock. The dibined net eambngs per share caloulastion Toe Nscal year 2009
Inlutded the dilutive effect of converible debit that was offset by the related reduction in inleres: experse af 31 milllon aler-lax.

Thie dihited pet camings per share caboulstbon lor liscal year 2008 included all shares related 10 sock options, a4 the evercise price ol all options was les
than the average markst value of the Company’s saock. The diluted et camings per share caleulation for fiscal year 2018 included the diburlve effea of
comvertible debs that was nffset by the relaied redaction in interest expensce of 51 million after-tax

16, Common Stock, Stock Optkon Plans and Steck Comprnsation Agresments

Ab January 3, 2021, the Company had 2 stock-based compensatbon plans, The shares outstanding are for contracts under the Company's 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan and the 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan expined April 26, 2012, All options and nstricied shanes
wranied subseuend i et date were ander ihe 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Uidir the 2002 Long-Teem Incentive Plan, the Company may Bsoe up i
650 million shares of coimpon stock, plus aiy shaies cancebed, expined, Tosldead, or not sseed Tom e 2005 Loog-Termn Incemive Pla subsoguen) o
Aprll 36, 2012, Shares avallable for future grants under the 2002 Long-Term Incestbve Flan were 277 million ai the eed of Tiscal year 20020,

The compemsation cost that has been champed agalinst income for these plans was $1,005 millon, 3577 millon and S4978 milllon Toe fscal yeams 200,
2084 amal 2018, respectively, The ssal income tax beneli nnlwl.md iin the imcome statenaent for shae-hased compemsation costs was 3210 million, $227
million amd 5192 milllon for Mscal years 2000, 2009 and 2008, mespeciively. The Company also recognized additional Income tax henefits of 32408 milllon,
£209 million and $264 millbon for liscal years 2020, 2009 aml 2018, respectively, Tor which options wene exercised oe resiriciad shares weee vested The
lntal

2
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unrecognized compensation cost was S004 million, $623 million and $827 million for fiscal years 2020, 20019 and 2018, respectively. The weighted
average perind for this cost (o be reeognieed was 1,76 years, 171 years asd 1.7 years fior flacal years 2000, 2009, and 2008, respectively, Share-haced
conpensation conts capitalized & pait of Inventory were insigndficant in all periods.

The Compuany settbes employee benefit equity Bsiamoes with treasury shares. Treasury shanes ane neplenished through market punchises throughout ibe
year [or the number of shares used i senle employee henelin equity isssances,

Staek Oyppiians
Stock optbons expine 10 years from the date of grant and vest over servicoe periods that range from & moaiks o 4 years, Al options are grasted i the
average of the high and low prices of ibe {'uﬂ[un.y's. Commmon Siock on ibe New York Siock Exchange on the dabe of grom.

The fair walue of each option awanl was estimated an ibe doge of grast using the Dach-Scholes option vabuation mode] that s the assumiptions noted
in thee Tollowing tahle. For J020, 20159 and 2008 grants, expected svalaility represenis a blended rabe of 10-year weekly histordcal overall volaiiliy mate, and
i Seweek average implied volatility mee based on at-the-money traded Johnson & Johmson options with a life of 2 years. For all gramts, historical data s
sl o determlme the expecied Dile of the aplon, Thie riksTree rte was Tasaal an ibe LS, Treasury yheld cure bn el al the dme al grant.

The average loir value of optlons granted was $16.42, 1700 and $17 98, in fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 20108, respecilvely. The falr value was estimated
hased an the weighted average sssumptions ol :

2029 2019 218
Risk-free rate 147 % 256 % 177 %
Fxpeceed volatility 1533 % 1637 % 1577 %
Expecied life {im years) TN T 70
Expeced dividend vield 260 % 2HD % .70 %

Acsummuary of opuion activity under the Man s of January 3, 2021, December 29, 2007 gl Deeember 20, 2000, and changes during ihe years emling on
thasir dlates Is prosensed helow;

Aggregate

Imbrineic

{5hares bn Theusandsj Outstanding Shares  Average Exercise Price (Dradlars in Milliomns§
Shares at Decembaer 31, 2007 11306 § 4048 % 5480
Ciplhins gramed 17,015 129.51

Optioes exercised (16,220) 7544

Uptiors canceled/ lorfeied [2.541) 11250

Shares at December 20, 2000 109,652 98,29 _1.2‘14
Clplbies gramied 19,745 11194

Uptioes exercised (14, 715) Hr4a

Opiioes canceled/ Torfeled {2,975 125.11

Shares al December 29, 2009 111,637 105,63 4478
Ulpliiers ;'_hdml.'l] 20,723 15041

Oplions exercsed (16,275) 86,05

Oipthores canceledTorfeled [ 1,845) 13762

Shares at lanuary 3, 2021 114,250 § G622 § 4,703

The iotal indrimsic value of options exercisod was 31,020 million, $807 million aod $1028 million in lscal yeors 2020, 2009 and 2018, respectively,

EE|
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The folbvwing tabde summarizes stock options outstambing and exercisalde ot Jamiary 3, 2021

{%hares in Thauamlsy Cruatstaniding Exerrisahle
‘Weighted Average Weighied Aver

Fxrreiie Price Rangs Oiptions Average Life!" Eﬁﬂthl’m Optians r:-#ﬂ-vm?
SA2 2057254 1,1 18 sm.m 11111 S70.79
SAL A4S L0HD (R 220 1h L LI 9500
S100.48-5115.67 4,10 Sk S108.68 27585 S10851
212951510194 12553 7.5 S100.a5 145 1WA
$140.06-5151.41 20,102 9.1 515141 EC 515141

114,250 .0 £116.22 61,285 £56.97

" Awerage comvraciual life remalning in yrars.

Stack opibons otstansing at December 25, 5019 and December 01, 808 were 100,647 and an average [Fe of 6.0 years and 100,652 ami an avergre
lifir of 5.2 years, rspectively. Stock options exercisable ot December 29, 200% and December 30, 2000 were 610,761 at an average price of SH0408 and
S BG2 al an avenage price of $12.00, repectively.

Restricied Share Units and Performance Share Units

The Company grants nestricted shane units which vest over servioe periods (et range lom & months 1o 3 years, The Company also grants perlomance
share units, which are paid in shares of Johnson & Johsson Common Stock afier the end of a three-year perfomance perlod. Whether any perlormance
share units vest, aind the amount tha does vest, s ded 1o the eompbetbon of servioe periods that range Trm 6 menths 0 3 years anil the schievemen, ovir a
three-year perlod, of tbree cqually-welghted goals that direcly allgn with o lu'llp drive long-term wtal shancholder retmm: operational sales, sdjusied
wperational eamings pet share, sad relative wial dharcholder return, Beginning im fiscal 2020, performance shares were granbed with teo equall y-weighted
yvils that direcily aliggs with or help drive Bomg=tenm wtal shareholder retam; sdjusted operationa] eamings per share and relative wtal shorebolder retem,
The mumber of shares actually earmed at the el of the thnee-year pesind will vary, hased aaly on actual perlormance, from 0% (o 200% of the wgel
number of performance share units granted.

A summiary of the restricied share unbis and performance shan: unis aoivity usder the Plass a5 of January 3, 2027 §s presented below:

Ouistandding Restricted Outstanding
{5hares in Thetsands b Share Units Performance Share Units
Shares al December 249, 2009 16,764 2174
Liramied 5061 s
b ieed {5042 (mz)
Canceled/forfeedidjuseed (7o) (52)
Shares al Jamuery 3, 2021 14590 LI

The averape [nfr value of the restrictesd] share unils granted was $139.580, 812120 and $119067 in lzcal years NEN, 20019 and 3000, nespectively, wsing the
Talr markit value & the date of gram, The Lalr valoe of restricied shace unls was discounted Tor dividends, which ane pot padd on ihe resadoed share unis
during the vesting period. The fair valoe of restricted share urits tssued was $650 million, 5506 million and 5614 million in 2000, 2019 and 2054,
respociively,

q;::r wrl:hml.wmgf- Tair valiae nf ithe ru-r[rmnrh;r\hrrr"nll:s graneed was 516054, 51 2467 and S120.64 In fiscal years 020, MH04% and 2018,
caleulated using the weighted average Fair market vidue Tor each of the compoment goals af the date of grant.

The fair walwes for the seles and carmings per share goals of esch perfiormance share it were estimated on the date of grant using tee Lzir market valoe
of thve shares 3 the time of the awand discounted Do dividends, which are nod paid on the performance share units during tbe vesting period. The Tair value
[oa ik pelative indal sharehobler retum goal of each performance share wnit was estimated on the date of gram wsing thee Monte Carlo valustion madel. The
Fair vabue of performance share units isseed wis 351 million, 0% millon and $129 million in lscal years 2020, 2009 amd 2008, respeciively,

74
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17. Segments ol Business® and Geographic Areas

Sabes o Custemers i Change
(sl it Milliimsng 2000 2019 zo18 20 va, 19 19 vs, 18
Consumer Health)™
ore
LS, 5 LAkl 20 1, H50 2.4 % £
I ermasional £, 364 PR K 2484 {25) [2A¥)
Waorklwlde 4024 4444 4114 B 25
Skin HealthBeawy™
s 2350 1302 2413 (1.7 {04y
Interrationad 2,100 .01 1,974 {4.5) 11.2
Worklwile 4450 4593 4302 30) an
Oral Care
(T (5] i1 64T 99 (2.5)
Inprmaianal H5H i S18 57 (L2}
Wor hlwiike 1,641 152t 1,555 74 (.7
Taby Cage
U5, 76 A2 an a7 (14.2)
Intermational 1,141 a3 1436 {13.1) (R6)
Waockiwide 1517 1675 1850 {9.4) [5)
‘Women's Health
(1.8 13 12 13 B2z (5.5
Titermatiamad fisi 974 1,004 (i) (G
Wbl wiibe H01 486 1048 {f&) (B0
Wound Care/Diher
LS, 480 441 416 L] 1.2
Tndermatiomal 240 2 21 4.1 [
Wiklwiide T20 671 TS .2 (0,6}
TUTAL CONSUMER HEALTH
L5, 6,362 G459 5761 a0 1.4
Iitermations] 7691 1,059 1,092 {455 (.4}
Warklwiide 14,05 13,050 13853 11 [

iPreyimmsly referred 1o @ Consumer
ippieyisly referred 10 0s Beawy
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PHARMACEUTICAL

Immunalagy
LS, 10,175 8,641 5,073 55 63
Intermatiom & 1 4,508 4,047 112 (%
Worklwiide 15,055 13,850 13,120 749 (i
LS, 2,508 307 3,664 {115) {160}
LS, Exports b Pt A3 8.0 (327}
Inerma il iR 1007 1,206 (11.4) {17.8)
Winhlwilde 3,747 4,38 5,106 {14.4) {175}
EIMPON] ¢ SIMPONLARIA®
LiS, 1,155 1,15 1,051 i3] Tied
Indernational 1,008 1,01 1,53 58 {04y
Winrkilwlibe PR FAL L 2.5 S
SIELARN®
LS, 5,240 4,458 AAEY HE 26,3
Indermatinmal 26T 2015 IL6ET 24 194
Waorklwiibe 707 6,361 5156 FiN | 234
JREMIYA®
ik, ik Thd 451 1.3 LS
Indermatiomd 421 248 91 =R o
wWichilwiide 1347 Log2 Tisleil 3.z i |
ATTHIET: IMBALINGLCRGY
[15.% — = o — —
Internatiana] 11 (1] (1] b4 45
Warklwlibe 1 1 1] 4 45

Infectious Diseases
s, 1,735 1,597 1378 A6 1549
Indermatiomsl (FLEL] 1815 192G 13 (5T
Waorkdwide A574 2413 3,304 47 13
ECLIRANT® ¢ ol pdwirine
LS, 44 5 1] 111.2) {137}
rtermaiomad wen fi2 Tl 13.3 7.1
Winchlwide il | i 1.9 S

¥ L o L] = cTAY

. m{,m;._\_ | PREZCTMMN® | RESCLSTAY
LS, 1,587 1482 L6 e 256
Iidermationml a7 (] TBG {11.4) (123}
Wanrkibwide FALE 200 14965 a5 i
VTHER LSEECLIOUS TSEASES
LS, 104 126 151 (17.5) (16.5)
Indcrmationasl 223 al5 a2 2.0 {174&)
Workdwlde 427 au A3 [EX] (17.3)

349/429



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E05943)
ooOooood

Metirosciemie
LS, A0 2419 2,574 549 114
Indierm o] 3457 3408 3,500 1.4 27
Winrbilwiide 6,548 k] 6,077 a5 4.
LCONCERTA" ! mughyipbenibar
[HEA 103 m 3 {4 1.7
Indernatioml 419 R 434 5} [
Worklwiide 622 it bl (AL 44
A aen o waca
[
LES, 2,414 2,107 1,741 H98 174
Triternatlamd 1,339 1224 1,137 9.4 g i J
Wit bl wiibe 3,653 13 LHEH 2.7 13.7
HISPERAL CONSTA®
LS, 296 a4 k11 5.4) (1)
Internationad 5 a7a 412 75) (1.4}
Wiweklwiide [ i Tar (L] (.7
o 208 2k 259 12.4 1.4
It ernathonsd 1,434 1343 1510 (1.1] (10,7}
Warklwide 1,632 1614 1740 1.1 (7.7
Ocalogy
L5, L 429 4,131 15 (7}
Indermidiomnal 7275 B 5,513 13.8 16100
Wocklwlde 12,367 101,652 4,04 15.7 i
ARZALLK"
(L 2332 1,567 1,303 424 0.3
Indernatiomal 1,858 1 430 2 £ R 730
Warkdwide LR L 295 2025 XA AR
ERLEAUA®
LS 3 97 134 b A | —
Iidermatiomal 176 as — il =5
‘Worklwide T 202 124 o -
[MERLAICA®
s, 1,821 1555 L1 171 s
Intermatianeal 2,307 145 1466 240 4.9
Woekdwiide 4,128 3411 LA15 1.0 34
YELCADE®
[EEH == == 5 = —
Indernatianal Al 751 1,016 {45.7) {327
Waoeklwide 408 751 1,16 (45.7) 327y
ALYTIGA" ‘shiraterone aeetale
LS. 3 H10 L7 (54.0] (3.3
Intermatianal 207 190 (v 5.6 1540
Worklwiibe 2,470 279% R (11.56) {201}

”
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UTHER OROOLOGY
LS, B EL] 104 19.2 (3.7
Intermatinml 330 A6 362 (1) (7.2)
Wi klwlide 413 407 Ak 1.7 {187}
Pulmanary Hypertension
[EEH 2,133 1608 1,651 K 20
Indernatianal 1015 LR 4z3 B2 14
Waoekilwiide EREH 160 1573 man 1.5
OFSLIMIT
[LE 1,008 T T anF 9.4
Termatioml [:31] 562 S5 123 LT
Warklwide 1,635 1327 1,215 25 9.2
LIPTRAVT®
s, G55 714 =] na 193
Indermainml (R 15 ] R bl
Waorklwide 1,003 Bi5 661 a5 135
OFTIER
LS, 165 25 53 (17.5) (40.9)
Irtermimal 247 72 g {52} {20.5)
Wirklwiife 416 ATE. REG (12.8) (31.5)
Cardievascular / Metabolism / Other
(LR 4509 1T 4,279 (6.0) (127}
Tndermatiamal 1354 1458 1537 (W] A ]
Wi klwiide 4H7H 5,192 5006 (600 {17y
HARFLTC
LS, 2,445 2313 2477 1.4 [B.5)
Internstioml - - —_ — -
Waeklwide 245 2313 2477 14 (1]
IEYERRANA® L ENY OIS AMET™
LS. had % T 52 (24.5)
et rall 1491 ] 163 173
Worklwlide Tas T A1 Bz (16.5)
JROUHIT® S EFREX®
LLS, £+ 505 7d (#5.1) {25.1)
Indernational 74 285 4 [RE:)] {3y
Warkdwilibe 552 TH0 et {2} (20,0
OTHER
LS, v} Al a7 {15.1) (1)
Ingermational a4 4974 1053 {11.3) (T.6)
Workdwide 1,186 1353 1,470 (12.4) LEY)
TOTAL PHARMACEUTICAL
L5, 25,735 4T 23,160 7.8 2.3
Indernatjona 19,037 10324 17,480 B o
Wirklwiibe 45,572 42,19 40,734 B0 A6

8
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MEDICAL DEVICES
Diabetes Care
LS, — — m — |
Irdermatinm] _ —_ (] —_ -
Worklwiide —_ — 1,005 — B
Interventional Solutions
LS, 1,452 143 1,4 0.6 12.5
Indermianml 1,504 §.554 e 2k 14108
Waorklwiibe EACL LHT didh Lk 133
Oribopaedics
LS, 4,779 LRl 5,281 (uez) ey
Indermstinms 2504 X520 3,k {15.E) (2.3)
Warkdwlde 7763 Ll 8,805 122 (0,5
11k
IS, 753 1% 21 w2 L5
et a7 575 577 {15.9) [,4)
Waorklwlde 1,260 1A% 1418 (1. 14
BNEES
L5, 7d3 {51 11 (16.4) [2.4)
Indermatiamal 47 nal 541 {27 H) (X}
Workdwiibe 117 1480 1,542 210y (1.4)
TRAUMA
LS, 1,648 1652 1,58 0.2 a3
Tngermatioml S 1060 1,000 (9.5) [2.%)
W blwide 2614 2730 2,5 ) o
SPINE. SPCHTS & OTHER™
L& 1,505 1915 1,930 (167) {Ia)
Indernagiamad 1,004 1286 1,495 (14.1) IRE0]
Wi hlwide 2,699 A201 3,266 1157 (210}
Surgery
15, 3,249 226 4125 {15.1) (7.2)
Indermathanal 4,543 6T 570G {12.2) (v
Worklwiibe 8292 w501 9,501 (13.4) {410
ADVANCTTY
LS, 1,535 1637 1,657 (6.2) [n.2)
Indermational 230k LAGHE 2.M5 5.2) a4
Wockdwlde 3,839 4085 4,002 6.2) 23
GENERAL
U5 1,714 102 2,468 [21.8) 12}
Intermationsd 2,679 A5 3,431 (16.7) {53
W blwide 4,302 5406 5, K99 (1iLA) (R4)
Wishon
LS, 1,557 1.794 | P 13.2) {L]
Iermatiomal 2,362 L3 2,7 {16.5) LAk
Warhklwide L] 4624 4508 {15.2) 14

k|
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1L, 1,214 1,304 1237 (7.0 54

Internatianal 1781 2060 2,065 (14.7) L1

Wirklwlde 2,554 HRLF 1.302 (11.7) 2.7

SURGICAL

L5, 44 250 Sl (2.7) (a.4)

Indernatianal L T4 m 1£1.7) 44

waehlwitbe #25 1,222 1251 (24.5) (16
TOTAL MEIMCAL DEVICES

L5 11136 12384 12837 (10 (3.5

Internatiamnal 11920 171,579 14.157 (122 (4.1)

Worklwide 2249349 25,963 26,9594 {11.5) (RE]
WORLDWIDE

LS, 43,133 arna7 A1 25 5

International 39,451 30,962 9T (13 or

Wahilwiie $ 2,54 AL059 f1.561 0.6 % [T

"Preyinusly neferred bo a5 Spine & Other
*Ceriain pri voar amsats. have boem foglassi ol o condorm o curment year prosmiation
**Prorentage groater than 1% or nol meaningfal

Income (Loss) Belore Tax Identiliable Aswers

Ahsllaars o il 020 = 018 1% 20181 0 019
Coasumir Health 5 11.064) 2,061 4120 § 2155 MmAlE
Pharmaceuibcal 15,462 HA1& 12,568 h, 1541 e, 202
Modical Devices 3,044 7285 4,37 #4574 45,462
Tatal 17,442 18, B6d 15,245 13,191 132372
Lgsse Expense not allocated] o segments a45 Bi5 1,286

Gieneral corporate & At 80d 15,556
Warkdwide iotal 5 16497 17,328 17,5995 § 174,854 157,728

Additions Il Drepreciation amd
Plant & Eqmﬂ'ﬂﬂh Amartizatian

{halliars i Millisen 20210 2115 2018 2020 2 2018
Coasumer Health ] 244 Ada 41 5 TG ThG G
Pharmaceutical Hha a5 1012 ERCES A810 .50
Meilical Devices 1.5 14912 1843 2,140 4014 2,102
Sepmenis sl A0 3,150 3,490 6,911 6, i, 5
Cieneral corpsirale 256 a0 an 300 ] L]
Worklwlide iotal 5 3347 3400 1670 S 723 70049 G,92%
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Sales to Customiers Laong- Lived Assets ™
(bl o Millissss] 2020 2019 2ol z0z0 2019
Unled Staies 5 43,013 42,047 41,8084 % 49,551 41528
Eunpi 18,580 18,465 14,753 A5, 565 015
Westem Hemisphere excluding U5 5405 5,541 G113 2704 2,862
Asla-TPacific, Alrica 15,136 15,555 I4,H31 Soklid Sl
Segments tolal 2,504 2,058 1,581 107,532 7 9
Ceneral corparate 1,029 1,049
Cither non loag-lived asses 6,343 54,718
Waorklwide (oial 5 B2,584 B2,059 BlL5H1 & 174,804 157,728

Sew Mobe | for a description of the segments in which the Company aperates.

FExpenrt sabes are noi significamt. In fiscal year 200240, the Company utllized three wholesalers distributing products {or alll three segmients thai representod
approcimately 16.0%, 12.0% and 12.0% of the tolad consolidated revenoes. In lscal year 2009, the Company b theee wholesales disributing products
for all three sepments thal represented approxinaely 1500, 12.0% and 1109 of the woal consalidated revenues. In fiscal year 2018, the Company had
il wholesalers diseributing produces forall thne segments than represesiod approsdmately 14,00, 17.0%, and 17,00 of the weal consolidated reomuns,

T wmoamts nol dlocated o segments include inerssd (income) expense and genes] coporate (income) expense,
B Conerl conporae includes cash, cash equivabens aml marketahle securites
U Comsumes Healh inelodes:

*  Litigatkon expense of S35 hillion, primanly wale related reserves and cerain senbements.
Mharmuaceutical inclades:

*  Livgatkon expense of S0.8 billlon, primarily sdated 10 the agreement in principle o settde opiold lidgation
= A onnsalized gain on securities of $0.5 hillion

= A ressructuring related chaige of 50,1 Billion
Midical Devices ncludes:

* A coniingent consideration roversal of $1.1 billion relaced to the dming of cenaln developmantal milesiones msocisied with the Auds Healih
acejubsitisn

= Litigation eapense of 303 billion
* A restructuring related charge of 302 billion
= Apineproces reearch and development expense of $00.2 billion

®= A Medical Device Regulatbon charge of 30,1 hilllon
N oansumer Health inclsdes:

= A painod S billion related to the Company's prevdousdy held equity investment in EHE. ClELABO
*  Litigathon expense of $0.4 hillion

* A restructuring related charge of $001 billien
Pharmasceutical includes:

= Litdgatbon expense of 54, billlon of which $4.0 billlon b relaed 1o the agreement in principle i senbe oplold Hegatlon
= Apineprocess research and development expense of S008 billion relsted o the Alios st

= Avrescarch ol development expense of $0.3 billlan lor an upfrent paymsent related 1o agens

= A nnealized gain on securities of 0.6 billion

& Aoiclion .;h:qﬂ\Hinn and Inlg",rﬂilnn redaied cosis of $0.2 hilllon

® A restructicing change of 8010 hillion
Medical Dewices Includes:
= A painof 520 hillion from the divestire of the ASP basiness

1
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= A restructuring related charge of S04 billion
®*  Litlgatiin expense of $0.4 hillion

= Aurks Health scqulsltion and integratian related costs of 8001 billkan
M Cansumer Dealth inchodes:

® A painodf $0.3 billion from ibe divestiture of MIEO AL
*  Lidgastbon expense of 303 hilllon
Fhamacentical inclades:

®  Anin-process research and development charge of 1.1 billion relsted 1o the Alios and X010 assets and the corr
liahiliey reversal of $0.2 hilllon

= Actelion acguitsiien and Ingegration redated costs of $0.2 hililon
= Anuneealized loss on securities of $0.2 billien

= A gain of 0.2 billion from the divestiiure of cenaln non-sraegle Fharmacewical products
Medical Devices includes:

*  Litigatbkon capense of $1.7 hilllon
* A ressnucturing related charge of $006 hillion

fing X011 conti

o}

= AMO al:quhilirm anl mnbrgration relaied comis ol Sk 1 bllion

A painoof S5 hillion from the divestinire al the LifeScain hisiness

! Long-lived assets include propenty, plant and equipment, net for fscal years 2020, and 2019 of $18,766 and $17,6508, respectively, aml intangihle assets
anl Hm:ll‘wl", il for (iacal wars 2020 anid 2019 of S89.795 and 881,202, |1.-|.|1|.'|:l|w|y.

18, Acquisitions and Divestitures

Certaln basiiesses were scquined for 7.3 billion in casl and $004 billion of Babilides assumed during Tscal year 2020, These aoguisithons wene scoomed
T using the sogquisition method s, scoordingly, results of opersiom have been included in the financial satements from their respective dates of
acigisition.

The excess of parchase price over the estimabed fair value of taigible ssets scquired amounted 1o 57.5 billion and has been assigned w identifishle
Intangibdie sssets, with any residual reconded o goodw AL

The fiscall year 2020 acoalsitions primarily (ecloded: all rights 5o the Investigational compaoaing bermekimah, which has mliiple dermainlogical
Imdbications, along with certaln employees [mom XBiotech Inc. { XBistech), Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Momenta), a company that discevens and
ibevelaps mowel theraples for | mediated di s and the outstanding shares in Verb Surgical Inc., a company with signiflcant robotics and data
swience capahilities,

Dhiring the fiscal first quaner of 2000, the Company completed the soquisition ol all rights o the investigational compounill bermekimab, which has
il dermatoliogical indlcations, akirg with cemain employess [rm XBlatech nc,, lor o purchase price of SO0 billlen, The falr valoe ol the scgqulsition
was allocated primarily 10 nonsamontieable intangible assets, primarily IMR&ID, for $0.8 billion applying a prohability of suceess Lactor that ranged from
0% o B 1 reflect inbserent desielopmend, regulatary and commescial risk for the differens mdications. The discoant e applied was approximaley
16%. X Botech may be eligible wo receive additonal payments upan the receipt of certaln commencialization mutharieasions, The irmaction was sccounied
[or as a husiness cambination and Ircluded In the Pharmaccutical segmens,

Additionally, inthe fscal first quarter of 2020, the Company completed the acgquision of all mtstanding shares in Verh Sargical Inc,, a company with
slgmificant roboiles and data schence capablities, incloding those shares previously held by Verily. The transsciion was aconunged Tor i a businiss
comhination amd incluced in the Medical Desices segment. The fair valise of the acguisition was allocated primarily (o pon-amonizable intangible ssets,
primarily [PR&D, lor $0.4 billion, goodwill for $i.2 hillion, sber assets of $0.2 billion and labilites assomed of $0.3 hillion, The fair value of the
Compamy's previoesty held equity Investment in Verb Sungical Inc. was $0.4 hilllon,

O October 1, 2020, the Company completed the acquiskibon of Momenda lor a purchase price of approximately $6.1 billion, net of cash acquired, The
Fair vahie of the acquisition was allecated primarily 10 non-amonisable intangible assets (IFRBDY) of 560 biltion, geodwil of 51.2 billiea, aber assets of
$0.5 hillion and labililies of $1.6 billlion, The assets scquired ane intended b adidress substantial unmet medical need s mabiemnal-fetal disonders, neiro-
Inflammanory disorders, thewmsology, dematology and amolmmune bemaology. Depending on the assel, probability of success facors ranging lrom 200
1o 77 were used in the fair value cobeulsion 1o reflect inberent development and regulatoey risk of the [IPR&D, The discoum rate applicd was
appeoximately 13%. The goodwill is primarily anribatable i synengies espeded o orise lmm the business aopoisition s is norexpected o be dedictible
Tor tax purpaies. The tramsaction was sccounied for o s skness combination and Incloded [0 the Pharmaceiilcal segmend.
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Duriing liscal year 20049 comain busipesses were acgained for 358 illion in cesh and 1.4 billion of labilities assanmad. Thesi acguisilbons wen
accoanted for wsing the acquiskibon method and, scconbingly, resalts of aperailons have boen includod inibe financial stsiements From thelr respective dates
ol argulsition.

The excess of parchese price over the estimated foir value ol tangible ssels aoquired amounted (o 56,8 ballion snd has been assigred s identifiable
Intungillie assets, with any residual meconbed w geodw AL

The fiscall year 2019 acqaisitlons primarkly incloded DL CHLABO, @ Japanese company focused on the marketing, development and disiribation of 2
ternad range of dermogosmetic, cosmetic and skincare products and Aurds Health, Inc. a privately held developer of rehotic technologles, inltially focused
Im Bung cancer, with an FIMA-cleared platiorm camently used in bronchoscopic diagnestic and therapeutic procedunes.,

On January 17, 2004, the Company acquired DHL CELARO, o Japanese company foeoused on the marketing, developrent amd distribution of o hoad
range of dermecosmetic, cosmetic and skincare products lor a total purchese price of approximately Y230 billion, which cquaes w approsimandy 521
hilliem, wsing ihe exchange rate of 109,06 Japanese Yen to cach LS. Dhollar an Javuary 06, 200%, Additonally, in the fiscal st quarber of 2019, the
Company recognized a pre-tax gain recorded in Other (income] experse, net, ol approximately 0.3 billion relaged 1o the Company's previously hebd equity
Imvestment in KR, CELARD.

The Company treated ihis ransaction & o business combinstion and incleded it in the Consumer ealth segment. Dising the fiscal fira guanes of
2040, the Company linalized the purchase price allocation. The linal fair valiee of ibe acquisiton was allocated primarily 1o amonizabde imangible assets
Frr 1.5 hilliom, goodwill for $1.2 hillion and labiligles of $0.4 billion. The amonizahle inangihle sssets were comprised of hrand'rademarks and cusgomee
relationsdrips with o welghied average ife of 15,3 years The goodwill |s primarily atimbaiable oo synengles expected (o arise fmm the besiness aoquisition
andl is nit expeceed b be deductible for lax parposes.

On Apedl 1, 2009 the Company completed the acguisition of Auris 1lealth, s, for approximately 5.4 billion, netof cash acquired. Additianal
contingent payments o up o 5255 billion, inthe aggregate, may be payable upon reaching certain predetermined milesones, Auris Health was 2 privately
leeld aleveloper of rebutic wchnologas, initally fecesed in Jusy cancer, with am PDA=cleaned pladfonm camently wsad in o bescpic diagnosic and
therapeutic pmcedures. The Company treated this transacibon as 3 heviness combination and inchoded & inthe Medical Devices segment. The fair valee of
ihe acquisitbon was allocated primarily o amortizable and non-amonizable intangible assets, primarily IPRSLD Tor $2.0 hillion, goodwill for 2.0 billlan,
marketable securithes of 50,2 billlon and labllibes assumed of S18 billion, which includes ibe Tale value of the contingent paymenis memtboned above,
Iharing the: fiscal second quanter of 2020, the Company finalized the purchase price allecatbon, During Fscal 2020, the Compary reconded Coher income of
approximately $1.1 billion Tor the meversal of all of the contingent consideration relaed 1o the tming of cenain developmental aml commercial milestones,
which are not expecied v be met based on the Company™s current limelines, Dusing the liscal thind quarter of 2020, the Company reconled a partial
IPH&DY impatrmest charge of $0.0 billion related o timing and progression of the digital surgery plafomms. A prohability of success ctor ranging frim
S5% o 95% was wsed inthe Lair value caleulation w reflect inberent regulatony and commercial dsk of the contingent payments and IPRE&T). The dscaunt
rate applicd was spproximately 10%. The goodwill is primarily attributable b syneqges expectod (o arise rom the business soquisition and is nol expected
1o b dedictible for Ly pumpeaes.

During Nscal year 2008 coraln buisinesses were acgalmed for 30,9 hillion in cash and 301 billlon of lishilities assamad. These acquisitbons were
accounted for wing the acquisiibon method amd, acoondingly, rL-wIl.'l.n!'uper.:tlnm. have been incloced in ibe financial sisiements from |ht'.lru:-.|pqctlw dates
of soquisition. The excess of purchase price over the ecstimated Fair valoe of wegible avsets acguired amounted w $1.0 billion and hes been sssigned 1o
identifiabde intangible assets, with any residual recordid in gendwill,

In accosdance with U5, GAAP standards related g0 basiness combinations, and goodwill and other imangihle asseis, supplemental pro forma
Imframation for Tiscal years 2020, 2009 and 2000 ks nist provided, o the impact of the alorementioned acabsitlans did to) have a matesdal eifect on the
Cosmpamy s resubis of operations, cash Nows or linancial pesition.

Divestitares

Suhsgquent 1o fiscal 2020, in sepamie ransactions, the Company divested two brasds ooside the 1S, within the Pharmaceutical segment and recelved
cohinel proceeds of approximately S006 billion. The Company will reflect these brand divestitunes in 5 2021 linencial resalis,

During liscal year A, the Company salel 10,18 million shares of Tdomias LTT [Idmla'_l. o jis 8.3% ownership in thie company. The tramaction
resailied i gross proceeds of approximately CHE 337 million (5357 million) hsed o6 o sales price of CHF 28.55hare and an immateriol net loss, The
Comgany currenily has rights (oo leasa an additional 387 milllon shanes (o approximately 20% of Idissia egulty ) thiough a convertible loan with @
pringipal amound of CHE 445 milllon (dee Jane 2027), ldorsia also has access wo an apprasimate CHE 243 million credit Taciliy with ibe Company, As of
Tamuary 3, 2021, ldomsia has not made any dlrivwrsdlmvnes under the credit L'M;IIII}.

Iniringg liscal year 2009, the Company divesbed Bis A% husiness 8o Fortive Corporition Tor an aggregate valse of approximalely S2.1 hillion,
corsbsting of $2.7 billion of cash proceeds and 3001 billise of rained net recelvables. The Compary recognized o pre-ax gain recorded in Oter { Income)
capense, net, of approximately 2.0 hillion.

L]
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Dwutiing liscal year D00, the Company divesved e LileScan e business [or approsineely 521 billios amd retainnl cemain ot Babilivies, Ol
divestiures In fiscal year 208 Included: NIZORAL®, RoC* and conaln nan-sirategle Phammaceutical produces. In 2018, the pre-tax gains on the
ilivestiures were approximaiely 512 hillion,

I Fiscal year 200H, the Company acceplod a binding offer i lomm a sirsegic collsboration with Jabil Inc., one of the world's leading mandscturing
services providens Tor leealth cure produces and technology products, The Company is expanding 4 12-year relativrship with kabil i produce o runge of
prabucts within the Ethloon Endo-Surgery omd DePuy Synthes basinesses, This transaction kncludes the transfor of employecs and manufacturing sises, The
iransfers wore compleved in fscal year 2030, As of lanwary 3, 2021, there were no aseets held [or sale an the Consalidsied Balapce Sheet. As of Docember
29, 204, the assets beld for sale on the Consodidated Balance Sheet were 2001 billiom of inventory amd propery, plant and equipment, net, For 2dditional
details on the global sapply chain mestrucuring see Note 20w 1he Consolidated Finsncial Statements.

19, Legal Procesdings

Jahwson & Johnson and cemaln of bs sibsidiaries ane Involved (v varbows Liwsulis amd claims regarding produc lahilicg inellecual propony; commercial;
supplicr indemmification and other matters; governmental invesiigations; and other legal proceedings that arise brom time 1o dme in the ordinary course of
thelr Bussbness, D 10 the ongoing Impacts ol the COVIE=19 pamlemic, certan rals have been rescheculod or drla.:.'nL Tha Crsmpany conbinues lo monitsr
ins legal proceedings as the situation evolves.

The Company recands accruals for loss contingencies associated with these legal maters when it is probabile tha a lishilitg will be incurred and the amoust
ol ihe loss can b reasmnably estimated. As of Tamiary 3, 2020, the Company has determined that the labilies associated with cemaln ldgation mateers ane
mrohable and can be reasonably estimated, The Company has acorued for these matiess and will continee 1o monkor each related begal sswe aned adjust
accrsls as might be warranted hased on new Information amd Tunber developments in accondance with ASC 450:20:25. For these and other ltigation and
regulatory matters discussed below Tor which a loss s probable or reasomably possible, the Company ks unable to cstimate the possible loss or range of lows
heyonid thse amnings acomicl. Amonis acersed (e legal comingencies allen resall fram a complix seres ol judgiments ahoul fumine evenis sl
uncertaingles that rely heavily on estimanes aml assumptions including tming of related payments. The ability o make soch estimates and jedgments can be
affecied by varlous faciors Inclusding, amonis ather things, whether damages sought In the progeedings ane unsubsantlated o indeterminaie; sclemiflc amd
legtal discovery s naol commencosd or B nit complete; proecesdings ane in carly tages; malters present legal amcertaimies; there are significant fagts in
ibispuate; procedienal or jursidictional fsswes; the uncectaingy and enpeedicabiling of the mimbser of potential claimes; abilitg we schieove comprehensive mulii
party senbements; complexity of relsted cross-claims and coumterclaims; anil'os there are namersss pamics involved. To the extent adverse verdicts have
D remdlired aggains the Comipany, the Company does nol recond an aconaal amil o loss is deterimined o be probalsde aml can be reasunably estimased

I ihe Company’s apinion, based on li= examination of these maisors, jis experience (0 date and discussions with counsel, the uliimale owicome of legal
pracecdings, net of lLabiliies scomed in the Company's halance sheet, is mot expected 1o have a material sdverse effect on the Company's financial peersdtion,
Hewever, the resolution of, or increase in scoruals for, one or mone of ihese matlers in any repoming period may have & materal slverse effect on the
Cummigainy’s resullis of operatinm and cash Duws Tor tha period.

ERODUCT LIABILITY

Tohason & lohason and conain of s subsidiasies ane involved in numenows produce Habiliny claims and lawsuis imolving maltiple products, Claimams in
these cases seek substantial compensatory and, where available, punitive damages. While the Company belbeves It has substantial delenses, i is nol feasible
e presdiat che et outcome of D getam, Froos dme o ime, even 10 substantial deferses, e Company cunsiders alaied setthements baseed an o
variety of circumsgances. The Company has established accrsals Tor product lability claims and Lawsaits in complianoe with ASC 450-20 based on
currently available information, which in sone caves may be limied. The Company sccries an estimate of the legal defense costs necded o defend each
maiter whin those costs are prohable ind can be reasonably caimased. For cemain of these matters, the Company has sconsed adiditional amounis such as
estimated cosis assoclaied with seidemenis, demages and other losses. Product Hablity acoruals can represent projecied product Habdliy for ibosusamls of
claims around ihe waorld, exth in differeni lidlgaiion covimnmenis amd with differeni Fact patterns. Changes io ibe socnmals may be requined in the foture as
ailelitional knfommation hecomes aval lable.

e mosst significant of thise cases inclodes the DePuy ASR™ XL Acetabidar System and DePuy ASH™ Hip Besorfacing System; the PINNACLE®
Acetabuler Cup System; pelvic meshes; RISPERDAL®; XARELTO®; bsly powders containing take, primarily JOHNSONS™ Raby Paweler;
INVOKANAY, and ETHICON FHYSIOMESH® Flexible Compasite Mesh As of Januwry 3, 3021, in tbe United States there were approximately 560
plainiiffs with dired claims in pending lowswiis reganding
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Injuiries allegendly s o ihe DePuy ASRT™ XL Acetsbular System aid Deluy ASIE™ Hip Besurfacing Sysien; 7800 witli nespect w tie PINNACLE®
Acetabiilaz Cup System; 14,900 with fespect 1o pelvic meshes; 93500 with respoct 1o RISPERDALY: 12,600 with respect 1o X AIRELTO® ) 25,000 with
et o hody powders oomtaining Lalc; 080 witls respect bo INVORANA"; and 4,50 with respect o ETHICON PIY SHOESH® Flexible Composile
Mleah,

In Augest 3010, DePuy Onthapaedics, Inc, (IePuy) annuained 2 worldwide voluntary recall of s ASR™ X1 Acctabular System and DePuy ASR™ Hip
Resurfacing System wsed in hip replacement sungery. Claims lor personal injury have been made against DePuy amd Jobnson & Fehnson, The number of
penuding lawsulis i cxpected eo luctiste as cortain lowsilis are seitled or dismissed sod sdditonal lawsules ane DNbed. Coses lled I Poderi] cours in the
Unitied States have been onganieed as a multi-disirio liigation in the Undued Stsies District Coart for the Northern Disirio of Ohdo. Likgation has alss been
Hed in coantries oatsice of the Unbed Stases, pmarily inotbe Unlicd Kingdom, Canada, Australla, Irelaml, Germany, Tsdia and lialy, In November 2003,
Mty eached an apreement with & Cauni-appoimied commities of lowyers represeniing ASR l|||'| Sysiem plaingifls in establish a progeram lo seitle clalms
wilh cligible ASH Hip patlents in the Uniled States who had sungery 10 replace thelr ASR Hips, known as evision sergery, as of Augost 31, 20000 DePuy
reached additions] agreements in February 2005 and March 2017, which (uber extiended the settbement program o inchade ASR Hip patients who had
revision surgeries alter August 31, 2003 and prior to February 15, 2007, This settlemert program has resolved mose than 10,000 claims, therefone bringing
o resalution slgnificant ASK Hip lidgasion activity In the Unied States. However, lawsalis inibe Dinbied Staees remadn, andd the seitlement program does
nat address liligation owtside of the LUnited States, In Australia, a class action setlement was reached that mesolved the claims of the majority of ASE Hip
pratlemis in that country. In Cansda, the Company has reached agreements o setibe the dlass activns Tiled in that coustry, The Company continues to receive
information with respect fo polential additional costs assocbsted with this recall on g worldwide basis. The Company has established ocerials for the cosas
associated with the Uniied Staies cetloment program and Deltuy ASIR™ Hip-related produet labiliny Hogaion,

Claims [or persanal impury have also been made against DePuy Oethapaedics, Inc, and Johnson & Iohnson (collectively, DePfay b relating to the
PINNACLE® Acetabular Cup Systemn usesd in bip replocement susgery. Product Habilley lawsuiis continue g be filed, and the Company coalinaes in reoelve
information with respect 1o polenilal costs and the anticipated number of cases. Cases, (ibed in federal courts in the United States have been organized as a
mnplii=diserict Hrigation in the United States Districr Court Tor the Nomheon Distric) of Texas. Litgation has also been filed in some state cosirs and in
coamiries outskde of the Uiniied States. Several adverse vendicts have been rendered againss DePuy, one of which was roversed on appeal and remanded for
retrlal, Puuring the Tt quaner of 2009, DePuy established o Undied Staies sstilement proggram io resolve these cases, As part of the setloment program,
athverse verdicts have been setibed. The Company has established on accrual for product lishility litgation associated with the PINNACLE® Acetabular
Cup System and the related setilement program.

Cladims laf persoial injury have been made against Ethicon, Inc. (Ethicon) aisd Jobinson & bohnson arsing out of Eildcon's pelvic isesh devices ased o
treat siress wrinary Incontinense and pelvic organ prolapse. The Company continaes (o receive nlemation with respect to potential costs and addigional
catees, Cases fiked in lederal counts in the United States had been orgariced o+ a mubti-district liggation {MDE) in the United States District Cowrt (or the
Southern District of West Virgtinda, The 801 Cowert i remanding coses for tral 1o the jurisdictions whene the case won orginally Tiled amd additional pelvic
miesh Lawsulis have boen filed, ol remadn, owislde of ithe ML, The Company has setiled o otherwise resolved o majodty of the Unlted Sates cases amd
the pstbmated costs mssoclated with these setilements and the remaining cases are reflected In the Company's scomals, [n addition, class actions and
Imlividual personal injury cases or claims hove been commenced In varkoas couniries oulside of the Unied Saoes, including claims and cases in the Unied
Kingidam, the Netherlands, and class actions in 1sracl, Australia and Canada, seching damages for alleged injury resuliing from Ethicon's pelvic mesh
devices, In Movember 2004, the Federal Court of Australia lssoed a judgment reganding iis findings with respect 1o Bahdliy in relaiion o the three Lead
Applicants ard generally In relstbon o the desipn, mamifacture, pre and post-market ssessments end testing, and supply and promation of the devices in
Australia wsed 1o tread siress arinary incostinence and pelvic oman prolapse. In Masch 2020, the Court entered damages awards (o the three Lead
Applicants. The Campany is appealingg the discision. With respect s ather gmop members, there will bean individsl case asessment prcess which will
reguibre proof of we and cousally related |oss, The form of the individual case assesament process has not yet been determined by the Coure, The class
actions In Canada were discontimued in 20040 as a resubt of a setilement of a group of cses, The Company has estahlished acoruals with respedt o product
liability litigabon associaled with Eihicon's pelvic mesh prodacts.

Fllowing i Juoe 3006 worbdwide market withdrewal of ETHICON FHYSIOMESH® Flesitibe Compuesioe Mesh, claims for pevsenal injury bive been imade
apainst Ethicon, Inc. and Johnson & Rohnson alleging personal injery arising oot of the use of this hernia mesh device. Cases filed in federal cours inthe
Linited Stabes have been onganieed as a multi-disiriat Neigation (ML) in the United Stoles Districd Court for the Northern District of Georgla A malti=
county Titlgation (MOL) has abso been Tommed in New Jersey state court and assiged w Adantic Comnty Tor coses pending in New Jersey. Inaddighon o the
matiers in the MDD, apd MECL, theve are adelitional lawsuits pemding im the Unkied States District Court for the Samtbem Disirict of Chia, which are pan of
the M, for palypropyleae mesh devices manufeciuned by CR, Bard, Inc, and lowsoits pending outside the United States. Discovery is proceeding in
ihese cases and cerigin of the cases are In pwﬂlnn for traks.
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Claims have also heen fiked againsg Fihicon amd Joh ¥ lohi Heglng personal njuries arising from the PROCTED™ Mexh and PROCEED® Ventral
Patch brnia mesh products. [In March 2004, the New bersey Supreme Coart enteredd an onder consolidating these cases pending in Noew Jereey as an MCL
in Addantic Coumy Superior Cours Additonal cases have been filed in various [edera] amd ste couns in e US, and in jurisdictions caside the 15,
IHscovery ks mnderway In these cases,

I Sepremsher 2009, plalmifl=® dtinrney filedd an application with ihe New Fersey Supreme Court secking cenimlized mansgemem of 107 PROLENE™
Polyprogylens Hermla System (“FHS™) cases. The New Jersey Supreme Court granted plaineiffs application in January 240 and those cases have ol been
transferred o an MCL in Atlantic Coumty Superior Court. Discovery ks underway in these cases,

The Company has established acomials with respoat to produst labiliey Hegatbon associated with 1008 PHYSIOMESH® Fexible Compesiie Mesh,
PROCEED® Mesh and PROCEED® Vemral Patch, amil FROLENE™ Polypropylens Hemia System products,

Claims Fr personal injury have heen made against Jomssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc, and Jalimsen & Jehmson arfsing out of the use of RISPERDALY, amd
related compounds, indicated for the trealment of :L'I:I.uqﬂuml.u.. acute manic or mised episoles assascialed with hlpul.l.r I disorder ansl fritahility associated
with aulbsm. Lawsuils have been primarily filed in state couns in Pennsylvania, Califomia, and Missouri, Other octions are pending in various cours in the
United States and Canada. Product liahillty lawsuiis continue to be filed, and the Company conlinses o receive Information with resped to potential costs
angl the anticipated mimbser of coses. The Company has sucoessiully defensghal a mumber of these cases but there bave heen verdices against the Company,
Inc ludking a vendict in Ciceober 2019 of $8.0 billion of punltive dameages relaved o one single plaintll which was subseqaently reduced In Januwary 2024 o
6.8 million by the trial judge. The Company ard plaintiff are each appealing this judgment. The Compary has seabed or sherwise resolved many of the
Uinied Suves cases and the cosis assoclaved with these seilements are reflecied In the Comparny's acomals,

Claims [or perasnal infury arsing out af the we of XARELTO, an oral anticoagulant, have been made against Janssen Pharmsceuticals, Inc. (JPL);
lnhowon & lohawn {1ETY; ard AP0 collsharation pariner or KARFLTO", Hayer Al anel certalm ol fix alfilistes. o (fled in federsl courts in ibe Uniged
Slates huve been anganiosd as aomalgl-clisirict likgation in the Unites) Sgaies Distriol Cour for the Easiern Disiricon of Loslslana, In additlon, cases have been
liled i state coums across the Umited Staies. Many of these cases wene comsolidated into a stabe mas Lo |lﬂanﬂnl1 in I"ihilalldphla.. Peonsylvania and in a
coardinated procecding in Los Angebes, Calilomia, £ass action lwsuils also have been filed in Canada. In March 2009, 100 amd 183 announced an
apreenient i principle o the seitle the XARELTO" cais i the Unbied Staces; tie seidement agroement was excouted in May 200%, the sctilement became
fisal i Deecember 2002 and 1he seqilement was funded in Jamiary 2020, This resolved the majority of cases pending in the United States, The Company
Inas established accraals for (s cosss associated with the United Stases seubement program and XARELIT® related prodact lisbiliy lisgation.

Persamal infury claims alleging that tals causes concer have been made agaimt Johnson & Johmson Consumer [nc. and Johmson & Johmon arising oul of the
usie ol hody poweders containing tale, primarily JOHNSON'S" Baby Powder. The number of pending personal injury lawsuiis continmes 1o increase, and the
Cimmpuany continues 10 receive information wiih respect (o poleniial costs and the anticipated numbser of cases. Lawsuits have been pomarily liled in staie
ciwuris bn Missour, Mew kru_r and Califoamla, and sulis have also been filed owside the Unbed $States. The majority of cases are penaing in federal court,
mrganioeil ingo a mudii-district Hagation {MOL) in the Uniied Staaes Diéstrict Court for the District of New lemsey, Inthe MU, the parties sought @ exclode
cxperts throagh Daubent motions. In April 2020, the Court Bsued rulings that limi the scope of testimony, including some theories and teseing methads, for
certadn plaintil expeon witnesses aml denbed plaingiifs® aempt i lmii de scope of westmony of cenaln of the Compary*s witnesses, With this naling
maie, case-specifle discovery has begun per the Court's dimeotbve,

It ke cases that have previously gune 1o wal, the Company has obtalined defeme verdicis in g nomber of them, but there have also been vendics agalnsd
the Company, many of which have been reversed on appeal. In June 2020, the Missour Coun of Appeals reversed inopart and affimmed in part a July 2010
wverdict ol $4.7 hilliom in fgham v, Tolson & fodinson, of ol,, Mo, FTY 207476 (Mo, App.), redoeing the overall award 10 82,1 hillion and, with adiitional
Imierest as ol Lanuary 3, 2021, a5 the Company purseies [urther appeal, s camently $2.5 billian (e Dglram decisionl An application for tansler of the case
tr the Missiur Supreme Count was subsequently denled, aml the Company s curmently seeking review by the United Swaies Supreme Court, The Campany
continges 1o belleve that it has strong legal groumds for the appeal of this vendicy, & well as other verdics thas i has appealed. Moo ithstanding the
Comnigrangy s Confidence in the salety ol it ke producs, in cemain clicumstances e Conpaiy has and may setibe cases. The Company has cstablishad an
averisi] lor defemse costs and reservis Tor the resalution of centaln cases amil claims, including the Inglam decision currently on appeal, in connection with
peroduict. [iehiliny litiganion associsted with hody posders containing adc

I February 2009, the Company s talc supplier, Imerys Talc America, Inc. and two of s affillates, Imerys Tale Vermont, Inc. and Imerys Tabe Canada, Inc.
[oodlectively, fmerys) filed a volontary chapaer 11 petition commencing a reonganieation under
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e Urnied Stages Bambrupacy Cade in te Unied Siies Bankmipicy Court foe the Districn of Delaware [limerys Bankrapiey )., The Biaerys Bankrploy
reldtes 1o Imerys” potential lishility for personal injury from exposure 1 taloum posder sold by Imerys (Tale Clalms ). In s bankmipacy Tiling. Iserys
mated certain clabms it alleges it has againg the Company Tor Endemnification and dghts s joing insuranoe proceeds, The Campany presviously proposed o
remabve Imerys' (and the Company s} obligations arising out of the Talc Claims by agreeing o assume ibe deferse of litigatbon of &l Tale Claims invalving
the Company's products, walving the Company s indemnification clabms against Imerys, and lilting the astomatic stay to enahle the Tak: Cleims o procesd
tatsicle the bankrupicy fomum with the Company agreeing Lo seitle or pay any jedgment againsd lmerys. In May 2020, Imerys and the asbestos claimanis®
commiites (Plan Propanewts) filed ithelr Plan of Reorganization (the Flan) and the Disclosore Saiement relatod theto agreeing o put s Monh American
operations up for aiction which was subsequently amended. The Company has objecied wo the Disclossare Siaemem amd insends o ohject wo the Plan of
Heorganizatbon as currently stractared. Adiditiorally, in Buse 2020, Cypras Mines Corporation and s parent (Cyprus) (bed an adversary proceeding against
the Company as well as Imerys seeking o declarstion of indemnity under cerain coniraciual agreements. The Company denies such indemnification is
owed and [ed @ maotion to dismiss the adversary complain anguing, simong sther things, that the Court does nit have subjed mater jirdsdiction aver
Cyprus"s clalms against the Company. The Plan Progunents lled numerous amendments 1o the Plan aml Disclosure Swaement w which the Company
uvhfecied. A hearing on the PMlan Moponent's Disclosure Statement was held in Jamary 2021, and the Coian entered an order approving the Disclosure
Statement for the Ninth Amemded Jalng Chapder 11 Plan of Recrgandzation of Imenys Tale America, Inc, anel s Debior AdTilaes allowing Debinrs o
procesd with soliclting vedes on the PLan. The Company Intends s contlnee 1o ohject (o the Plane & hearing (o consider conlirmation of the Flan his heen
scheduled for June 2021

It February 2000, & securithes cliss action [awsaill wes lled against Johason K Johmson and cerain named officers in the United Ststes District Court fos
the [ristrict af MNow bersey, alleging that Johnson 8 Johmson violoted the federal securities laws by Lailing 1o disclose alleged asbestos contamination in
haidy poweders containing wlc, primarily JOHNSON'S® Baby Powider, and that purchasers of Johason & Johrson®s shares suffered losses as a resuli,
Plaingiff is seeking damages. In April 2009, the Company moved 1o dismiss the complaint and beieflng o ibe motion was complece as of August 2019, In
Pecember 2009, e Cour denéed, in ;n'nl..lh: i o demine. In March 2020, Delendants am the complainL. THwovery s anderway.

I June 200%, a4 shareksolder iled o complalm infliaing o summary proceciling in New lersey stabe court for o books and reconls inspection. In August
2019, Johinson & bohison n:ﬁmkd e the books and records complaint and Tiled o cross metbon 1o dismiss, In Sepember 2009, Flaiatfl replied and the
Lot heard oral argument, The Court bas not yet nuled in the books and records action. In Ciciober 20049, December 2004, and January 020, fous
sharchalders fibed four separate derivative Lawsuils against Johmson & Johmson as the nominal defendant and (s oorrent. directors and certain offioers as
telendants in the United Scsies Pisrict Court for the District of New Jemsey, alleging a breach of Tlduclary dutles relsted fo the atle ashesios
conlamination im body powders containing lale, primarily IOHNSONS" Haby Powder, and that Johnson & Johnson has suffered damages as a result of
Ilﬁi:«'u}u#?lut]mﬂ“' I Fibwuary 2020, e (our cases were consididated into a single action uider the caplim B e Jolirson & Joleson Hile Stooklolies
aflve L ilhogratbom.

In July 2020, a repon was delivered to the Company's Board of Direcion by independent counsel retained by ihe Doard o investigate the aliegations in the
derivativee ewsaits and in a series of shareholder letters that the Boand received raising similar issues. Foar ol the shareholders wh sent are
aingifls in the B b Jehrson & folason Tile Secklolder Derfvative Litigarion. The independent counsel recomimended that the Company neject the
sharchalder demands and take the steps that ane necessary or a) fate b0 secure dismissal of the derivative Lawsubts, The Boand unanimausly adopied the
recommenidations of ike h1rl|.-p¢rwJ|;l|1l coursel's rl.'[::n. In October 2020, the sharebodders [iled a comsalidaied nru'nphlnl. and bn January 202§, fobnuon &
Tl i h'IL

tw dimmi & lidated conmip

I Jamuary 2009, pwo FRISA claws action ewsaits were liled by padicipanis in the Jobnwn & Johnuon Sevings Man againg Folinsom B knhinson, i
Pensbon and Benefits Commitiee, snd certaln named officers in the Unibed Sestes Districs Cenrt Tor the District of Mew Jersey, alleging that the delemndants
baeached their luclary daties by offering Johnson & Johmson stock as a Johnson & Johrson Savings Plan investment option when iU was impradest to do
s became of fallures (o dlsclowe alleged ashesios contaminathen in budy powders contalning tale, primarily JOHNSON'S® Baby Powder. Plaintiils are
seeklng domages amd Injunctive reliel. In September 2009, Delend ﬁh.-da motban 1o dHsmiss, In :.Lrll 2020, the Court gramted Delendanis” motion huat
wranted beave oo ol I June 2000, Plaineiifs filed an amended complaing and in Jaly 2000, Defendants moved s dismiss tbe amended complaing, As of
Clonader JI20, l’lﬂﬂllﬂlllh‘ﬁ‘lﬂilll‘.—' el weas compliete.

A st penading In the Sapevior Caour of Califnmba for ihe 'l".:l.lnl.]l of San Thepn i||i:E:i:|ﬁL'll|l'l14 ol Californda’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act
relating 10 JOMNS0M"S® Daby Powder has been nesalved in the Company®s favor In wanil, the plainiiils allege that Johnson & Johason violsied tbe
CLRA by failing wo provide requined Propesition b5 wamings. [n fuly 20049, the Company liled a sotice of removal 10 the United Stases District Court for
the Southem District of Califomia and plaimibils filed o second amensded laing sharily thereafwer. In Ociober 2019, the Company moved to dismiss the
seganid amended complaine for Fallure g stae a clalm upoen which rellef may anled, I response i thise muotbons, plaingifs fed a thind amended
complaint In December 2009, ihe Company moved 1o dismiss the thind ame complaint for Lailure 1o state a claim opan which reliel may be granted. In
April 2020, the Count gramted the mistion o dsniss bl granted beave o amend Tin May 3020, plamills (@flad o Founh Ameided Com 1uh|l1v.||.|1 inclicated
that ihey would be filimg a matlon for beave io (e a ik amended complaink. Plalndlifs filed a II'th Amended Complaint In Au SN, The Covmpany
mwved do dismiss the Fifth Amended Complalm for fallure 1o sate a claim upon which seliel may be granted. In January 2001, the Court lssaed an Onler
ancl opinion ruling inthe Company®s favor and granting the motion to dismiss with prejodice,

87
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Tie Jamuaary 2020, the Alsali Law Groap led an oction ander Progaosizion 65 against Jetimson S Juloson aml Bobinson 8 Sobnson Consomer Dec. as well
a number of ather alleged wloum powder manulacturers and distribators, including one Califomia company. In that action, the plaintill slleges
contamination of talcum paweler products with uesale bevels of arsenic, hexavalent chromium and lead, 1he plaintifl seeks civil penalies and injenctive
reliel. Delendants filed a motien for summarny judgmient in January 3021, and & hearing has heen scheduled for Apail 2021, Limited informal discovery is
conlinging.

In adiditiom, the Company has received prediminary inguirics and subpoenas o produce docomenis reganding these matters fram Senawor Murray, a member
ol the Semite Comamitee an Health, Education, Labor and Pensions, the Department of Jastice, tbe Secusties and Exchange Commibssion (SEC) and the
LIS, Congressinnal Subcommittee on Ecosomic and Consamer Palicy, The Company prodisced documsents as requined i response and will comtinue 1o
coafeefale with governmenl inguires. [n November 2000, the SEC ierminated s nvesugaion

Claims for personal infury have heen made against & namber aff bohmson & Jobmsan companies, incleling Jarssen Pharmacesticals, Inc. and Johnaon &
Tahnson, arising oul of the wse al INVORKANAY, 4 prescription medication indicated w improve glycemic contml in sdulis with Type 2 diabetes. In
Ihecemnbier 2006, lawswlis (iled in federal courts i the United Soies wene ongandced s o multi-disoion lidgation in tee United States Disieiol Cour for ibe
[strict of Mew Jersey, Cases have also been fled Insie courss, Class aciion lvwsuies have been flled in Canada, Produc Hability lawsulis contmue to e
[Hled, and ihe Company contlnues to recedve Information wich respect i podentlal costs and the anticipaied rumber of coses. The Company has setiled or
otherwise resolved many of the cases and claims in the United States and the oosts assockated with these setilements are rellected in the Company's
accrisls.

Cladms for personal infury have been made against & number of lohnsen & hohmsan compankes, including Janssen Pharmacemicals, Inc. and Rohmson &
Tolnson, arising 0wt ol the wse of ELMIRON®, a prescription medication indicated for the reliel of blsdder pain or discomion associabed with interstitial
cystilis. These lowsuits, which allege that ELMIRONR® contribaries: 1o the deselopmens ol pesmasent retinal injory and vision less, have been iled in bath
sate and Federal courts aeross the Unbied Staees. In December 2020, the lederl cases, Including two Tu.ll.ﬂlw.' chas acibun cases secking melical
muniloring, were onganized as @ multi-district litigation inthe United States Distriol Count for tbe District of Mew Jomsey, In add fion, three dlass actiom
lanwsniits have been filed In Canada, Prodact Tkehility Lwssits cantimie (o be fled, and the Company contimes 10 recebve information with respect o
rotential eosts aimd the anticipated naimber of vees, The Compey b establ sl scomals for delomse vosts ssicialind wilh ELMBEONY relied pooduc
liahiliry litigation,

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Certain subsidiarios of eluson & Jolnson are sulsecy, Troen tlame w Gme, e g procesdings s claims related w patent, vademark and otlser imellaceal
prapeny maters arksing oul of their businesses, Many of these matters [nvalve challenges s the coverage ambfor validity of the patents oa varius products
and allegatiors that certain of the Company s prodects infringe the |'uwnlml thind partivs. Altheugh these subsldiaries beliove that they have substantial
ilelenses bo these challenges amd allegatinns with rospect toall significant pstents, there cin be no assurance o 1o the outcomie of these matters. A loas in
any ol thise vaeses coald slversely allec e ahiling of dese sabsidiaries o sell tedr produces, resalt in bess of sales doe w bes ol macket exclasivi,
retpaire i paymient of past domages arsl fanare rovalties, and may result ina on-cash impairment charge lor any associated imargible sse. Signilicon
matters ane ilescribed helow,

Meibical Uevices

I Mosember 20 16, Medbdea, LLC {Medldea) fled a pavent infringement Lawsuil agains DePuy Onbopoedics, Inc. initbe Uniied Stabes District Count for
the Mocthern District of Hlinoks alleging infringemem by the ATTUNE® Kiee Sysem, In April 2007, Medidea (iled an amended complaing adding DePuy
Symithies Products, Inc. aind Delfuy Synthes Sabes, Inc. as named defendams (oollecively, DePuy), Medbdea slleged infringemem of Unbed Sues Paleil
Pos, 6,550,406 [A26), BITE 12 (1132); 8,721,730 ("730) and 9,402, 200 ("280) relating o posterior stshilized knee systems. Specifically, Medidea alleges
that the SOFCAM™ Contact featare of the ATTUNE® msterior stabilined knoe produects infringes the patenis-in-sait, Medldea s secking monetary
ilarmages and injunctive relicl. In Pune 2017, the cane was transferred 1o the United $aties Distnct Cood (o te Distia of Masscichusetis. In Movember
2019, judgmeni wias entered in faver of Delhuy, In Jasuary 2021, the LS. Count of Appeals for the Federal Clroui alfiomed.

In December 2016, D Pond Albrinon sued Acclarent, Tme, (Acclarest ) in Unived States Ddsarion Court for the Nonbem Distict of Texas alleging tha

Acelarent’s RELIEVA®™ Spin and RELIEVEA SpinPlus® products infringe LLS. Patemt No, 9000,412, D Albrision also alleges breach of conaract, Fraud
andl that he s the rue oweer o Acclarent’s US, Paient Mo, B414 A7 Trial s schedubed g begin in Octoher 2021,

361/429



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E05943)
Oooooooa

It Movembser 2017, Boand of Regents, The University of Tesas Systemn and TissoeGen, Do, (oollectively, UT) (iled a Lowsain in the United Staes Disio
Coan foe the Western District of Texos against Ethicon, Tne, and Ethicon LS, LLC feollectively, Erhicon) alloging the manufaciure ard sale of YICRYL®
Plus Amtihacteral Sutuees, MONDCRYL® Plas Antihacterial Sutures, PDS™ Plus Amihacteral Sutuses, STRATAFIX™ POS™ Amihacterlal Sumrs and
STRATAFIX® MONOCRY L™ Plus Antihacterial Sutres infringe plaintiifs United States Paten) Nos, 6,596,296 {29 and 7,008,508 601 dincced o
Iimplantable polyme dnag releasing biodegradable (ibers conlaining a therapeutic sgemt. LT B seeking demages and an injinction. In December 2018,
Falsicon (iled petitions with the United Seates Patent and Trodemark Office (USPTUN), sweking Inber Paries Beview (0PR) of both asserted pstents. In lune
20240, the USIFTEO denbed instiiatbon of the " 296 patent 1PH and granted isstouiion of the "60E pagent IPR, UT dismissed the *603 patent from ihe suls and
na fonger acoases PUS ™ Plus Antibacterial Sutures or SURATAFIX " POS™ Plus Anthasterial Sutures of Infringement. The previausly schedubed disiric
cuurt irkal has been posiponed,

In Ampest 2008, Intaitive Swgical, Inc. and [mimitive Surgical Ciperations, Inc. [l:d[q:ll-wl.y.. Intuitive) filed a patemt infringement sull agains Auris Health,
Ine. {Awriz) in Uniied States District Caoart for the District of Delaseare, I the sul, Intuitiee alleges williol infringement of LS. Patent Mie, 5,246,201
(2000 B 491,700 (T 6,522,906 {906 6A00,056 (056 B, 142447 (447 D620, 478 ("4T4) 001600 (60 j; amd 9,452,076 | "2 based on Auris
Monarch™ Plaiform, Auris filed 1FR Petitions with the LSFTO reganding the 200, “056, "G00 701, '447, 276 amd "H06 patemts, Infuitive subscquently
ibroppedd ibse “200, 473 and "TO1 patents Trom the su b, In December 20009, the TSFTO) imsbinined review of the 601 pabent and denied review of the 5056
pateei, 1n February amd March 2020, the USPTO instinused neview ol the "200, "847, *T00 amnd “506 patents and denied review of the '276 patemi. In
December 2020, the USPTO declared all of the challenged claims In the "G00 patend to be invalkl. Imuliive has appeabed that decision, The district court
trial ks scheduled o beyin in June 2021

I Aumggst 2014, K51 Spine LLEG (K30 Spene) liled o patent inlringement sull agairsd DePuy Symibes, Inc in United Sates Disirict Cour for the District of
Delaware. In Ociober 20149, BSD Sploc amended ibe complaim o change the mamed defendants o DePay Symilses Sabes, ic. and Defay Symbes Froducts,
Inc. In b salt, RS8 Spine alleges willlul infringement of Unlted States Pasent Nos, 6,984,234 and 9,713,537 by oae or moee of the Tollow ng prodhacs:
FEHOP-VA™ Spacer, ZEHO-1 Spaces, AERO-F NATURAL™ Plate, SYNFIX® LIt Spacer and 3¥NFIX® Evolution Systen. RSB Spine socks
minctary damages and injunciive relief, In November 2014, the suit was comsolidated for pre-trial purposes with other patenn infringement saits broughe by
H5H Spime in the United Swes Diseret Court for the Distdet of Delawane against Life Spine, ne., Medscia USA, [nc., and Precision Spine, Ine. In June
2020, the case was stayed pemding IR procecedings lled by the Consalidated Defendants involving the sssored patents,

I Manch 2020, ODsteoplastics, LLC filed a patent infringement sult agalnst Deluy Symihes, Inc., Deluy Syrthis Producos, Inc., Medical Device Business
Services, Inc, amd Synthes, Inc. (colleciively, DePuy Synihes) in the Uniied States District Cout for the Disricn of Delaware. In the sait, Osteaplastics
alleges willfal infringement of L5, Paleni Nos, 8,781,557; 9,529,920 9000206, 9606, 756; 9 672617, 9672.308; and 9,275,191 based on the FROPLAN
CMI™ Wil Sungical Planning Services and the Trudatch® CMT Personalize Solutions. (v April 2020, Ostooplastics filed an amended complaint i
sabsifmie 115, Palem Mo, 9292900 for 1S, Patent Mo, 95929920, Dsteoplastics sevks maonetary dimages and injunctlve reliel, In une 2000, DePay
Symthis (lled a meion o dismiss the complaine., in Ocober 20060, the Courn dismissed Medical Device Busivess Services, tnc. from the case b oaherwise
enied the motion, Trial i scheduled for Coioher 2022

Ebarmasealical
Livigation Against Filers of Abbreviaied Mew Dmig Applicatons (ANDAs)

The bolbvwing summariees lvwsuils pending against generc companies that have Tiled ANDAS with the FOA or undesaken similar regulaionry prodesses
wtside ol the United Staees, sevking to narket generic fonns of prodieces seld by various subsidiaries of Fobmson & Jolnson prioe 1o expiration of the
applicabd patents coverimg those prodects, These ANDAS typlaally include allegations of non-infringement and invaliclity of the spplicabbe patents. In the
event the subsidiarics are nol successful inan acthon, or the autsmatic stauony stay of the ANDAs expires before the Uinited Stages District Coan mlings
an ohtxinssl, the third-party companies involved wisubd have the ability, upon approval of the FIOA, s menduce genesic sersinms al their products o che
imarhet, residibng in te petetisl for sobstamial nsadket share aned revene osses Do e sgplicable products, amd sdich may nesult s noiecash
impairment charge in any associaed intangible asset, In addition, from time o tme, subsidiaries may setde these types of actions and such scilements can
Imealve the inemduction of generbe verslons of the products at [sssie b the market préor G ihe explration of the relevant patents. The Inter Pares Review
1IPR) process with the
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LISPFTO, wivated umder the 2011 Annerica Divents Acy B abso being sl al i by gemeric comganies i conjunction willl A NDAs and lewsaits, o
challenge the applicable pasents.

EYTIGA®

I Mevembser 2017, Lanssen Ine. and Fanssen Oscodogy Ine, (collectively, Banssen) inlilated & Matice of Application sncer Section 6 of the Paenied
Medicines {Notkoe of Compliance) Regulatbors agalmst Apotex Inc. (Apotes) and the Minister of Health in Canada in response 1o Apotes’s filing of an
Abbneviaged New Do Sabandaslon {ANDS] seeking approval (o market a genevic sendon of 2YTIGA® befome the explration of Canadian Patent N
2661423 ("422) The linal hearing concluded in May 2009 In October 2019, the Court ssoed an order prohibiging the Canadion Minbster of Health Trom
approving Apotex®s ANIS wniil the expiration of the *422 patent. In November 2019, Apotes (e an appeal

Beginning in lamuary 2009, lanssen inktksted Statements of Clalm ander Section & of the Fatented Medicines [Natice of Compliance ) Regulations in
Canada agalmst Apotes, Phamiasclence De, (Phamasclence) and Dr, Reddy's Laboraiories L, ansd D Redidy's Laboratories, o, (collecibvely, DRL) in
response (o those partics” (iling of Abbrevioted New Drug Submbsslons {ANDS) seeking approval 1o market generic versions of ZYTIGA® belore the
expiration of the '422 patenl. The flinal hearing in these sctiors concluded in November 2000, and the Court isswed @ deciion holding the "422 patest
imvalid kn banaary 2020, In February 2021, Janssen appesled ihe decision.

I Ampust 2020, Fanssen initisted & Statement of Claim under Section 6 of the Patented Modicipes (Notice of Complisnce) Regalations againa JAMP
Pharrma Corparation {Lamp) in Canads in respuonse (o Jangcs Giling ol an ANDS seeking approval to market a generic version ol 2YTIGAY belore the
caplrtion of the *422 patent. The final hearing is scheduled to begin in May 2002,

In wach of these Canadian activas, Janssen is sceking an onler enjoining 1be defendanis rom nw'lil.'l'.lng their generic versions of Y T1GAY belore e
aplration of te '422 patenl

XARELTO®

I Aguest 2020, Fanssen Plamaceuticals, Inc. (1P and Dayer Inelectual Propeny GmbEl and Bayer AG {collectively, Bayer) (e a patent niringement
larwsaild i the Unidted Seates Diisariet Court for the District of New Jemsey against D Reddy's Laboratarles, Ine, and D Beddy's Labaratories, Lid,
(collectiwely, PHRL ) which filed an ANDA seoking a-|1[:m\r.11 o market a peacric version of XARF] A00* hefone r:rilalinn of LIS, Mavent Mo, 9,539,200
(*2100, In this lawsuly, 101 and Baver wese seeking an vader enjolning DRL fom markeiing thelr generlc versbons of XARELTO befom ibi expiraibon of
iha rebevant patenis, In Movember 20080, 101 asd Bayer entered into a confideniial senloment agreement with DRL, and the case was voluntarily dismised

INVORANA®INYORAMETINVOKAMET XR*

Bseginning In July 2007, Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Jamssen Research & Development, LLC, Cllag GmbH Intemat onal and Janssen Pharmoacewics NV
[owllectively, Jamssen ) aml Mitsuhishi Tansbe Fharma Corporation { MITIC) filed patemt infringensent lawsalts inothe United States District Cown (or the
Isdrict of Mew fersey againsd o mumsher ol generis companiies that Biled ANIDAS seeking approval o markel generic verions ol INVOKANA®Y,
INVOKAMET" ancior INVOKAMET® XR belore expiration of MTPCS United Sistes Patem Sos, 7,940,582 (582 andior 8,513,202 ('202) relsting 1o
INVOKANAY, INVORKAMET® andior INNOEAMET® XK. Janssen b ihe exclusive licensee of ibe assered i, Nameed delendanis include MSM
Laboratvrics Private Lid, amd M58 Phamaeccuticals, Inc, (MSNT vdus Fhammaceuticals (USA) Inc, (Ayvdus); Sandog, Inc. (Sandozk and Lopin Ll and
Laprin Fhormaceisicals, e, (Laping, Thiese gases wene consolidied oo one sotion (Polymorph Main Action), which has been schiduled for irial saning
In April 2021, In Becembser 2020, Lanssen and MTPC entered indo a conlidential seilement with Sandoz and in Jamuary 2021, Lanssen and MTPC entored
Imio a confideniial senlement whih Lupin. The cases agalnst Sandoe and Lupin were volusissily dismissed.

In Juiy 217, Janssem and MTPC filed a patend infringement lowsuit in the Undied Stotes District Court for the District of New ) againy fydus which
Tl ANDIAS seeking approval 1o market generic versions of INVOKANA® angd IVOK AMET® belone eapiration of MTPC Uniled Sttes Patend Moo
7SR, THS (*FARY, 22219 (' 219) andior B, 785,400 (') relating 1o INVOKANA®, INVORAMETY andior INVOKAMET® X1t (Compoinds Main
Actlon. fanssen is the exclusive loersee of the assemed patenis, Triall concluded in Gowher 2000,

I Juiy JH A, lanseen and MTRC filed a patend infringement lowsuit in the Undled States Didtrict Count for the Disrict of Sew Jersey againg MSN, which
(el an ANDA secking approval to markel o gereric version of INVOKAMET XR” belore explration of the *S52 patent and ‘M2 patent relaibng io
INVOKAMET XR™. In Octeber 2019, Lavssen avd MTPC Inltlated 2 patent Infringement lawsult I thee Uniied Ststes District Count for the Diswlct of New
Iersoy against MSN, which fled ANDAS seeking approval s market generc versions of INVORKANA® and INVOKAMET XR* befoee expiration of the
Tl patent, In
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Cheiobier D004, Jaissen ad MTPC nilkated o patent ifringemeent lawsuit in ohe Unibed Seaies Districn Court For thae Districn of New Tosey agaims) D
Hidiy's Labaratories, Inc, and Dr. Reddy's Laboratosies Lid (DRLY, wha filed an ANDA seeking spproval womerkel & genere version of INVOKAMET®
el expiratbon of the "TRIE patenl. In Jamuary 2020, Janssen and MTPE Filed a pasent infringement lowsuit in Uhe Unkied Swies District Coart Tor the
IMastrict of Mew Jersey against Mlaclencls Phormaceuticals, Lids and Macleods Phanna USA, Inc. {Macheods), which Filed an ANDA seehing up|n:|:w-'ul (8]
market a generic version of TNVOKAMET XR® before expiration of the "52 patent and "312 patent relating 1o INVOKAMET XE®. In Febroary 2021,
lamssen fibee a patent infringement lawsil in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey againsl Macleods Phamacewticals, Lid. and
Macleods Pharma LIS A, Inc. (Mackeods), which liled an ANDA secking approval 1o market a generic vershon of INVOKAN A" hefore cxplration of United
Stages Patert Mo, 10 R T/RER melating to INVORANA™, These lawsuits have ot been consolidsted with the Main Actions,

I wach of these 1S, Lewsalis, Janssen and - ame seviklng an omder enjolning the defemdard (mm markedng thelr gereric versioms of INVORKANA l.
INVOKAMET™ andior, INVOEAMET XH" belore the expiration of the relevam patents.

I October 2020, Lanssen Dne., lanssen Phammacewibca MY amd MTPC nbilated a Staement of Cladm under Secibon & of the Paiemind Medicloes (Notloe of
Compliange) Regulatlens against Sandoz Camada Inc, (Sandoz) in Carada inoresponse w Sandoz’s (iling of an ANDS seking approval to market a generic
vershan of INYORANA® betore the cxplration of the Canadion Paiem Nos, 2534004 and 2.671,357, The final hearing ks scheduled 1o begin in Augus
2022,

Tamssen Inc., Tanssen Pharmaceitica NV and MTPC are secking an order enfoining Sandos from marketing its gemeric version of INVOKANA® before the
expiration of the relevant patents.

CHFSUMIT®

In Ecicher 2020, Accelion Pharmaceutical: Lid [Actelion) inizlated a pasend infringement lawsuit in the Uniied States [iserict Court Tor the District of NMow
Jersey against Liues Labs Limited and Pharmad ), Inc, {oollectively, Laumsh which filed an ANDA sceking approval 1o market generic versions of
CPSUMET™ before the explrathon of U5, Pabeni No, 7,004,701 (' 7100). Acielion was seeking an onler enjolning Lamus from markeiing goneric verslons of
CHFSLIMIT™® beefore die expiration of the "7 patent, In Jaauary 2021, Actelbon enbered into a sestlement agreement with Laurus.

I May 2020, Janssen Inc, (lanssen) and Actelion intated o Statement of Claim umder Section & ol the Fatenved Medicines {Notice of Compliance)
Regulations against Sandor Canada Inc. {Sandaz) in Canada In response to Sancoe's filing ol an ANDS secking approval to market a generic versban of
OFSLIMIT® 10 my, belore the expimtion of Canadian Patent No. 2,658,770 (" 770). Trial is scheduled o begin in Jamary 2022,

In May 202, Janssen and Actelkon initlased a Stagerment of Clakm unider Soctlon b of the Patented Medicines (Notlce of Compliance] Regalations against
Apotex Inc. (Apobex) in Canadas in response 1o Apotex's filing of an ANDS seeking approval 1o market a peneric version of QOPSUMIT® 10 mi, belone the
capiratlon of the '770 patent. Trial s scheduled 1o begin in February 32022,

Tt July 2020, Danssen and Actelion iniliated 3 Sealement of Claim ander Section & of the Palenled Medicines [Notice of Compliance] Regulmions agakns
IAMP Phermms Cospuration (JAMP) in Canads Bn response i BAMPs Diling of an ANDS seeking approval 1o markes 4 genedc vension of OPSUMIT® 10
my, belore the expiration of the "77H0 patent and Canadian Patent Mo, 2,621,273 (*273), Trial is schedualed 1o begin in April 2022,

In each ol these Canadian actions, Janssen and Actelion are secking an onder enjoining the delendants frmm marketing their generic versions of DESLUMET*
hefone the expiration of tbhe relevant patemts.

INVEGA SUSTENNA®

I Jamuary 2018, laissen Pharmacesiica MY amil Japssen Pharmasceuticals, Inc. {collectively, lanssen) initisted a patent infringement lawsalt in the United
Staes District Court fur the [istrictof New Jersey agaimst Teva Pharmoceuticals USA, lnc (Teva), which filed an ANDA seeking spproval in market a
eneric versiom of INVEGA SUSTENNA® belore the explrtion of Unlied $iates Fatend Mo, 3 438,906 {9065, Trial concluded in Ociober 20020,

I st 2019, lanssen inltiatied & patent nfringement lassult in the Uniied Staes Diserict Court for the Disirlct of New lersey agalng Mylan
Laboratories. Limited (Mylan), which filed an ANDA seeking approval s market a generle version of INVEGA SUSTENNAY before the expiration of the
56 patent. In Feboaary 2020, Mylan lbed o Petitbon for Iner Panes Review with the USPTO seeking to invalidae the "506 patept. The USPTO denbed the
Petition in Seplember 2020, and Mylan appealed.

1

364/429



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E05943)
Oooooooa

I Erecembsir 2019, Ranssen initiated @ pasent infringoment lawsuit in die Uniied Sues Destoicn Courts Gor the Esariaos of New Jemsey and Delawire agaimg
Phamasclence Inc., Mallinckrodi PLEC and Specpx LLE {colbegibvely, Phamasclence]), which lbed an ANDA socking approval io market a generbc verslon
ol INVEGA SUSTENNA® before the expiration of the “906 patent.

In each of these U5, lwsuits, Janssen i seeking an onler enjoining the defendant from marketing a generic version ol INVEGA SUSTENMA® before (he
explirutlon of the relevant patents.

I Fobraary 20008, lanssen ne, aoul laesen Pharmaceutlca NY (oollectively, lamssen Canada) indilated o Statememt of Clalm under Sectlin 6 of the
Patented Medicines (Motice of Compliance) Regulatbons against Teva Canada Limited (Teva Canada) in respanse g Tevas fillng of an ANIDS soeking
approval 4 market a generic verslan of INVEGA SUSTERMN A helome the eaplrtlan of Canmban Patent Mo, 2009634 { "G249) aml 2,555,335 {'315).
Tamssen subsequeently discontimied the portion al the Lwsiil relating to the "629 patenl. In May 2000, the Canadian Federal Court issaed a Public adgment
andl Reasoms doeclasing that Teva Canpda’s generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA®, if approved, would infringe claims of the "335 patent and (hat the
cladnas of the ' 335 paieni are not invalld Tor obviousness. Teva Canaia sppealed.

I Movembir 2020, Lanssen Canada inbilsted a Swtemen of Clalm under Section 6 of the Palenied Medicines (Notloe of Compllanoe) Regukalons dl:-alm
Prhammasclence Ine. in respanse 1o Phamsclence incs iling of an ANDS scoking approval i market o generic verstan of IRVEGA SUSTERNA™ befone
the expiration ol the "335 patenl. The Final Hearing s scheduled o begin in July 2022,

I Jamuary 2021, Janssen Canada initiaied a Statement of Claim ender Section 6 of ithe Patenied Modicipes (Notice of Compliance] Beguldions against
Apoaes Inc, (Apatex) in respinss o Apodes's (iling of am AN secking approval i market a genric versian of INVEGA SUSTENNA® hefore (he
eaplmation of the 335 patent. The Final Hearing Is scheduled oo begin in 51.'1'ﬂ.:|n'|‘1||.'|' 2022

In wach of these Canadian lawsults, Janssen Canada |s seeking an onder enfolning ithe delendant from markoeiling 4 generic verslon of INVEGA
SUSTENMA™ hefore the explration of the relevant patents,

IMBRUVICAY

Beginning in January 2008, Fharmacyclics LLC (Pharmacyclics) and Janssen Blaiech, Inc. (IR fled patent infringement lowsuits in the Unlied Swtes
IMstrict Court for the Diserice of Delaware against a number of geperic companies that Tied ANDAs seeking approval io market generic versions of
IMBHUVICA® I-I[Iﬂ“,u{m.lrﬁ before expiralion ol P|urn1a:u.rdi|:» Uniited Ststes Patent Mos, 8,008,300, 7,514,444, BE97,711, 8,735,400, 1,957 079,
W,181,257, 8, 754061, B457 277, H‘JES\.III' 6 2HE, B TS5 000, 8, 500 599, 5,125,805, 9 800 HE1, 9800 B3, S 81472, 5705, 60, 9,096 753,

G5 02, 9. T1AGET and'or 9,735,455 relating o IMHR[I'\."FF.H.' T = thi :-nrlu:.nr:- llrmlfrn'l'ﬂu-arwﬂﬂl matents. The named defendanis nclude ihe
following nrm:lh.' {mpﬂnh‘r I:Ipla L bmidvead ard 1’J|:|Iu F5A Ine, (rollectively, U|1I.|] Samdog Inc, and Lek Pharmaceuticals o, [:nlluﬂiln:lf. Hamlo ).

I damuary 2009, Mharmscyelics and T amended their complaim agains Sasdoe o allege infringemest ol Dnied Stanes Baem Mos, 10,025,140 and
L, DG, Ttk

In Fehruary 200%, Pharmacyclics and 100 amended their complaint against Cipla w allege infringement of United States Patent Mo 10, 106,544, and
L0, 125, 130,

I Manch 2009, Fharmacyclios aad 161 filed o patest inlringement Lavesubt inthe United States Districl Count for the District ol Delawore against Alvogen
Pinie Brook LLC and Nateo Phasma Lid. (oollectively, Alvogen), whicl Giled an ANDA seekitsg approval 1o morket geieric vesiim of IMBRUVICA®
tahless, asserting infringement of Undied States Patent Nos, 7,514,444, 000,304, BATE 04, 8457277, BAAT,F11, 8,752,400, 8,754,000, 8,754,001,
AS2015, 8567074, 9 181,257, 9,296,751, 9655857, 8,720,455, 100000507, 10, 106548, and 10,125,140,

I Py 2004, Pharmacyclics and 11 amenided theis complaint against Cipla g lurher allege infringement of Uniled States Palent Moo 10,016,435, In Jne
2019, Marmacyclics and TR amended their complaint sgains Alvogen to further allege infringament of Uniied Sees Patent Noo 10,213,386,

I Ampust 2019, Pharmacyclics and JR1 amended their complaints against Cipla and Sandor v lurther allege infringement of U5, Pasent Maos, 10,294,231
andd 1O0CERMLEA2, I August J0 19, the Coun granted & jolnt stpalation 1o sy the liigation sgalnst Cipla.

Trial in thee actions against Sandor and Alvogen wok plece in Octoher 2020,

a2
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I March 20049, Sandiet (Mled an 1PFR Petitbon with the USPFTO, seeking oo invalidate Unbied Stases Paient Mo, 9,795,504 In Seplember 2020, the USPTO
issuind a [inal decision in the IMR invalideting cenain claims of the "604 patent and upholding the validity of certain cleims in the 604 patent The linad
dhexcisiom was not appealed by the parties.

I March 2020, Pharmacyclics and 1031 filed a patest infringement kawsubl inthe United States District Count for the Distric of Delaware against Alvogen
and Samdoe assening infringement of Undied Stes Parent Noo 108784800 I April 2000, Pharmacyclics amd J81 amended thelr complaine agains Sandioz
1o furtbeer alfege infringemen of LS, Patent Mo, 10,463,668, In Cceober 20040, Pharmacyclics amd JI amended their complaint against Sandaoz oo furither
allege Infrirgement af U5, Patent Nos. 10,752,634 anil 10,695,350 and amended thelr complaing agalest Alvagen 1o funber allege infringemen of L5
Patent Mo, 10,653,696, Im Decemnbier 2020 the Court entered 2 joint stipulstion dismissing the complaint against Sendoz.

I April 2020, Mharmacyelics aind JBI filed a patent infringement lawsait in the Uniled Seses Destrice Coan or the District of Delaware againse £ydus
Winrldbwlde DM and Cadila Healtheare Limiped {colleciively, £ydus), which filed an ANDA weking approval o market generc versbors of
IMBEUVICA® tahlets, assening infringement of Undied States Patenl Nos, 7,514,484, B0GH0,509, 8,476,204, 1497, 277, 8,697,711, B, 750400, 1,754,050,
754,001, 8552005, RA57,079, 3,181,257, 9,296,753, 655,057, 9,725,455, 10,000,507, 10,106,580, 10,125,140, 10,213,366 am 10,478,419,

‘Trials im the actions against Alvapens and 2ydus are schedaled o begin in March 2022,

I wach of the Lawsuits, Phanmscyclics and TR ane seeking an omer enjobning the delembants from marketing genedc vesbors ol IMBRUVICA® belore (b
capiration of the relevant pateits.

LIFTREAN |

In April 2020, Actelion Pharmaceuticals L {(Acielion) and Mippon Shinvaka Co., Lid, (Nippon Shinyaku) iritated o patent infrimgemest Bvwsoil in ibe
Uinised Staves Diswict Cour lor the Distrio of Mew Jersey against a nsmber of generic companies that Tiled ANDAs seeking approval w markel generic
wersions ol LIFTRANT® befone oxpiration of Mippon Shinyak's Unived States Patent Nes, 7,205, 300 8, 7971,122: and 9,284,280 relating 1o UFTIAVT®
Actebion s the exclusive licenses of the asserted patents. The defendants include Alembic Fharmaceuticals Limited and Alembic Phammaceuticals Inc.
[eodlectively, Alembic); MASN Lebomtories Private Limited amd MSN Pharmaceuticals Inc. (collectively, MSNE | VGYAAN Pharmaceuticals L1.C
(VGYAAN] and Zydus Pharmacewticals (LISA), Tnc. and Zydus Worldwide DMOC (collectively, Zydus), 1o Janwary 2021, the Court entered point
stipulations dismissing VGYAAN and MSN Trom sult,

Acteling and Xippan Shinyak are seeking an onfer enjolning the delentants from marketing generic versians of UITTRAYT® before the expiration of the
relevant paterds.

INVEGA TRINAA®

In Seprensher 2020, lamssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Fanssen Pharmacewtica NV, aml lnssen Research & Development, LOC (oolleciively, Janssen) initated
a patent infringement lanwsult in the Lnied States District Court for the Diserict of New Jemey agains Mylan Laborstorios Limised, Mylen Pharmacouticals
Ine., g Mylan Instiutional LLC feollectively, Mylan). MyLen filed an ANDA seebing approval w market generic versons of INVEGA TRINZA® before
expintion of United States Patenst Moo 10,143,690 relating o INVEGA THINZA®, Janssen is secking an onler enjoining Mylan (rom marketing a generic
version of INVEGA TRINZA™ before the expiration of the relevant patent.

CGOVERNMENT PRUEEDINGS

Like other companles in the phamacentical, comsumer bealih and medical devices Indusirbes, Johosom 8 Joheson and centaln of lis suhsldlaries are subpea
10 ex ive regulation by nal I, staie amd liscal government agencies in the Unlted Sdabes and other couniries Inwhich Ih:r aperaie. Such rvw.llntlnn. has
beeen the hasis of grvernment investigations and liligations, The most significant litigation brought by, and investigations conducted by, government.
apencies are listed helow. s possible that eriminal charges and subsiantial limes snlior civil peaalties or damages coinhl resill from government
Imestigations or ligation.

HAverpy Whilesale Price (AWP) LIt gaibin

Toknson & Johason and several of is pharmaceutical subsidiaries (e J80 AWT Defendants), along with numerous oiher phamaceutical companics, were
nammied as delemdants bn o series of lawsalts inosgate snd federal coants fnvalving allegations

366/429



EDINETOOOO

O000000000000000(E05943)

it ilve priciog and marketing of certain phanneceutical prodacts amosited io Trasdidem ol olbiersise sciondile coaduct becase, amoig odser thigs,
ihe: companles allegedly reporied an Inflated Average Whalesale Price {AWI) for the drugs at Issee. Bayors alleged that they wsed those AWPs in
calculating provider reimbursement levels. The plainiifs in these cases included three classes of private persens or entities that pald for any portion of the
purchase ol the drugs af Bsae heed on AWE, and state govermment entities thal made Medicaid payments for the drigs o1 BSsue bosed on AWP, Many of
Uhese canes, both federal sotons aml stawe sctions removed 1o loderal courl, wene consolidaved Tor pre-trial purposes b o muli-disedcn Digation in tee
United Soees Diswict Coun for the Distrio of Massachuserts, where all claims against the 18 AWP Defendants were altimotely dismbssed, The 180 AW
Defendanis also prevailed in a cawe brought by the Commorwealth of Penmylvania, Ciber AW cases have boen resolved theough coun onder or
settlement. The case brought by 1linoks was settled alter mal. In New Jersey, o peative class action based apon AWE allegations b pending againg
Centocar, Inc. and Onbo Bitech Inc. (hoth now lanssen Blotech, Inc.), Johrsan & Johrson and ALZA Corporation. All ather cases have been resolved.

Cmloisl Litgation

Begglnming in 2004 ane contlmuing w e presenl, Julemon & Johmon aml Jasssen Pharmaceuticabs, e, (T01), along whith other phanmacoutical companies,
have been named in moee than 2, 100 lawseits related o the marketing of oploids, including DURAGESIC®, NUCYNTA® and KUCYNTA® ER. The sulis
also raise allegations related 1o previowsly owned active pharmaceutics ingredient supplicr subsidiaries, Tesmanion Alkatoids My, Lul and Noramce, Tec
(baoth subsidizries were divested in 2018), The majority of the cases have been [iled by state and local governments. Similar lwsalts have alse been led
by priwane pladnalifs anc organdeations, inchaling batnot lmiwed weshe Tllowing: ndividual plaiaidiTs on behall of childoen sulleing fnom Seonaal
Abstinence Syradrome; hospitals: and health insurers‘payors. To date, complaints agalma pharmaceutical companies, inchiding Bobinson & Rohnson and 111,
have been filed by the stste Atbmeys General in Arkansas, Florida, Idaho, lHlineds, Kentucky, Louisiana, Missbsippi, Missoar, Mew Hampshine, New
Jemey, Muew Mexico, New York, Ohio, Oklshoma, South Dekota, Texas, Washingon and West Vinginia Complaings sgainsg e manud sctueees also ave
beeen (el in stave or Tederal coun by cliy, couny and local govermment agencies i the following states: Alabana, Arizona, Arkansss, California,
Comnecticut, Flarida, Georgla, [linals, Kentucky, Loalsiana, Malne, Maryland, Massachusetts, Mississippl, Missousd, Mevada, New Hampshire, New
Tersey, Mew Mexion, New York, Month Caroling; il C6k Ladorma, Chegon, Pennsylvania, Rhodle Island, South Carolinag, Sovth Dakota, Tennessee, Texas,
Lltah, ¥irgizia, Washinglon, West Vinginda and Wiscomin. The Government of Paero Rico liled suil in Superior Coan ol Sam Juan There ane more than
I70 caves pending b varlous state couns. There ane over 2800 federal cases coordinated B a federal Muhi-Daserict Lidgation (ML) pending ba the LS.
IMstrict Court fur the Nombern Dislel of Ohio (ML No, 2004). In asdiliton, the Provisoe of Beitish Columbia filed suitin Canada, In Oooher 2004, an
anth-trust complaint was flled by privage plaintiifs in federal court In Tenoessee and ks pending transfer o the MIDL, These aciions allege a varlety of clalms
related it oplnld marketing praciices, including lake sdverising, infalr competitbon, poblic noisanoes, contmmer frand vinlatinns, deceplive aois and
practices, fabae clabms und unjust endichment. The sl generally seek penalibies snidfor Injunctive and monetary reliel and, in some af the suits, te
plaintifls are seeking joing and sevesal liability among the delendams. An slverse judgment in any of these lowsuis could resultin the imposigion of large
musaetary penalibes and signilicant damages including, panbiive damages, cost ol abaiement, substantial fines, equitable remedics and other sancthons,

Thie orlal s thee matter Nled by the Oklahama Atemey General resulied Inoa Judpgment agalna labnson & Jolnsan and 181 s ihe amouet of 8572 million,
subjict 1 a final oeder 0 be ssucd by the Court, The Court issecd a Tlinal jushgment reghecing the amaownt o 5265 million, Johmson 8 Johnson and 00 bave
appraled the judgment. The Company believes dhat it has sirong, groueds 10 overturs this judgment. In Ooioher 2009 Johson & Johnson arwl JP1
antoinged o seltlement of the fir case set Tor trial inotbe ML with two counties in Obio,

Taohason & Johason, 11 and other pharmoeceatical companies have sl received subpoenas or requests for information relsted 1o apioids marketing
prasctices from the Iu]lu'fr]ru slabe Aflormeyvs General: Ablmska, mllsna, Momana, New Harmpshine, Soith Caroling, Tenmessee, Texas aml Wishington. In
September 2017, Jab B Jah and 1 were contacted by the Texas and Colorado Attemey General's Effices on behall of approximaichy 18 staies
rejpanding & multisdale Aemey General investigation, In Ociobher 2009, the Company announoed o propescil aggreemend i principle that weould inclode the
Cuampany paykng $4 billian @ seulement of these matters. In October 2020, the Company agreed o conirtbule op won adeditdonal $1 billion 1w an all-in
setilement amount that would resolve oploled Lewsuies Filed and fituee dalms by states, clies, counties and ethal gevemments, Tor o total of $5 billion
which has heen acomed, subject 1o variogs condithors and an agreement heing finalized. This agreement [n principle ks oot an admission of lability o
wroigg-toing and woubl resolve opioid Lo liled aml fumee claims by s, cites and coanmties, The Company canm predicn il or when e agrecmenm
willl bt linalized and individual cases are oapaing.

In Awguest 2018, Johnson & bobmsen recelved a grasd jory subpoena lom the Uniied Stes Anorney's Clfice T the Eastemn Disrict of Mew York (e
documenis celaied io the t‘.n|u|uu1_-|"‘n a.nliqi\-mll:nun.ﬂl.r]uﬁ and procedures and diseribution of s
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aepluid msdications, in what e Comparny sicderstands i be part of a brosler invessigation ino manufacinrers” and distribudors” mondoring progranms and
repanting under the Contralled Substances Act, In Seplember 20149, lohnsos B Joknson meoeived subpocnas from he New York State Deparment of
Financial Serviors (RY1FS) as part of an industrywide inguiry imo e elfect of apiedd presariptions on New York health inserance premions. in
September 2020, the Company leamed that MY DFS filed o ststement of changes related o this investigation,

From Jung 2007 through December 2019, the Company's Board of Dirmciors recelved a serles of sharcholder demarnd levers alleging breaches of Tiloclary
dubies relobed g the marketing of opkokds, The Board retained independent counsel io investigate the allegations in the demards, and in April 2000,
Independent counsel delivered & repon tothe Board recommeniding that the Company reject the sharcholder demands and take the steps that ane necessary
oo approgpelane o seoure dismissal of relaved dervative lalgation, The Hoard unanimossly adopied the mecommendations of the indepenident comnsel’s
T,

I Movember 2019, one of the shareholders who sent @ demaral [Tled a derivative complaint against Jok & Dok as the inal delendamt and
ceraln current and fomner directors and officers s delendants in the Superior Court of New lersey. The complaint alleges breaches of Giduciany duties
relaged do (he marketing of opiodds, and that Jebimson & Bofmson has suffered damages as a resubt of those alleged breaches. In May 2020, the sharcholder
[Hed an amended complaim challenging the Board's rejection of kis demand. In Awgest 20040, lobnson & lohnson moved 1o dismiss the amended
complaing, and an af Decombir HG, that matlon was. fully briefed, In Augost 2000, anoiber sharcholder whi sent a demansd Giled a separate desdvative
cimplaing in the same court making similar allegatbons. In Oclober 2020, the Coun granied delendanis” nequest fo massign the second-liked case o the
division where the fira-filed case is pemling,

It December 2019, two additiona] sharebolders whie sent demands liled two separaie derivative complaings making similar allepagions against Johreson &
Tolwison as the nomingl delendant and certain current sl former directors amd oflicers as defendants in the United Staoes Disuic for e Disbice of New
Temey. In April 2020, the two federal cases were comsalidated into a single action caplioned In e Johmson & Jolr Oplodd Stockholder Derivative
Litgmtiewr. In July 2020, the shaachelders filed a consolidated complaint. In Septembier 2000, Johnson & Johrson maved i dismiss the consalidaged
complaing, and in December 2020, the sharcholders opposed foedinson & Johnson's motkon, Johnson & Tobason Tlled dis reply s Febouary 2028, Tn July
20210, an additlonal sharebobder who sont a demand (bed a derivative complaing in the same federal court making similar legations agaline the same
defendanis named in the comsolidated action. In January 2021, pursuand to an onder in the consolidated action, the thind case was consolidated inio the
cosalidiaed scbon, In Febeaary 2021, thee sharchalders in the consolidated action filed a motion for volumary dismissal.

Onber

I Awpust 2012, DePuy Onbapaedics, Inc, DePuy, Ing, [now known as Deltuy Symibes, Inc. ), and Johnson & Jobnson Servioes, Ine, {(collectively Deltuy)
recelved an informal request Trm the Unlied States Attomey's OFfice for the Disisol of Massachusetis and the Clvil Division ol the Unbed Saies
Dheriarteent of Justive (e Unived Ststes) foe die produecion of oaerials relating e Delfuy ASE™ X1 Hip device. In July 2004, e Uiited States
tatified thie United States Diserict Court for the District of Massschiseots that it had declined w istervene inoa ol i case fided pussnt o e Fabe
Claims Act against the oompankes. In February 2006, the district coun gramted (be companies’ mation o elismise wilh projudice, unsasrded The qui fmm
cnrrqlhinl. anl demied Ihcqu[ 1o relators requeest For lieave 1o (e a (fariber amended complaing Thie qul tam relators appealed the cose o the Uniled Scates
Comurt of Appeals for the Fisst Clrcult. In J'l.lly 17, the First Circudt affirmed ihe district court's dismis=al in part, reversed In par, and alTinmed ibe
decision to deny the relators nequest o file a thinl amended complaint, “The relators” remaining clabms ane now pending before the district court. In July
2024, she Caun onlered the relaions g complete discovery by August 2020, the Relators have requested an extensbon of the August 2020 deadline (hat

Dhe Py appiessied and addithona] discoveny-relsted motlons have been (iled by both pardes. Addidonally, DePuy has requested a sohidule foe the ling of o
mrlan do sarihe ard s dismiss e relatoes” secomd amended compladn

It Detaber 2012, Johison & Bobnson was contacted by the Califarmia Atlomey General's olfice regarding a mibti-stste Abormey Geiveral investigation of
the markeding of surgical mesh products for hernia and wogymecolagical purposes by Jolmson & Tobnson's sobeidiary, Ethboon, Inc. (Eibicon). In May
2016, California andd Washingion filed civil complaints againa Johneson & hehnson, Ethicon and Ethicon US, LLC allegirg violations ol their consumer
mreeection stames. Similar -oumplll'm:'l. e filed a_g,aj.md the companies by the Eulluu-ing stnles: Keniucky, Misslssippl, West Vinginda and Oregon. In April
M9, Jofinsnn & Inhnson and Fiklcon seiiled the Washingtion case. The Call fomia case staried irial In Taly 309 and conclied in ﬁ-q'rlrrnhﬂ' 2019 The
imial date For the Kenincky cise was schedaled for Sepeember 20049 hui bas been ailjourned and mo pew irkal date has been scheduled, In Ogiober 2004,
lohinson & Johason and Ethicon scaled the mulii-state investigation with 41 other sioocs and the District of Colimbia. in January 2020, the Court in
Califiamia issul @ stsement of decision, lineling in Laver of ibe Sae of Californla, and awasded civil penalties in the amaint of $344 million. In Apeil
2020, the Coun in California denbed the Company™s modion for o new ifal. In August 2020, e Coun entered jsdgment with respect o the penabiies of
%344 million, bt denied the Atomey General's request for injunclive reliel. The Company is appealing the penalty judgment. In April 2020, the
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Comnigany seitled ibe Wiest Vieginla, i Outabers 2020, e Company seithad with de Alomey Geoeral of Onegon. In November 2020, (e Conpaiy seithead
wilh the Attomey Genoral af Mississippl.

it Decembir 2002, Therakos, Inc, (Therakos), formedy a subsidiany of Johnson & Joheson and part ol the Cetho=Clinical Disgnoatics, Inc. ((4CE)
Iranchise, received a better from the civil division of the Uniled States Atiomey's Olfice for ibe Eastern District ol Pennsylvania infoeming Therakes that
the United States Atlomey's CHfloe was bnvestigating the sales and marketing of Uvades™ (methoxsalen) and the Uvar Xis® and Cellex® Systems daring the
peerioad JOEHK g the present, The Uniied States Asiomey's Office requested that QUL and Johsson & Johason preserve docaments that could relate to the
Imeestigation. Therakes was subsequently acqulred by am aifilisie of Gores Caplul Paners 10, 1L bn Panary 2005 and D00 was divested in Junpe 2014,
Following the divestinire of (D, Johrson 8 Johnson retaloed OCD's portbon of any lability resuling from the imastigation far activity that oocurmed
prin 1o the sale of Therakos. Following productien of documents w and seabement discussions with the U5, Aniomey®s CHilce, Mo afiiliaae Medical
[evice Business Services, [nc. agreed o resalve claims under the federal Fabse Claims Act and analogous state laws in a8 setthement announoed in
Movember 2. In the setlement agreement, Medical Device Busines Services expressly denied any swronglul condsct. As a result of the watlement, a
wpul tam complalnt Nled by tao relatom prericding I ke LS. Disirbet Court for the Fastem Disirda ol Pennsylvania will be dismissed. Separste seitlement
agreements with the states participating in the setifement are in the process of being lnalioel.

I Jume 2004, ihe Misslssippl Aty General filed a complaing bn Chancery Coirt of The First Judlicial Pisorict of Hinds Coumty, Missksippl against
lohnson & Johnson and Johnson & Johreon Consumer Companies, Inc. (now known as Johoson & Jehmson Consumer Inc, ) (UG The complaint alleges
thai defendars violaled the Mississippl Consumer Protectian Act by

Lailing 1o dliscbise alleged health rsks sssocisted with female corsumen’ wse ol tale contained in JONNSONSY Baby Powder snd JOHNSONS® Shower
10 Shower (a product divested in 2002} and sechs injunctive aml mosstary reliel, The mater is stayed pending interlocutory appeal of a December 2018
deniial of Johnson & Jolinson sl JCPs motion Tor sumaary judgment. The MissBsippi Supreme Court granted Je amd DETs regquest o file an
Interbocutory appeal ol the denial of the mation for sammary judgment in late 2019, Briefing is complete and oral angument was helbd in Febroary 2021,

In Jamuary 2020, the State of New Mexioe filed a consumer protection case alleging that ibe Company deceptively markeoed ami sold s taloam porwider
presdacts by making midsnepresentations about the safety of the products amd the presence of carcinogens, including ashestos, The State ol New Mexdoo filed
an Amenided Complaini o March 2020, The Company moved i dismbss certain of the clabms in the Amiesded Complaing, which was granted. The
Company then Med & motion for parial judgment on ibe pleadings in December 2020,

Fuaty-ane states have commenced a joint investigation into the Company's marketing of is taloum powder products, At this time, the multi-stage group b
nal sssered any claims against the Company. Several sutes have Bsaed Civil Ivestigative Demands seeking dooments and other information.

I March 2016, Jamssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (1) received a Civil Investigatbve Demand from ibe Uniled Smoes Acomey’s Offlce lar the Southem
[strict of Mew York relased 1o 1P s covtraciual relatenships with pharmacy benellt managers aver the period from January 1, 2006 o the present wiih
rejpand Lo cevtaln of JPM's I*urm.ln:ul.il:al ru'ndl.u:u. The demand was ssved in conpeciion with an investigation ander the False Clabms Aol The Company
has provided documents in nesponse 1o the demand.

I July 30016, Jobinson & fohnson and Lanssen Products 1P were seeved wiith agui fam complaint parsasnt o e False Claims Act liled in the Uniied Stales
Diserict Conirt fod the District of New Jersey alleping the of -label promotion of o HIV products, PREZISTA" and INTELENCE", ard anti-kickhack
wilatiens in connection with the pramotion of these prodacts. The complaint was filed umder scal in December 2012, The Tederal anid sue governments
have declined 1o intervens, and the lawsudl 1s heing proseoated by the relators, I Febmary 2021, the Court stayesd the case aml anlered mediation,

In March 2017, lamssen Histechs, In, peoeleed a Clll Investigative Demand Toom the Hinkied Siates quarlmml af Instice regarding a False ©lalms Act
imvestigation conceming management and advisory services provided (o theamatology and gastmenterology practices that parchased REMICADE" o
SIMPONI ARIA". In August 2009, the Unibes Swates Department of Justice notified Ranssen Blotech, Inc. that it was closing the investigation.
Subsequently, the Uited Swtes [istricn Court for the Districnof Massachusents unseabed o qui tam False Claims At complain, which was served on the
Comgpamny. The Deparmment of lustice had declined o inervers in the qui @m Lwsalt in Aogust 2008, The Company filed o motlan to dismiss, which was
wranbed in pant and denied in pan. Discovery |s underway,

In April and Seplember 2017, Joh Fe Joh recelved subpoenas from the Unbied States Aitomey Tor the District of Masachuseits seeking documents
teraadly relating o pharmaceutical copaymend support programs for DAREALEX", OLYSI0", REMICADE®, SIMPONI®, STELARAY and

AV TIGA", The subpornas alse seek documents relsting o Average Manufacturer Price and Best Price neponting 1o the Center for Medicare ard Medicabd
Services related i thase prodocts, as well as rebate payments to state Medicald agenches. The Company hus provided documents in resporse i ihe
subpoenas.
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Tie Jume 2007, Jolson & Jolnson received a subpoeia Dom the Undied States Atormey®s O0ice for the Do of Massachases seeking information
regarding proctices pertaining tobe serilization of DePuy Synthes, Inc. spinal implangs a1 theee hospitals in Boswon as well os ineractions of employecs of
Crmgany subshiliaries with physiclans at ihese hosplials. lohnson & lohnson and DePuy Synihas, Inc, have produced documents in respoese s the
subpoena ara are fully cooperating with the government s Investigation

I July 2006 the Pablic Prosecution Service in Rio de Janeiro and representatives from tbe Brazilien amitrost authoriy CADE inspecued the offices of moce
than 30 companies Including Johrson & lohrson do sl Indsistria & Comérclo de Produies para Smide Lda. The authoritics appear 1o he Investigating
allegathons of possible anti-cempetitive belavior and possible improper paymenis in the medical devior indastry, We continue w actively respond 1o
Imupalries regarding the Foreign Comupt Praciioes Act From the Unlted Seates Deparonent of Justice amd the Unlied States Securliies and Exchanige
Crmmkssion.

Froem e o Ume, the Company has received requests Trom a varety of Uniled Swies Congressional Commitess o produce inlormation relevand w
amnpeing woipgressional bguiriios, s e policy of Jolison S olson i coopeate with hiese gl by proded g e eguestiod nifomstiomn

GENERAL LITIGATION

I Manch 2008, o purporbed class action was filed in the Gircuit Coun Thinl Judicial Dissrict Madison Cownty, [ineis agoins dhnson ¥ Johnson
Comsamer, Inc. (1101), dleging violstions of stale comsamer Traud dabules heased on pomdischosure al alleged health risks seocisted wiilh e contained in

JOHNSONS® Baby Powiler, The complaing seeks damages bug does not allege personal infary. In October 2020, BT moved 1o dismiss the complaint.

I Aumgesic 2014, Unfied States Cusdomes and Border Proteciion (US CHF) | sl @ Prnuli}- Notlce agalmt Janssen Orilio LLC {Lanssen Ortho), ssessing
penalties for the alleged improper classificaiion of damnaavir ethanolate {ihe aciive phanmaceutical ingredient in PHEZH{'FA*] in connection with lis
Imporsation into the Uinited Seates, In Augast 2020, L CRP formally rejected Janssens Supplememtal Petton challenging the penalibes assessment and
demmanded payment of the mitigaved penaly. In Ociober 2020, US CBI agreed 1o not reler the matter v the Offhoe of Chiel Counsel at this tme, pending
resalatbon of the related Clasification Litigation, In December 2003, Janssen Crtho sued the Unbed Staies inthe Uniied Sties Court ol Intemational Trade
(the Clessiffcation Liigation} seeking a determination that danimavie ethanalate i exenpt from dties opon imporation inlo the United States. In Fehniary
2020, the Coun ruled that darunavir ethanolate is eligible for duty free trestment. In Apeil 2020, the United States appealed o the United States Coun ol
Appeals for the Federal Cinoai

I Siprensher 2020, Geamab A% hrought an atbiiration sgatme faessen Blisech, Ivc pursiian i a 2002 License Agreement bevween the parties, The
arkdiratian relabes g0 myalties for certain Janssen daratumumab products.

I March amd Apell 2005, ever 30 paiative class sotbon complaings were Tiled by contact bens paients in o member ol cours aroml the Dnited States apaies
Tolason & lohason Vision Care, Inc. (1VCI) asd other contact lens marufacurers, dissribotos, aod reallers, alleging venbeal anid horizonial conspiracies
1o fix the petail prices of comlact lonses. The complaints allege that the manalactarers reached sgreements with cach other and centain disiributors amd
retailers concening the prices at which some contact Terses could be sold o consamers. The plaintils sne seeking damages and injunctive reliel AT of ghe
Chass attion cases were irarmlerred o e Uniied States District ot for the Midslle District of Plorida in June 2015, ']'ll:|||i||l|d'h Fihal & comeaolSdais]
cliss action complaing in Novensher 2005, Discovery and pre-trial mation praciioe Is complete, Mo irial daie has heen st

I Awpust 015, two thind-pany payors filed a parponied class acion in the Undted Siates Plistrion Coun for the Eastern District o Loukskana agaimest Janssen
Research & Developiment, LLE, Jarssen Onbo LLC, Ranssen Pharmaceuticals, e, Onla-MeNeil-lassen Pharmaceuticabs, e, and Johmson & Johnsan
s well as certain Bayer entities), alleging that the delendants improperly marketed and promoted XARELTOR 4s saler and more ef fective than less
capensive alemastive medicalions while fatling 1o figly disclose is fshs. The complaint seebs damages. In November 2000, Delendanits moved (o dismis
the complainl.

In Scptember 2007, Plizer, Inc, {PMizer) filed an antinasg ¢ nlaint agal Jii by B lah 1 and Jamssen Hinsech, Inc. (cellectively, lamssen} in Undbed
St District Courd Tor the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. Plizer alleges thal Janssen has violated Tederal antitnest kiws theough s conbracting stralegivs
[or REMICADEY. The complaint seeks domages and Injunclive reliel. Discovery s onguing.

47
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Breginming in September 2007, muliiple purpored s actions were lbed on belall of imbireo purchasees of REMICADE® againsi Johnson & Jobison
andl kanssen Bloiech, Inc, (collecitvely, Janssen) alleging that Jarssen his violsied Federal anglersi laws theough lis contrecting straiegles for REMICADE®,
The caws were comsolidated Tor pre-irial purposes as fo re REMICATE® Antitrist Eitigeifon In United States District Court for the Fastern District of
Peomaylvanio, The consolidated complaint seeks damsges and injunctive reliel. Discovery is ongaing.

T Jume 2008, Walgreen Co, and Kniger Co, filed an antionost complaint agaime Jolmson & Jolason and Janssen Ristech, T (oollectively, Joassen) in e
United Stabes Distiol Count lor the Eastem Disidol of Pennsybvanio. The complaint alleges that Jasssen has violated federal aminust laws through s
comricting strategles for REMICADE®, The complaint sevks damages ane injusciive neliel. In March 2009, sunumary judgment was granted In favor of
Tamssen., in Febrsary 2000, dhe United Staves Cown of Appeals for the Thind Cirouit reversed the Diserict Coun's decisbon, Discovery bs ongodng,

e Jae 200%, the United States Fegeral Trade Commissbm (FICh |msmet] & Civil Towestigutive Demanal g Johoson & Jehsen in conmectim with iis
imvestigation of whether Janssen’s REMICADE® costracting practices violste federsl antirust liws. The Company produced documients and information
rsponsive U the Civil Iovestigative Demaml

In ctaber 2007, cemaln Unlied States service membsers anad thedr familbes browphi @ complaime against @ namber of pharmacewtical amd medical devices
cornpanies, Including Jobmson & Johnson end certain of is slsidiaies in Uniged States Diswicl Count for the Distict of Columnbia, alleging that the
delendunis violated the United States Anti-Termorism Aol The complaing alleges that the defendants provided funding for terrorist onganizations thmugh
thelr sabes praciices pursiant 1o pharmaceutical and medical device contracts with the raigh Minisiry of Health. In July 2020, the District Coun dismissed
the complaint. In Lanuary 202 1, plaintifls appealed the District Court's decibon o the Uniled Stes Coon of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuil

In Clceober 2018, pwo separate putatl ve class actbans were filled against Actellon Pharmaceugical Lid,, Acielion Fharmaceuticals LS, Inc,, and Aciclion
Clinical Resmarch, Inc. (collectively Actedion) in Uindued States District Court For the District of Maryland and Unbled Sages District Coun for the District
of Columbila. The complaints allege tha Acielion violated stae ard lederal antioust ard unfair competidon laws by allegedly relusing 1o supply geseric
phirmaceutical mmnfacrarers with samples of TRACLEER®, TRACLEER® is subject i Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strsegy regquired by ibe Food
andd Ding Adminisiration, which Imposes mestrictlions on disribution of the peoduc, In January 2019, te plaini ifs dismbssed the Diszric of Columbla case
anel filed a consolidsted complaint im the Undted States District Count for the District of Maryland. In Okctober 2009, the Court gransed Actellon's motion to
dismiss the amended complaint. Plalnidils hove appealed the decishon o the Unied Staies Court of Appeals for the Fourth Ciroue

In December 2018, Lanssen Biotech, Inc., Jamssen Oncology, Ine, Janssen Research 8 Developmert, LLC, and Bobinson 8 Jobinsan [onllectively, Jamssen)
were served with a qui irw complaint Biled on behalf of the Uniied Stobes, 28 states, and the Tisirict of Columbda, The complaing, which was filed in
December 2017 in Linibed States District Court for the Nonbem Disidct of Califomda, alleges that Janssen viedated the Tederal False Clabms Act and staie
law when providing pricing information for ZYTIGA® o the governmsent in commection with direct government sabes and government-funded drog
reimbursenent programs. A1 chis time, the federsl ond stae governments have declined 1o intervense. The case has been ranslemed 1o Unived Seates Distric
Cinaint e the Istrict of Mew Jersey. In September 2009, lanssen maved o dismiss the complaing,

I April 2019, Blue Cross & Bloe Shield of Loulsiana and HMO Louksiana, inc. Nbed a class sction complaint against Ranssen Blobech, Inc, linssen
Cweelogy, In, mssen Research & Development, LLE and BTG isermational Limised jw i Unbied Staves Districs Count for de Eastern Disoicy of
Winginl on behall of indirec parchasers of 2YTIGA". Several additional complainis were [led therealter in Vinginla aml New Jemsey. The imlinesa
prrchaser complaints generally allege that the delendants wiolabed the antitrst amd consumer protections laws of several stabes amid e Sherman Act by
pursuing patent liigation relating w £ TIGA® in onder to delay generic entry and seek damages. The Virginia cases have been transberned b the Unised
Staes Disirict Court T the District of New Tersey aml comsolidated with the Mew Jemsey cave for pretrlal purposes, Bn Mlay 2020, a class st oomgladis
was flled against Jarssen Béotech Inc., Jarssen Oncology, Inc., Jamssen Rescarch & Development LLC and BTG Imtermationa] Limited in the United Staies
[strict Court for the District of New Jersey, on behall of direct pundhasers, of 2YTIGA®. The direa pechaser complaing alleges that defendants violated
the Sherman Act by parsuing paeat litigation relating o 2Y THGA" i order 10 delay geseric entry, and seek damages and injunctive reliel,

I May 2004, a class action antitrust complaint was (ded against lanssen Réel) Ireland {Janssen) amd Johnson & Robinsoa in the Unibed Sesies Dastrict Court
T ibe Morthem Distict of California. The complaint albeges that Jamssen violated federal and state sntious) and consumes protection Laws by agreeing o
exdimivity provisbons in s agreements with Gilead concerning the
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developapent and imarketing of combination sntincioviral eerapies (CART) w0 inea HIY, The complaint also albepes that Giead entitd i sinika
agreements with Bristol-Myers Squibb and Japan Tobacoo, In March 2020, the Cownt granted i part and deaied in part defendanpts" imotions 1o dismiss.
Pladngiifs filed an amended commplaing in Aprl 2020, Delendents moved lo dismiss the s ded cnmplaiml. In July 2020, the Court granbed in part and
deniied En part the renewed motion e dismiss. Discovery s ongoing,

I Cenber 2019, lanovative Health, LLC [kl g complaing agains Biosense Webster, Imc, (BWIE) b the Ui Sestes Distrien Conie fos the Middle Disrio
ol Calilomla, The complaint alleges that cenaim of IWWEs basiness practices and contractss] termes violate the antiiness laws of the Undied Seates and the
St of Califpmia by restrictingg competition in the sale ol High Density Mapping Catheters amd Ulimsownd Catheters. In Jamany 2020, BWE flled a
midion to dismiss the complaisl. In Awgust 2020, the Court granbed i part and deabed i pan BWEs motion 1o dismiss, Discovery is eagoing.

In Mevember 2019, fehnson & SJohnson received a demand Tor indemmification from #izer Ine., parsaant o the JiKib Siock aml Asset Purchase Apreoment
et e e (‘J.un|uu;r il Plizer, Al in November 2019, Kihnsas & Jduecom, Inc, recvived a demmaeml for indemniCcation leom Samefi Camsamer Healih,
T, pursaant to the 2016 Assel Purchase Agreement bevwoon BE, Inc. and Sanall. In January 2020, Jobnson & Johnson received o demamd lor
Imlemmnification from Bochrimger Ingelheim Phemuaceuticals, lac., parsaent to the 2006 Asset Purchase Agreement among the Company, Pllieen, and
Bosthringer Ingelheim. The ntboes seek indemnification for legal claims related 1o over-the-counier £antac (mnitdine) products. Flainiiffs in the
untferlyIng aciions albepe than Eanvac and oiber sver<he-counter ranfibdine medications contain aesafe Tevels of NI A (N-nlireadimethylamine) and can
cause andior have cansed vadous cancers in patients using the products, and seek injunctive and monetary reliel,

In Octaber 20, Fortis Advisors LLC {Foris), In its capacily as representative of the former tockholders of Auris Health Inc_ {Aurs), filed a complaing
apgsnst Jahrson & Iohpson, Ethicon Inc,, and cenain named of lioers and employees {collecively, Etlicon] in the Court of Chancery' of the State of
Drelaware. The compleing alleges breach of contract, fraud, and other causes of action against Eihicon in connection with Ethicon's acquisition of Auris in
2019, The complaint seeks damages amd ather relief, In Decomber 2020, Ethbcos moved 1o dismiss certaln causes of action in the complaint,

lohason & tohason or §is subsidiaries ane also parties 10 a number of proceedings broaght under the Comprebensive Environmemal Response,

Compensation, aml Liabiligy Act, commeanly known e Superfund, and comparable state, local or foreipgn Liws in which the primary rellef soaght is the cost
ol past andior Fuire remediatlon,
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20, Restruciuring

I uhe fiscal second guaner of 20008, the Company announcod plass us implemem a series of actions across s Global Supply Chain that are insended s
[ous resoweces and [ncrease invesiments (s the crlibeal capabalities, iechnalagies and soluibors necessary in manafaciare and supply iis product ponfialio,
enhance agility and dnve growth, The Global Supply Chain actions inclsde expanding the use ol strategic collabmmations and boSiering intlialives o rechice
cunglexity, improve cost=competiliveness, enhasce capahilities and optimiee the Supply Chain network. For additional details on the Global Sepply Clain
restructuring strabegic collaborations see Mote 1810 the Consal idated Finaneial Stalements. n fiscal year 2020, the Company recorded a pre-tax change of
0.4 hillion, which s included on tbe Following lines of the Consolidaied Satement of Eamings, $002 billon in resinsoturieg, $000 Billion in other (Income)
expense and $0.1 billion in cost of products sold, Tofl project costs of approcimacely 51,3 billion have been reconded since the restructuring was
anmmnced. Ser ihe Modlowing lable for addiibonal details on the restniciurbng program.

I total, the Company expects the Global Supply Chain sctions o generate approsimately $0.6 billion to $0.0 billion in snmual pre-tax oo savings that
will be substaniially delivered by 2022 The Conpany expects 10 recond pre-tax rstnuciuring changes of approximately $1.9 billion 1o $2.3 hillion, over the
410 5 year perlod of this activity, These oosis ane assoclaied with etwork optlmizations, exit costs and sccelerated depreclation and amariization.

The Rulbowing table summarizes the severance changes and the assoclabed spending under these inbtlaives through the Tscal year ended 2020:

{iallars i il Severance Asset Write-alfuSabes Cther'™ Total
Heserve balance, December 30, 2018 5 154 — & 242
2019 activicy {40y = {32) {62}
Heserve balance, December 249, 20149 164 — 16 160
Chmrent year activity:
Charges — &3 A0S 444
Canly sesilements (23] 4w [35%) [404)
Settled non cash — [67) (anm (B
Hﬁﬂmhﬂhn,]n.rﬂ. Hz N L 135 —_ L] 144

" ash puflays or severance are cxpecied 1o be substantialby pald oo over te nexl 2 years 0 aooondance with the Compamy's plans and jocal lonss.
B Ot includes peoject oxpense such o5 asliries for emphovess pportieg these [itlatives ond comuliing expenses.

M itelates Lo persbon nelaled net actuaril bosies asocaied wilh the ransfer of conployees bo labil Inc. s part of the sirategle oollaboration.

i Hepreniy gais on sale of an sl

Thie Company contimoisly reevalisites Is severnoe reserves related 1o resmicring and the dming of payments due b0 the planned release of sssorclases
rejganding several linger-term projecis. The Company believes that the existing severance reserves ane suffickent 1o cover the Global Sapply Chain plans
whoem the pcrl-l:ul. ower which the actions will take place. The Company will continue o asess and make adjustmenis as necessary i aalditiomal anwants
bewnme probehle and edimable.
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Managenvent’s Report en linnernal Control Over Financial Repering

Uinder Sectkon 404 of the Sartbanes-Oxcley Aot of 2002, manapement is requined o assess the eflectivensss of the Company's inemal comred ever linaacial
repanting as of the end of cach Mscad year and repart, hased on that assessment, whother the Company's Imemal congrol over finasclal reporting |s effective.

Management of the Compasy is msponsihle for estshlishing and mainiaining adequate intemal coniml over fimancial reposting. The Company's
imemal comirl over linuncia reportiog is designed 1o @ovide reasonuble esurance s e the relishility of the Company's linancial negrarting amd the
preparation of external linancial stalememts in sccondance with gencrally acoepled sccoumting peinciples.

Interral controds over Nnancial reposting. o matter e well designed, have Inberent limiations, Therefoee, imermal contmd over financlal reponing
determined o be eflective can provide only remsonable assurance with respect go lisancial statiement preparation and may not prevent o detect all
mizatalemenis. Moreover, prajections of any evalusilon of elfectlvencis i luture perods ane subject o the risk that conirals may become insdegquate
becanse of changes in comditions, or that the degree of complianoe with the polickes or procedunes may deteriorste.

The Company™s management has assessed ibe effectiveness of the Company's inlemal control over linancial reporting as of Jamiary 3, 2021, In
making this sssessmeni, the Company used the criteria established by the Commitiee of Spoasoring Organlzatlons of ibe Treadway Commission (GOS0 in
“Insernal Contral-Iniegrated Framework (2013)." These criterla are In the ancas of comrol envimament, dsk assessmend, comtred activitles, Infommatlon and
communication, and monitoring. The Company s sseesament included extensive documeniing, evalusting and testing the design and operating effectiveness
of it intemal contrals over linancial reponting,

Based on the Company s processes anid assessment, as described ahove, managemeni has concluded that, as of lanuary 3, 2021, the Company's
Imemmal comirml over Tinancial reporing wais eifecive,

The effectivencss of the Company s Ingernal control over fimancial reponiing as of lanuary 3, 2021 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
an independent registered public accounting fiem, as sisted in their repont, which appears herein,

Al Gosiky
Aoy Gonsky Juseph 1 Winlk
Chairmian, Board of Direcos Executive Vice President, Chief Fmancial Cificer

Chiel Executive Oflicer

(L]
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O

(COVID-19)

2021

ASC 450-20-25
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(
)
ASC 450-20
ASR™ XL (DePuy ASR™ XL Acetabular
™ ™ - . ®
System) ASR (DePuy ASR ™ Hip Resurfacing System) PINNACLE

(PINNACLE® Acetabular Cup System)
( JOHNSONS® ) INVOKANA®
(ETHICON PHYSIOMESH® Flexible Composite Mesh)
ASR™ XL ASR™
® ®
RISPERDAL™ XARELTO

PHYS IOMESH"
300 7,000 12,200 9,200 10,200 28,900
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2010 (DePuy Orthopaedics, Inc.)(
) ASR™ XL ASR™
(
) 2013 11 ASR
2013 31 ASR
ASR (ASR Hip System) (
) 2015 2017
2013 31 2017 15
ASR 10,000
ASR
ASR
ASR™
®
PINNACLE
( )
2019

PINNACLE®
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(Ethicon, Inc.)(
)
(VDL)
2021
(
)
2019 11
2020
2021 2021
2021
2020
2016 PHYS10MESH®
(
)
(VCL)

(C.R. Bard,

Inc.)
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PROCEED” (PROCEED” Mesh) ~ PROCEED’
(PROCEED” Ventral Patch)
2019
PROLENE™ (PROLENE™
Polypropylene Hernia System)( PHS ) 2019
PHS 107
2020
304
® ® ®
PHYS10MESH PROCEED PROCEED
PROLENE™
®
RISPERDAL
(Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( JPI )
2019 10 80 (

2020 6.8 )
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XARELTO® JPI
XARELTO® JPI (Bayer AG)
2019 JPI
®
XARELTO
2019 2019 12 2020
XARELTO®
, o0
( JOHNSON' S )
(Johnson & Johnson
Consumer Inc.)
2020 (
)
2020
(Ingham v. Johnson & Johnson, et al.) ( ED 207476 (Mo.
App.)) 2018 47 21
2021 25 (
)
2021

2021
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2019 (Imerys Talc America,
Inc.) (Imerys Talc Vermont, Inc.)
(Imerys Talc Canada, Inc.) ( )
11
( )
( )
( )
2020 (
) (
) (
)
2020
(Cyprus Mines Corporation)( )
2021
11
2021
2021
2021 11
2021
( )
2021
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2018 (  JoHNson' 7
)
2019
2019 2019 12
2020 2021
2019
2019
2019
2019 10 2019 12 2020 (
JOHNSON' §° )
2020
(In re Johnson &
Johnson Talc Stockholder Derivative Litigation) 2020
2020 10 2021

2021
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2019
2021
)
JOHNSON" S
2019 10
2020
2020

2021

(  JOHNSON' S°

(ERISA)
2019
2020
2020 10

2021

(Abtahi Law Group)

65

2021
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2020
2020

2021

(Consumer Legal Remedies Act)

65

2019

2019 12

2020

2020

2021



JPI1

JPI1

2016 12

ELMIRON®
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(Senator Murray)

INVOKANA®

ELMIRON®

2020 12

ELMIRON®
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2016 12 (Dr. Ford Albritton) (Acclarent,
Inc.)( ) RELIEVA® Spin  RELIEVEA SpinPlus’
9,011,412

8,414,473 2021 10

2017 11 (Board of Regents, The

University of Texas System) (TissueGen, Inc.)( uT )
(Ethicon US, LLC)( )

vicryL® (VICRYL® Plus Antibacterial Sutures) MONOCRYL®

(MONOCRYL® Plus Antibacterial Sutures) PDS® (PDS® Plus Antibacterial Sutures)

STRATAF1X® PDS® (STRATAFIX® PDS® Antibacterial Sutures)  STRATAFIX® MONOCRYL®

(STRATAFIX® MONOCRYL® Plus Antibacterial Sutures)

6,596,296 ( 296
) 7,033,603 ( 603 )
uT 2018 12
(IFR) ( USPTO )
2020 USPTO 296 603
uT 603 PDS”

STRATAFIX® pDS®
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2018

) 6,491,701 (
) 6,800,056 (
) 8,620,473 (
9,452,276 (
056

200
906
473

USPTO 200

276

447

2019

ZERO-P-VA™

(ZERO-P NATURAL™
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(Intuitive Surgical, Inc.)
(Intuitive Surgical Operations, Inc.)(
(
MonarchTM Platform 6,246,200 ( 200
701 ) 6,522,906 ( 906
056 ) 8,142,447 ( 447

473 ) 8,801,601 ( 601 )

276 )
601 701 447 276
USPTO 200
701 2019 12 USPTO 601
056 2020
447 701 906
2020 12 USPTO 601
2021 USPTO
906
601
(RSB Spine LLC)( RSB )
(DePuy Synthes, Inc.)
2019 10 RSB

(ZERO-P-VA™ Spacer) ZERO-P”

Plate) SYNFIX® LR

(SYNFIX® Evolution System)

RSB
RSB
(Life Spine, Inc.)

(Precision Spine, Inc.)

RSB
® ™

(ZERO-P® Spacer) ZERO-P NATURAL

GYNFIX® LR Spacer)  SYNFIX® Evolution

6,984,234 9,713,537

2019 11

(Medacta USA, Inc.)
2020
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(Synthes, Inc.)(

Planning Services)
Solutions)
9,672,302

ANDA

FDA

Invents Act)
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(Osteoplastics, LLC)
(Medical Device Business Services, Inc.)
)
PROPLAN CMF® (PROPLAN CMF® Virtual Surgical
TruMatch® CMF (TruMatch® CMF Personalize
8,781,557 9,929,920 9,330,206 9,626,756 9,672,617
9,275,191 2020
9,292,920 9,929,920
2020
2020 10
2022 10
ANDA )
FDA  ANDA
ANDA
2011 (2011 America
USPTO ANDA
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2YTIGA"
2017 11 (Janssen Inc.) (Janssen Oncology
Inc.)( ) 2,661,422 ( 422 )
2YTIGA” ( ANDS
) (Apotex Inc.)( )
( ) 6 2019
2019 10 422 ANDS
2019 11 2021
2019 422 ZYTIGA®
ANDS (Pharmascience Inc.)(
) (Or. Reddy’ s
Laboratories Ltd.) (Dr. Reddy’ s Laboratories, Inc.)(
DRL ) ( )
2020 11 2021 422
2021
2020 422 2YTIGA"
ANDS (JAMP Pharma
Corporation)( JAMP ) ( )
2021
422 2VTIGA”
XARELTO"
2021 JPI (Bayer Pharma AG) (
) 10,828,310 ( 310 )
XARELTO® ANDA (Lupin Limited)
(Lupin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( )
JPI

310 XARELTO®
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2017 JPI (Janssen Research &
Development, LLC) (Cilag GmbH International)
(Janssen Pharmaceutica NV)( )
( MTPC ) INVOKANA®  INVOKAWET® INVOKAVET XR® MTPC
7,943,582 ( 582 ) 8,513,202 ( 202
) INVOKANA®  INVOKAMET® INVOKAVET XR®
ANDA
(MSN Laboratories
Private Ltd.) (MSN Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( MSN
) (Zydus Pharmaceuticals
(USA) Inc.)( ) (
) 2021
2017 MTPC INVOKANA® INVOKAMET® MTPC 7,943,788
( 788 ) 8,222,219 ( 219 )
8,785,403( 403 ) INVOKANA® INVOKAMET®
ANDA
( )

2020 10

389/429



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OOooOoOoOoo
2019 MTPC  INVOKAMET XR® 582 202
INVOKAMET XR® ANDA MSN
2019 10 MTPC 788
INVOKANA®  INVOKAMET XR® ANDA
MSN 2019
10 MTPC 788 INVOKAMET®
ANDA
( DRL )
2021 MTPC  INVOKAMET XR® 582
202 INVOKAMET XR® ANDA
(Macleods Pharmaceuticals Ltd.)
(Macleods Pharma USA, Inc.)( )
2021
INVOKANA® 10,617,668 INVOKANA®
ANDA
( )
®
MTPC INVOKANA
INVOKAMET® INVOKAMET XR®
2020 10 MTPC
2,799,204 2,534,024 2,671,357 INVOKANA®
ANDS (Sandoz Canada Inc.)( )
( )
MTPC INVOKANA®

2022
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OPSUMIT®
2020 ( )
2,659,770 ( 770 ) OPSUMIT® 10 mg
ANDS ( )
2022
2020 770 OPSUMIT® 10 mg
ANDS (
) 2022
2020 770 2,621,273
( 273 ) OPSUMIT” 10 mg
ANDS ( )
2022
OPSUMIT®
INVEGA SUSTENNA®
2018 JPI( )
9,439,906 ( 906 ) INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDA (Teva
Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.)( )
2020 10 2021
2019 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA”
ANDA (Mylan Laboratories Limited)(
)
2020 906 USPTO
USPTO 2020
2021
2019 12 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA”
ANDA (Mallinckrodt
PLC) (Specgx LLC)( )
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INVEGA SUSTENNA®
2018 (
) 2,309,629 ( 629 ) 2,655,335 (
335 ) INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDS (Teva Canada Limited)( )
( ) 629
2020 INVEGA SUSTENNA®
335 335
(Public Judgment and Reasons)
2020 11 335 INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDS ( )
2021 11
2022
2021 335 INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDS ( )
2021 12
2022
INVEGA
®

SUSTENNA

INVEGA TRINZA®

2020 JP1
( )
(Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
(Mylan Institutional LLC)( )
INVEGA TRINZA®
10,143,693 INVEGA TRI NZA® ANDA

INVEGA TRINZA®
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IMBRUVICA®
2018 (Pharmacyclics LLC)(
) (Janssen Biotech, Inc.)( JBI ) 1mBRUVICA®
8,008,309 7,514,444 8,697,711 8,735,403
8,957,079 9,181,257 8,754,091 8,497,277 8,925,015 8,476,284 8,754,090
8,999,999 9,125,889 9,801,881 9,801,883 9,814,721 9,795,604
9,296,753 9,540,382 9,713,617 9,725,455 INBRUVICA®
140mg ANDA
JBI
(Cipla
Limited) (Cipla USA Inc.)( )
(Lek Pharmaceuticals d.d.)( )
2019 2019 JBI
10,125,140 10,106,548 2019
JBI 10,016,435
2019 JBI
10,294,231 10,294,232 2019
2019 JBI 7,514,444 8,003,309 8,476,284
8,497,277 8,697,711 8,753,403 8,754,090 8,754,091 8,952,015
8,957,079 9,181,257 9,296,753 9,655,857 9,725,455 10,010,507
10,106,548 10,125,140 IMBRUVICA®
ANDA (Alvogen Pine Brook LLC)
(Natco Pharma Ltd.)( )
2019 JBI
10,213,386
2020 10
2020 JBI 10,478,439
2020 10 JBI
10,653,696 2021
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2020 JBl 7,514,444 8,008,309 8,476,284
8,497,277 8,697,711 8,753,403 8,754,090 8,754,091 8,952,015
8,957,079 9,181,257 9,296,753 9,655,857 9,725,455 10,010,507
10,106,548 10,125,140 10,213,386 10,478,439 INBRUVICA®
ANDA (Zydus
Worldwide DMCC) (Cadila Healthcare Limited)(
) 2021
JBI
®
JBI IMBRUVICA
upPTRAV1®
2020 ( )
( ) upTRAVI® 7,205,302
8,791,122 9,284,280 uPTRAVI® ANDA
(Alembic Pharmaceuticals Limited)
(Alembic Pharmaceuticals Inc.)( )
( )
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( AWP )

( AWP )

AWP

AWP AWP
AWP

AWP
AWP
AWP
(Centocor, Inc.)
(Ortho Biotech Inc.)( )
(ALZA Corporation) AWP
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2014

DURAGESIC®  NUCYNTA®  NUCYNTA® ER

Inc.)( 2016

JPI

380
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ooooooo
JPI
3,200
(Tasmanian Alkaloids Pty, Ltd.) (Noramco,
)
2,800

2019 10
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465
JPI JPI
2019 10
JPI
2021
JPI
JPI
2017
JPI 38
2019 10 40
2020 10 40 10
50
2019
(Controlled Substances Act)
2019
2020
2017 2019 12

2020
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2019 11
2020
2020
2021
2020
2020 10
2019 12
2020
(In re Johnson & Johnson
Opioid Stockholder Derivative Litigation) 2020
2020 2020
12 2021
2020

2021
2021
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2012
)
Inc.)( )
2014
(False Claims Act)
2017
2021
2012 10
( )
2019
2019

2020
344

2020 10

2020

2019
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(DePuy, Inc.)(

(Johnson & Johnson Services,

ASR ™ XL
( )
2016
2020
2020
2021
2016
2019
2019 10
41
2020
2020 344
2020
2020 11
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2014
(Johnson & Johnson Consumer Companies, Inc.)(
JJCl )
(Mississippi Consumer Protection Act) JOHNSON' S° JOHNSON' S°
(2012 )
2018 12
JJCI
2019
JJCI 2021
2020
2020
2020 12
2021
42
2016 JPI JPI 2006 JPI
2016 (Janssen Products LP)
HIV PREZISTA®  INTELENCE®
2012 12

2021
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2017 JBI REMICADE®  SIMPONI ARIA
2019 JBI

2019

2017

DARZALEX® oLYs10® REMICADE sSIMPONI® STELARA®  zvTice®

2017

( ) (DePuy
Synthes, Inc. spinal implants)

2018 (CADE)

(Johnson & Johnson do Brasil Indistria e Comércio de Produtos

para Salde Ltda) 30

(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act)

2018 JOHNSON' S°

( Jacl )
2020 10 JJcl
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2013 12 (Janssen Ortho LLC)( )
(PREZISTA” )
( ) 2014
(United States Customs and Boarder Protection)( Us CBP )
(PREZISTA” )
(Penalty Notice) 2020
2020
2020 US CBP
2020 10 US CBP
2021
2015
(Johnson & Johnson Vision Care,
Inc.) 30
2015
2015 11
2015
JPI
(Ortho-McNei l-Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
( )
®
XARELTO
2020 11
2017 (Pfizer, Inc.)( )

REMICADE”
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2017 REMICADE”

REMICADE®
( )

REMICADE" (In re

REMICADE® Antitrust Litigation)

2018 (Walgreen Co.) (Kroger Co.)
®
REMICADE
2019
2020
®
2019 REMICADE
2017 10

(United States Anti-Terrorism Act)

2020 2021
2018 10
(Actelion Clinical Research, Inc.)( )
®
TRACLEER
®
TRACLEER
2019

2019 10 2021
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2018 12
(
) 28 2017
12
2YTIGA”
2019
2021
2021
2019 (Blue Cross & Blue Shield of
Louisiana) (HMO Louisiana, Inc.)  ZYTIGA®
( )
(BTG International Limited)
2YTIGA”
(Sherman Act)
2021
2021 2020

ZYT1GA”

7YTIGA”
2021
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2019
R&D (Janssen R&D Ireland)( )
HIV
(Gilead)
(Bristol-Myers Squibb)
2020
2020 2020
2019 10 (Innovative Health, LLC)
(Biosense Webster, Inc.)( BWI
) BWI
2020 BWI 2020
BWI
2019 11
2006 2019 11
(Sanofi Consumer Health, Inc.)
2016
2020

(Boehringer Ingelheim Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

2006
®
ZANTAC " ( )

ZANTAC®
N- (NDVA)
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)

Act)

2020 11

2021

@

@
ASC 606

ASC 606

2020 12

2018 7

25

2021
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(Fortis Advisors LLC)(
)
( )
2019
(Superfund)
(Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
(
)
47 21
2020
2021
) 606

ASC
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ASC 715
( PBO )
(
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®
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( )
ASC 350
ASC 350
20
10
) PBO
PBO
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(©)

Q)

®

©))

ASC 360
(

ASC 360

ASC 360

ASC 420

ASC 460
ASC 460

ASC 810

@

20
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(10)

an

(12)

(13)

ASC 835
o

ASC 480

ASC 740

ASC 820
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14)
ASC 718
(15)
ASC 835
(16)
2019

ASC 842
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)

20 (
2.1 )

19 12 31

15

)

20.315

10

)

2.1
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@

19 12 31

)

28

20
2.1 )
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€Y 15
( 24
19 )
@
(
2020 )
®) 11
(
2020
)
(0)) 24
( 30 12 31 12 29 )
) 25
( 12 30 28 )
) 30
( 24
19 )
@
(

2021 )
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( ) 2021
2019 12 29 2021
(
) ( C0S0 )
— (2013 ) 2021
2021 2019 12
29 2021
2021 C0S0 — (2013 )
C X PCAOB )
PCAOB

PCAOB
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2020
2021

2018

19

47

25
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)

19

572
465

50
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johnson & Johnson
Opinions on the Financia Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Johnson & Johnson and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of January 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, of
comprehensive income, of equity and of cash flows for each of the three fiscal yearsin the period ended January 3,
2021, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements’). We aso have
audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of January 3, 2021, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of January 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 3, 2021 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in al
material respects, effective internal control over financia reporting as of January 3, 2021, based on criteria established
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financia reporting was
maintained in all material respects.
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Our audits of the consolidated financia statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits aso included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financia reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and proceduresthat (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated
financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate
to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way
our opinion on the consolidated financia statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical
audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which
they relate.
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U.S. Pharmaceutical Rebate Reserves — Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recognizes revenue from product sales
when obligations under the terms of a contract with the customer are satisfied. Rebates and discounts provided to
customers are accounted for as variable consideration and recorded as a reduction in sales. The liability for such rebates
and discounts is recognized within Accrued Rebates, Returns, and Promotions on the consolidated balance sheet. A
significant portion of the liability related to rebates is from the sale of pharmaceutical goods within the U.S., primarily
the Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid programs, which amounted to $7.2 billion as of January 3, 2021. For
significant rebate programs, which include the U.S. Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid rebate programs, rebates and
discounts estimated by management are based on contractual terms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend
analysis, and projected market conditionsin the U.S. pharmaceutical market.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to U.S. pharmaceutical rebate
reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid isacritical audit matter are the significant judgment by management
due to the significant measurement uncertainty involved in devel oping these reserves and the high degree of auditor
judgment, subjectivity and audit effort in performing procedures and evaluating the assumptions related to contractual
terms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend analysis, and projected market conditionsin the U.S.
pharmaceutical market.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our
overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of
controls relating to U.S. pharmaceutical rebate reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid, including controls
over the assumptions used to estimate these rebates. These procedures also included, among others, (i) developing an
independent estimate of the rebates by utilizing third party information on price and market conditionsin the U.S.
pharmaceutical market, the terms of the specific rebate programs, and the historical experience and trend analysis of
actual rebate claims paid; (ii) testing rebate claims processed by the Company, including evaluating those claims for
consistency with the contractual and mandated terms of the Company’ s rebate arrangements; and (iii) comparing the
independent estimates to management’ s estimates.
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Litigation Contingencies— Talc

As described in Notes 1 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company records accruals for loss
contingencies associated with legal matters, including talc, when it is probable that aliability will be incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. To the extent adverse verdicts have been rendered against the Company,
management does not record an accrual until alossis determined to be probable and can be reasonably estimated. For
these matters, management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of 10ss beyond the amounts already accrued.
Amounts accrued for legal contingencies often result from a complex series of judgments about future events and
uncertainties that rely heavily on estimates and assumptions including timing of related payments. The ability to make
such estimates and judgments can be affected by various factors, including, among other things, whether damages sought
in the proceedings are unsubstantiated or indeterminate; scientific and legal discovery has not commenced or is not
complete; proceedings are in early stages; matters present legal uncertainties; there are significant facts in dispute;
procedural or jurisdictional issues; the uncertainty and unpredictability of the number of potential claims; ability to
achieve comprehensive multi-party settlements; complexity of related cross-claims and counterclaims; and/or there are
numerous parties involved. There have been verdicts against the Company for this matter, including a verdict in July
2018 of $4.7 hillion, which was reversed in part and affirmed in part by the Missouri Court of Appealsin June 2020,
reducing the overall award to $2.1 billion and, with additional interest as of January 3, 2021, as the Company pursues
further appeal, is currently $2.5 hillion. An application for transfer of the case to the Missouri Supreme Court was
subsequently denied, and the Company is currently seeking review by the United States Supreme Court. As described by
management, the Company continues to believe that it has strong legal grounds for the appeal of this verdict, aswell as
other verdicts it has appealed. Notwithstanding the Company’s confidence in the safety of its talc products, in certain
circumstances the Company has and may settle cases. The Company has established an accrual for defense costs and
reserves for settlement of certain cases and claims, as well as one case currently on appeal, in connection with product
liability litigation associated with body powders containing talc.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the talc litigation is a

critical audit matter are the significant judgment by management when assessing the likelihood of aloss being
incurred and when

determining whether a reasonable estimate of the loss or range of loss for each claim can be made, which in turn led to
a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in performing procedures and evaluating management’s
assessment of the loss contingencies associated with this litigation.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and eval uating audit evidence in connection with forming our
overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls
relating to management’s evaluation of the talc litigation, including controls over determining whether alossis probable
and whether the amount of 10ss can be reasonably estimated, as well as financial statement disclosures. These procedures
also included, among others, (i) gaining an understanding of the Company’s process around the accounting and reporting
for the talc litigation; (ii) discussing the status of significant known actual and potential litigation with the Company’s in-
house legal counsel, aswell as external counsel when deemed necessary; (iii) obtaining and evaluating the letters of audit
inquiry with internal and external legal counsel for significant litigation;
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(iv) evaluating the reasonableness of management’ s assessment regarding whether an unfavorable outcomeis

reasonably possible or probable and reasonably estimable; and (v) evaluating the sufficiency of the Company’s
litigation contingencies disclosures.

Litigation — Opioids

As described in Notes 1 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company records accruals for loss
contingencies associated with legal matters, including opioids, when it is probable that aliability will be incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. To the extent adverse verdicts have been rendered against the Company,
management does not record an accrual until alossis determined to be probable and can be reasonably estimated. For
these matters, management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of 1oss beyond the amounts already accrued.
Amounts accrued for legal contingencies often result from a complex series of judgments about future events and
uncertainties that rely heavily on estimates and assumptions including timing of related payments. The ability to make
such estimates and judgments can be affected by various factors, including, among other things, whether damages sought
in the proceedings are unsubstantiated or indeterminate; matters present legal uncertainties; there are significant factsin
dispute; procedural or jurisdictional issues; the uncertainty and unpredictability of the number of potentia claims; ability
to achieve comprehensive multi-party settlements; complexity of related cross-claims and counterclaims; and/or there are
numerous parties involved. The Company has been named in numerous lawsuits brought by certain state and local
governments related to opioids matters. Thetria in the matter filed by the Oklahoma Attorney General resultedin a
judgment against the Company in the amount of $572 million which was subsequently reduced to $465 million. The
Company has appealed the judgment and, as described by management, believes that it has strong grounds to overturn
this judgment. Separately in October 2019, the Company announced a proposed agreement in principle that would
include the Company paying $4 billion as settlement of the lawsuits. In October 2020, the Company agreed to contribute
up to an additional $1 billion to an all-in settlement amount that would resolve opioid lawsuits filed and future claims by
states, cities, counties and tribal governments, for atotal of $5 billion which has been accrued, subject to various
conditions and an agreement being finalized. As described by management, this agreement in principleis not an
admission of liability or wrong-doing and would resolve opioid lawsuits filed and future claims by states, cities and
counties.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the opioidslitigation is a
critical audit matter are the significant judgment by management when assessing the likelihood of aloss being incurred
for the judgment against the Company in Oklahoma and when determining whether a reasonable estimate of the range
of loss for the proposed agreement in principle to settle opioids litigation can be made, which in turn led to ahigh
degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in performing procedures and evaluating management’ s assessment
of the loss contingencies associated with thislitigation.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our

overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls
relating to management’s evaluation of the opioid litigation, including controls over determining whether alossis
probable and whether the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, as well as financial statement disclosures. These
procedures also included, among others, (i) gaining an understanding of the Company’s process around the accounting
and reporting for the opioids litigation; (ii) discussing the status of significant known actual and potential litigation and
ongoing settlement negotiations with the Company’s in-house legal counsel, as well as external counsel when deemed
necessary; (iii) obtaining and evaluating the letters of audit inquiry with internal and external legal counsel for significant
litigation; (iv) evaluating the reasonableness of management’ s assessment regarding whether an unfavorable outcomeis
reasonably possible or probable and reasonably estimable; and (v) evaluating the sufficiency of the Company’s litigation
contingencies disclosures.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Florham Park, New Jersey
February 22, 2021

We have served as the Company’s auditor since at least 1920. We have not been able to determine the specific year
we began serving as auditor of the Company.
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